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693 156. The Trial of Ambrofé Rookwood, 8. Wil II.

Mr. Powell. Here.

Cryer. Vous avez. (Aund fo of the Refl.)

Cl. of Arr. Gentlemen, are yon all agreed of
your Verditt? -

Fury. Yes.

Cl. of Arr. Who thall fay for you?

“Jury. Our Foreman.

Cl.of Arr. Ambrofe Rookwood, hold up thy Hand,
(which he did.) Look upon the Prifoner; how fay
you, is he guilty of the High-Trealon whereof he
{tand indi&ted, or not guilty 2

Foreman. Guilty.

Cl. of Ar. What Goods or Chattels, Lands or
Tenements, had he at the Time of the Treafon

committed ?
Foreman. None to our Knowledge,

Cl. of Ar. Then hearken to your Verdi& as the
Court has recorded it. You fay that Ambiofe
Rookwood is guilty of the High-Trealon whereof
he ftands indifted, but that he had no Goods,

or Chattels, Lands, or Tenements, at the Time

of the High-Treafon committed, or at any Time

fince, to your Knowledge, and {o you fay all.

“fury. Yes.

Mr. Powell. We defire we may be difcharged.

L.C %. We cannot do thar, till we fee whe-
ther there be enough upon the other Pannel, we
will give you as much Eafe as we can, we fhall not
I fuppofe try the other till the Afternoon, there-
fore you may take your Eafe for the prefent, but
you muft be about the Court when the other Trials
come on.

JVhile the Fury was withdrawn, the Court qﬁred 0

the Council for the Prifoners, that they might move

what Exceptions they had before the Yy was
Jworin as to aiy of the other; which accordingly

they did; Dut that velating to the Cafe of My,
Charles Cranburne, in whefe Prefence, being
thein at the Bar, the Objettions were made, that

Payt is left 1o bis Trial,
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CLVIL. The Tria/ of CHARLES CRANBURNE, for
High-Treafon, April 21, 1696. 8. Will. III.

Az the Seffior of Oyer and Terminer for the County of Middlefex, fitring in
the Court of King's Bench a¢ Weftminfter,

FTER the Trial of Ambrofe Rook-

wood was over, while the Jury were
_ g withdrawn to confider of their Ver-
~aepdll dit, che Court proceeded in this
' Manner.

Sir John Holt. I, C. F. Mr. Avrtoriey, ;Whom will

you have try'd next?
Sir Thomas Trevor. Ny, Att. Gen. Cmﬂ[mi’if&’, ¥

your Lordfhip pleafes.

Cl. of Ar. Then, Keeper of Newgate {et Charles
Cranburie to the Bar.

L.C . You, Gentlemen, that are of Council
for the Prifoner, if you have any Thing to move
for your Client, you may move it; but firlt let the
Prifoner be here.

Then Charles Cranburne was brougit to the Bar
in Irons,

L. C. 7. Look you, Keeper, you fhould take oft
the Prifoners Irons when they are at -the Bar,
for ct]luzy (hould ftand at their Eafe when they are
try’d.

YKeeper. My Lord, we have no Inftruments here
to do 1t juft now.

Cl. of Ar. You may fend to the Gare- Houfe, and
borrow Inftruments.

"Mr. 7. Powell, It fhould be done indeed; they
ought to plead at Eafe.

L. C. 4. Well go on Sir Bartholomew Shower.

Mr, Att. Gen. My Lord, before Sir Baytholomew
Shower enter upon his Exceptions, unlefs thofe Fx-
ceptions of his are {ome of the Particulars men-
tion’d in this A& he muft not do it now, after
Plea pleaded, before the Trial; but he muft do
it in Arreflt of Judgment.

L. C. 5. Treby. Tt is true, regularly; bueler him
ufe his own Judgment.

L.C. % It is very true; the Courfe has not
been to allow them to move to quafth an IndiGment
for Treafon, or Felony ; but it may be done.

Mr. Att. Gen, Sure it muft be only for fuch
Things as they cannot take Advantage of in Ar-
reft of Judgment after the Verdict.

L. C. §. It has not been the Courfe, but it may
be done.

Mr. Ait. Gen. Not where there is an Iffue join’d,
and a Jury reteurn’d to try thae Iffue; I believe
that never was done, nor attempted,

L. C. . Tveby. 1If there were any Prejudice to
the King by it, it were not fir for us to alter the
Conrfe; but let us hear what his Exceptions
are.

Sir B. Shower, 1 have feveral Exceprions; five
at leaft; one of them is within the very Words
of the A&, that is, improper Latin; I am {ure
fome of it 1s fo.

L C. . Well let’s hear what that is.

Sir B, Shower, It {ays, Aino Regni difli Domiui
Regis wunc Septimo, and Lewis is the laft King
mentioned before; and {o here is no Year of the
King of Euglaud mention’d, It is a cercain Rule,
that Relatives muft refer to the laft Antecedent,
and that Rule holds always, unnlefs thete be Words
that accompany the Relative, which undeniably
fhew to what 1t refers.

L.C.F. Ay; bur do we call the Freuch King
Dominus Rex ¢ .

L. C. f. Treby. He would have been fo, if he
had fucceeded in his Invafion, and this Affaffina~
tion.

Sir B, Shewer. In every Indi@ment, if there be
Occafion to mention a former King, it is always

nuper
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super Rex, and fuch a onre, naming the Name of
the King, where the prefenr King’s Name does
intervene, to prevent Confofion; and fo in civil
A&ions it 1s the fame; and fo it fhould have been
here,

LC 5. Ay; but I tell you, it is Dominus Rex
annc, which is our King.

Mr. Phipps. It is not {aid Anglie,

L. C . But wherever it is Dominus Rex, we
anderftand it of the King of England, and no Bo-
dy elfe. Read the Indi@ment.

" Cl. of Arr. Necnon eundem Dominum Regem ad

Movtews O finalems Deftruitionem ponere & adducere,
ac [ubditos [ues fidsles, O Liberos Homines Hujus
Regni Anglic in fervitutem intolerabilem, & mifer
vimam Ludovico Regi Gallico fubjugare, € manci-
pave, Decimo Die Februari, Ammwo Regni dithi
Dowmiini nunc Regis, [feptimo, & diverfis aliis Die-
bus, &c.

L. C. 4. Can any Man 1magine this to be the
Freuch King?

Sir B, Shower.My Lord, your Lordthip is not to
imagine one Way or other-

Mr. Cowper. In the firieft Senfe and Gram-
niar in the World, it muflt mean King William,
and no other. We do not need any Imagination,
when in the firiteft Conftru&ion, it is plain who

it refers to.

Sir B, Shower. I am fure no Grammar can make
it good ; nothing but a Suppofition can help it.

Mr. Cowper. When 1t is {aid Dictus Dominus Rex,
if Sir Bartholomew Shower can find out another
Dominus Rex in the IndiGtment, than he may
make fomething of his Objection ; but the Dowi-
nus is only apply’d to our own King throughout.

L. C. 9. Trely. Befides, as to the Rule that Sir
Bartholomew Shower mentions, it 1s that ad proxi-

mum Antecedeirs fat Relatio nift impediat Sententin. -

That’s the ReflriGion of the Rule, it muft relate
to the next Antecedent, unlefs the Senfe would
be prejudiced ; but here if this Conftruction fhould
be, it would make this Claufe to be no better than
Nonfenfe, viz. That the Subje&s and Freemen of
this Realm were to be brought into intolerable
Slavery to Lewis the Erench King, {uch a Day in
the Seventh Year of the Reign of our Lord the
Fyench King.

Sir B. Shower. We f{ay it is little better than
Nonfenfe, I am fure it is loofe, and uncertain, and
not Grammar, but carries a new Form with 1t.

L.C. 7. No, it is as well as it can be.

Sir B. Shower, Then, my Lord, there is another
Exception; it is faid, Diverfis Diebus & Picibs
tam antea quam poffea; and then afterwards it
fays, poftea [eilicet eodem Decimo Die Februarii;
that is repugnant; it is as much as to {ay, That
upon the Tenth of February, and two Days after-
wards (to wit) the faid Tenth Day of Febraaiy;
that is, after two Days after the Tenth of February,
viz. upon the {ame Tenth Day.

My. Ait. Gen, That Poflea is another Sentence,
and relates to other Matters.

Sir B, Shower. It can’t in Propriety of Speech
be faid to be afterwards the fame Day.

Sir Fobe Hawley. M. Soll Gen. 1f Six Bartholomew
Shower remembers the Evidence that we have
given this Day, he will find it was in Fat fo;
they met on the Saturday Morning, and after-
wards met again the Night of the fame Day.

L. C.%. There i1s nothing tn that Objefion

or Hioch-Treafon.
Jor Hig
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fure, it is 2 common Form, when they tell of dif-
ferent Matters. *
Sir B. Shower. Well then, if you will hear the
reft which are not of the fame Nature, we fhall
come to what we think a fatal Exception ; we
fay this Indi&ment of High-Treafon being againft
a Subjet born, ought ro have had the Words in
it, Contra fupremum naturalems Ligeum Dominum

Juum 5 according to Calvin’s Cafe in the 7th Re-

port, Ful, Septimo.

L. C 9. It is Contra Ligeantia fue Debitum, is it
not?

Sir B. Shower, That won’t help it, my Lord, for
all that is applicable to an Alien born: And fo
is the Cafe’ in my Lord Dyer, 144. where it is
faid, That if an-IndiGtment of Treafon be againft
an Alien,-you muft not pur in the Word uatu-
ralem, if you doy it ‘will be faulty, becaufe he
owes bur a focal Allegiance to the King of Eng~

~ Jand ; and not a natural one. Now we {ay, there

are none of thefe Prifoners-but are Subje&ts born,
and.the.conftant Form in Queen Elixaberh’s Time,
and Queen Mary’s, was to put in the Words Va-

turalers Domfnum, and they cannot fhew me any

of thofe Precedents without it. There was QOcca-

fion in Tycker’s Cale to look into this Matter, and

{earch all the Precedents. I have look’d into my
Lord Coke’s Entries, and all the Precedents; I

have feen my Lord of Effex’s Indi@ment, and all
the others in Queen Elizabeth’s Time, and thole

of the Traitors in the Powder-Plot, and thofe of
the Regicides, and Tucker’s own IndiG&ment it felf; -

all along it is Naturalew Dominym funm; and the

-Reafon for it is, he that is Alien born, you never

put in Naturalem Dominuns fuum, becaufe he owes
a double Alfegiance; one Natural, to his own
King under whofe Dominion he was born, and
the other Local, to the King in whofe Dominions
he refides, for he is bound to obferve the Laws of
the Place where he lives : And if he violate them,
he does break the Allegiance that he owes to the
Government where he lives, upon Account of the
Prote&ion he enjoys under 1t. But if he be born
a Subje& of the King of England, he has but one
nataral Liege-Lord; and he being an Euglifbman
born, the King ftands in that Relation to him, as
he does to all his native Subje&s, but not to Fo-
reigners; and therefore it was thought requifite
to be, and has always been inferted into Indi&-
ments of Treafon againlt Subje@ts born. And,
my Lord, we think che very Refolution of the
Court, afterwards affirm’d in the Houfe of Lords
that revers'd Zucker’s Artainder, went upon this
Opinion, That the Law required saturalem Ligewm
Dominum to be put in. There the Exception was,
that Contra Debiton Ligeantiz fuz was omitted ;
To which 1t was objelted, that there was Dominums
Supremum Naturalem, which was equivalent: No,
it was anfwered, both were requifite, becaufe eve-
ry A& charg’d in the IndiS@ment ought to be laid
again{t the Duty of his Allegiance. Now in In-
ditments of Treafon, there are certain Words
that arc effential, becaufe of their Relation be-
tween the King and his People. There are certain
Forms of Words, which if the conftant Pra&ice
has been to make Ufe of them, the Omiffion is
an Error. Thofe ufual Forms ought to be ob-
ferv’d, and the Want of them will be a fatal Ex-
ception; {o we think it would be in this Cafe, as
much as if the Word Proditorie had been left ont;
or as if in a Cafe of Felony and Burglary, the

Words Felonice, and Burglariter had been left aﬁ.
r,
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Mr. Phipps, My Lord, we take the Pradtice,
-and Precedents to be the Rule of Law in the Cafe;
and I have look'd over a great many Precedents,
befides thole that Sir Bartholomew Shower has ci-
ted; and I never faw any one Precedent of an
indi@ment of Treafon againft a Subje& born
without the Word naturalem; and all the Cafes
cited by Sir Baitholomew Shower are full in the
Point. Cunter’s Cale in my Lord Hobbart, 271.
where ’tis {aid, that if there be an Indi&ment a-
aainft a Subject born, it muft be Coutra narnia-
len Domintn 3 1 againft an Alien, waturalem muit
be lefc out. To f{ay Coitra Ligeantia fuz Debi-
:um will not do, it is not enough, for that may
be faid againft an Alien, becaufe he owes a local
Allegiance, tho’ not a Natural one. And I rake
it, upon this Difference, this IndiGment is nor
good.

My, At Gei. My Lord, T do not know how
far you will think it proper to enter into this Mat-
ter before the Trial.

L. C. ¥ Mr. Autorney, I think you had as good
{peak to it now as at another Time; tho’ I muft
confefs it 1s not {o proper in Point of Prattice.

Mr. Att. Gen, Well, my Lord, then we will
{peak to it now, The Objettion is, That the
Words naturalems Domiinn 15 not in the Indi&-
ment; which they fay i1s contrary ro the ufual
Form: As to the Precedents, there are a great
many where it has been, and I am {ure a great
many where it has not been; and I am fure for
this Six, Seven, or Eisht Years laft paft, it has
always been omitted: And, with Submiffion to
your Lordthip, it is not at all neceflary, if there
be Words in the Indi@ment which fhew, thac
what he did was again{t the Duty of his Alle-
giance to his Lawful and Undoubted Lord (which
are the Words in this Indi@ment,) It is true,
if he be not a Subje& born, naturalent cannot be
in, becaufe that is contradiftory to the Obedience
which he owes, for it is not a natural Obedience
that he owes, but a Locai; but if a Man be a
Subje& born, and commits Trealon againft the
Allectance that he owes, that is againft his naru-
ral Allegiance; for whatloever he does againft his
Allegiance, he docs againft his natural Allesiance,
and {o there’s no need to put i the Word natu-
valem 3 becaule he owes no other Allegiance buc
that ; it is {uficient i that be put in which thews
1ts being againft his Allegiance. If they could
{(hew that a Subje@ born has two Allegiancies,
one that is natural, and the other that s not na-
taral ; then if you would profecute him, you muft
fhew, whether it wasagainft fus natural, or againft
his other Allegiance. But when he has none but
a natural Allegiance, certainly againft his Allegi-
ance, without putting in natural, will be well e-
nough. It is true, where there is no natural Al-
Jegiance, it muft be wrong' if you put it in, be-
canfe you put in that Allegiance ivhich he does
not owe; but where he is a Subje& boin, to put
in natural Liege-Lord there. is no Ground at all
for it; there are Words enow that fhew it was
againlt his Allegiance- to his Lawful and Un-
doubted Lord. .

L. C. F. Look you, Sir Baptholowmew Shower,
how does ‘it appear, that thele Men are Subjeéis
born? The Matter you go upun does not appear
upon the IndiCtment, and yon are not to go off
from that. |

Siz B. Shower. Every Man is prefum’d to be fo,
unlefs the contxary appears.

157. The Trial of Charles Cranburne, .- 8. Will. III.

L. C. 5. You quote Calvin’s Cafe, and the o-
ther Cafes that are there put; thofe are all Cafes of
Aliens; there is Dr. Lopez’s Cafe; He being an
Alien comes 1nto Euglaid, and commics High-
Treaton: Why, fay they, how thall we indi& this
Man? We cannot fay it is Contra Naturalne
Dominzn fuum 5 for he owes no narural Allegiance
to the Queen of Eugland; How fhall -we do to
frame a good Indi@ment againft this- Man? They
conftdered of this; and they faid it will be a-good
IndiCtment, to charge him with High-Treafon, or
any one elfe, leaving out the Word Naturalom :
For it 1t appear be has committed an O#ffence
againft the Laws of the Kingdom, and againft
the Duty of Lis Allegiance, which is Hioh-Trea-
fon, that’s enongh. Now as to Tucker’s Cafe, it
was reverfed for want of the Conclufion, contra
Debitum  Ligeantiz fuz, Thofe Words are ma-
rerial; tor let the Otience be never {o much a-
gainft the Perfon of the King, as to aflaffinate
him, or levy War aguinft him, yer fill if it be
not againit the Duty of his Allesiance, as it can-
not be if he owes him none, it i1s not Hiah-
Treafon. And ctherefore if it be againft his Al-
legiance, whether that Allegiance be natural or
local, it is all one, 1t’s enough to make it High-

"Treafen, ..

My Sull. Gen. In that Cafe in Dyer, they fhew
where 1t was a Fault to put the Word.- in, bue
they can fhew no Cafe where ir has been adjudged
to be a Favlr to leave the Word out. |

£.C 9. No Doubt it would be a Fault to have
that 1n, Coutra Nataralem Doninum fuum, where
there is only a local Allegiance due, -

Mr. Phipps. How does it appear whether it s
the one or the other thar is due?

L. C. ¥, It 1s no Macter whether the one or the
other do appear, 1t 1s High-Treafon be it the one
or the other, if it be againlt the Duty of his Al-
legiance.

Mr. Phipps. Suppole an Indi@ment acainft an
Alien were, Cuitra Natwalen Domtinum,

L. C . That would be i, becaufe then you
had Iaid it more {pecially, and otherwife chan re-
aily it is, and reftrained it where you ought nor to

do it.

Mr. Phipps. How then, wy Lord, fhall it ap-
pear that be only ow’d a local Obedience ? .

L. C. F. It may be given 1n Evidence, That he
1s an Alien born.

Mr., $oll. Gein. He may plead it in Abatement to
the Indiétment.

L. C. . He ought to be acquitted, for you have
indi&ed him of a Crime again{t his natural Alle-
oiance, when he owes no fuch. But Allegiance 9=
nerally comprehends all Serts of Allegiance, Na-
tural, and Local.

Sir B. Shower. How then, my Lord, come all
the Lawyers of all Ages to-put in thofe Words
in Indi&ments of High-Treafon againft Subjeds
born ?

L C. . No, I iave feen Abundance of Prece-
dents, that have only Cuiira Ligeantiz fue Debitnm
generally, and {o the moft part are; for Allegi-
ance 1s the Geans, and if that be fuggefted, all the
Species are contain’'d under that. |

Mr, Att, Gen. Well, have they any more?

Sir B. Shower. Yes, we have more.

L. C. 4. Well, .you (hall have them all in time.

Sir B. Showere My Lord, here is another Qb-
jection, and that’s this; Here is one Fa& that they
have laid, and that's the 2d Overt-A& in thisIn-

di@ment,
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di@ment, that they confented ‘and agreed that
Forty Men, (whereof chefe Four were to be Four)
but do not lay it to be done traiteroufly. They
fay Coufenferunt Agreavernnt & dffenferunt, bur
not proditorie ; and I never {aw an Indi&ment that
Jaid an exprefs Overt-A&, without repeating the
Word again. If your Lordfhip pleafes, the Words
in the Indi@ment are thus; as to the firft Overt-
A&, it is 1aid in chis manner; Et ad execrabilem
Affaffinatiouem illam exequend. at fuch a Time and
fuch a Place proditorie tralaverunt propofuerunt
& Confultaverunt de wiis modis & mediis, e, and
then comes this which we except againft; & Con-
fenferuint Agreaverunt & Affenferuinr quod Quadya-
gisiia Homines, @'c. Now thisis a plain diftin& A&,
and there is no proditorie to it ; and if ever they can
{hew me any Indi@ment, 1n which an Overt- A&
was laid, of which they gave any Evidence, and it
had not the Word proditorie in 1t, I am very much
miftaken. I am {ure, I never faw any {uch. And
it is not enough to fay, that the Nature of the
Thing is fuch, as that it cannot but be 2 Treafona-
ble Aci; but they muft alledge it to be fo, by the
exprefs Ule of that Word, which the'Law hasap-
pointed to exprefs this Crime by. In the Cafe of
an Indictment for Felony, if it be not {aid Felony,
it is not good. They are not to defcribe that by
Circumlocution, which is a particular Crime fixc
by Law, they muft ufe the Perba Artis, the Terms
of Art, and no other: If your Lordfhip pleafes
it may be read. _

Mr. Sol. Gen. Let it be read 1f you pleafe; buc
take it in Euglifh, and it is no more than this, they
did traiteroully compafs the Death of the King,
and for that purpofe they did traiteronfly meet,
and confult about the Ways and Means, and did
confent and agree that forty Men, Or.

Cl. of Arr. Reads, Et ad Execrabilem Hovreidaiz
5 Deteftabilem Affalfinationem Auglice Afllaflinati-
on & Tuterfeltionem illam Citins exequendum &
aitio ac Diverfis alits Dicbus O wicibus apnd pa-
vochiam pradiflam in Comitatn praditio proditovie
traltaverunt,  propofuesunt & Confultaveruut  de
viis nodis & wmediis ac Tempore & Loco ubi quan-
do qualiter & quomodo Ditum Domiimus Regem fic
ex Infidiis facilins Interficerent.

Sir B. Stower. "There is an End of that, now

a0 on.
7 Mr. Att. Gen, No, Sir Bartholomew, you mifltake,
there 18 no End of 1t, that’s done at the fame
time with that which follows.

Sir B. Shewer, No it is not the fame QOvert-
A& ; but let him go on.

Cl. of Arr. Et Confenferunt Agreavernnt & A4J-
feaferunt euod quadraginta Homines Equeftres,

Sir B. Shower, Well you need read no farther
for our Objeftion. We {ay, there wants the
Word Proditorie : For there are two QOverr-AQs,
the One is, that they traiteroufly did confult of
the Ways and Means, how to kil the King, and
that Overt-A& we agree to be well laid: But
then it {ays they confented, and agreed that there
fhonld be Forty Men, whereof thefe Four fhould
be Four, but does not fay they traiterou{ly agreed ;
are not thefe diltin® AQs?

Mr. Phipps. Surely, My Lord, they are diftin&
A&s; for this Part of the Indi@&ment upon which
Sw Bartholemew grounds his Objeftion, is that
QOvert-A& of which the Lift in Mr. Rookwood’s
Cafe was urged by the King’s Council, and agreed
by the Coure to be an Evidente.

Voru IV.
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- 'Then the Jury againft Mr. Rockwood came in,
and delivered in their Verdi®, as it is in his
Trial, then afterwards the Court went on thus.

Mr. Att. Gee My Lord, the Obje&ion is, that
Proditorie is not inferted inzo that pasticular Claufe
of the Indi&ment, which thews their particular
Agreement that there fhould be fortyMen, where-
of the Four named in the Indi&ment svere to be
Four. Now your Lordthip obferves how the In-
di&ment rans, it is for Compafling and Imagining
the Death and Deftru@ion of the King; and it
fets forth for this Purpofe, that to effe® this
Compafling and Imagining, they Proditorie tratia-
vernnt &' Confultaverunt de wviis mediis & Modis,
how they fhould kill the King. Now that which
immediately follows after is, the particular Me-
thod and Means that were agreed upon, that isy
that there fhould be forty Men. Now this is the
{trangeft Suggeftion that ever was, when we have
fet forth, that traiteroufly they did fo agree of
the Ways and Means, and then fet forth the par=
ticular Means, that here muft be proditorie again
to that. 'This is fuch a Conftruction as.I cannot
but admire how it could come into any one’s
Head. It is Part of the Sentence; for the other
Part, as we have laid it, 1s not compleat before:
It may be it might be fufficient without fetting
forth the particular Ways and Means; but when
it is fet forth, it is Parc of the Sentence, and re-
fers to the firft Beginning.

L. C. 9. Aye fure it does.

Mr. Att. Gein. I cannot tell what they would
have, unlefs they wounld have us repeat the Word

proditorie in every Line.

Mr. Sol, Gen. Or before every Verb.

Sir B, Shower. No, bur 1 think 1t oueht to be
repeated at every Overt-A&.

Mr, Conyers. 1t your Lordthip' pleafes, after
that they have fet forth thac this was the parti-
cular Method and Way agreed upon at their
Confultation, that forty Hor{emen or thereabouts
thould go about it, of which the Perfons indi&ed
were to be Four, it goes on, Et Quilibet eorum
proditorie fuper [e Sufcepit effe uutm, there it is put
in, and 1t appears to be as particular as poffible
can be.

Mr. Cowper. Siv Bartholomew Shower {ays, that
when we have alledg'd that they did traiteroufly
treat, propofe and confult of the Means and Ways
of killing the King, there we have done the Sen-
tence and made that one Overt-A&. Now how
i1s the Sentence done? The next Word is a Con-
jun&ion Copulative, & Confenfernnt, @c. And
what is the Ufe of a Conjun&ion Copulative ? But
to convey the Force of the Words in a former
Sentence to the Sentence following, and to pre-
vent the Repetition of every Word in the fubfe-
quent Sentence that was in the Precedent: But
it 1s plain, they are both one and the {fame Over:-
AQ&, and thefe {fubfequent Words are only an
Explanation, more particularly of the Overt-A&
fet forth in the precedent Words.

Sir B. Shower. In Anfwer to that, that has been
{aid, if they fhew me any Precedent, where an
IndiGment has been for High-Treafon, fetting
forth feveral Overt-Ags, and not the Word pro-
ditorie fet to every Overt-A&, then they anfwer
my Objection: If the Word Qued had come in,
that would have made them diftin& to be fure ;
and I think they are as diftin& A&s now; {up-
pofe they had concluded at the End of the Word
Tnterficerent, that had been a good Qvert-A&; I

4 U am
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am fure they will agree that: And if it be {o,
then the other is a good Over-A& too. Torit
is a diftinét Thing from that which was a per-
fe& Sentence before; and it either requires a
Litewife, or the Word Proditorie muft be repeated.
They bave not fo much as faid fimiliter Confenfe-
ruist or fontli modo; there is an (€) indeed, bur
that does not {o couple the Sentences together, as
not to make them diftinét A&s. There are {eve-
ral Ets thorough the whole IndiGment, but that
does not, as Mr. Cowper would have it, couple
all together to make one Overt-A&.

Mr. Phipps. My Lord, if what My, Cowper fays
be allow’d, (viz.) that the (&) makes it one 1n-
tire Sentence, then there is no Overt-A& ar all;
for after the Treafon alledg’d, the Claufes are
coupled to one another by an Et, and confequent-
ly by Mr. Cowper’'s Way of arguing the whole In-
diftment is but one 1nrive Sentence.

L. C. %, I do not underftand your Meaning as
to that; they tell you Proditorie 1s alledced to the
Confulting, Contriving and Agreeing, then they
tell you what was the fubje& Matter of that Con-
trivance and Agreement to aflaffinace the King,
and 1n order to that they agreed there {hould be
40 Men, 1s not that good enoush, withont Pro-
ditorie to every Line,

Siv B, Shewer. No, 1t 15 not {aid 1n Ordine ad,
there 1s no {uch Thing; bur only they did con-
{ulr of the Ways and Means, and did agree that
ao Horlemen fhould do it, and afterwards did
agree to provide Horfes ane Inftruments of War,

wow that being with a Quodgue, they fay makes
a new Overt-A&; but I cannot underftand why
Quodque is not as much a Copulative as Er, and
the onc fhould not have the fame effe& as the
other.

L. C . Firft it tells you there was a Conful:
and Agreement to aflaffinate the King, and for
the Accomphfhnent of the {aid Aflaflination, af-
terwards eifdem die &8 Anio Proditorie Trafazve-
vuit & Confultaverrut de wiis & modis, how they
fhould kill the King,

Sir B. Showsv. That is one Overt-A&, {ay we,
and there you fhould {top.

L.C % Et Gufeaferunt & Agreavernnt qued
gnadraginta Homiies, ¢ itis all ar the {ame time,
and muft be intended the fame Confulr and Con-
crivance ; that they confulied of the Ways and
Means, and then agreed fo many Men fhould be
provided.

Mr. Phipps, Ne, bly Lord, we fay that is
another Overt-AG.

L. C. . Tocly. It feems to me to be a fpecify-
ing and particularifing the Ways and Means, that
they had confulted of, and concluded on.

Sir B Shower, If it had been a fpecifying, it
fiad been much better to pur in either then and
there, ot thar this was the Refult of the Con-
{ultation.

L. C 7. Treby. Tt does feem to me {o, that it
was the Refult of the Confultation, and it is well
enough.

L. C. . You had better have {av’'d thefe kind
of Exceptions till the Trial was over.

Sir B. Shower. But, my Lord, if there be one
Overt-Act il laid, 1 {fubmit it whether they can
give any Evidence of that Overt-A&.

L. C. . Treby. No doubt of that they cannor;
but we think it is as well laid as it conld be laid.

L. C. 4. Truly I am not well fatisfied, that it
is neceflary after you have laid the Proditorie, as

to the particular Treaton, to lay it again to the
Overt-A&. For the Gvert-Adt is but Evidence
of the Treafon: The Treafon it felf lies in the
Compaffing, which is an A& of the Mind.

L. C. . Treby. You cannot Indiét a Man of
Trealon for Allaffinating or killing the King, buc
you muft in cvery fuch Cafe frame the Indicement
npon the Article for Compafling and Imagining the
Death of the King; which maft be laid to be
done traiteroufly. Then when afterwards you
{ay the Perfon accufed did wound him, or impri-
fon him, or confule and agree to aflflinare him,
or did aCually aflaffinate him, thele are bur fo
many Overc-Ads of compafling the Death, and
you having firft {aid that he did Preditorie compafs
and imagine the King’s Death, you have thereby
(hewn that you charge him with a grecater Of-
{fence than Felony (which my Lord Gike fays is
the Ule of the Word Pioditorie;) and that being
thus done, I do not apprehend it to be neceidary
that you thould add Proditerze vo all the relt of che
following Particulars; for they are only external
Difcoveries of the inward Treafon; and more
properly deemed to be Eviderce of the Treafon,
than to be the Treafon it feli.

L. C. %4 The Treafon is confummate in the
Intention, befides the Words of the Starure make
that the Trealon, not the Overe-Adt, that is but
Fvidence, and foir was held, (not upon tlns Ex-
ception, bue upon the Reafon that my Lord {peaks
of Jin the Cafe of the Regicides of King Charles the
Firft, Thatthe IndiGment thould not be for kil-
ling the King, but for compafling and imaginine
his Death, and the Killing was alledg’d as an
Overt-Adt,

Siv B. Shower. It muft be foif it were for levy-
ing of War.

L. C, F. Moft true; forlevying the Waris the
Treafon, but in this Cafe we think it is no Ex-
ceprion.

Mr. A4t Gen, Then let us have the Fifch.

Sir B, Stower, "Then, my Lord, Lere is another
Thing. It is a2 Queltion whether there be any
Overt-A& prefented by the Jury at all. The In-
ditmene {ays, Fecatores pro Do Rege pirefeiis
taut, that they as falle Traytors did compals the
Death of the King, and the Slaughzer of his Sub-
jefts, and they did meet, and confulr, and agree
how to do 1, Er iiden Clwifloploins Kuirhtly
and the reft, to fulfi their faid traicerous Intenti~
ons and Imaginations did, afterwards, the tenth
of Filruary, buy Arms and Horfes. Now our
Objeéuion 15, That it does not appear, that any
one of theft: Overt-A&sarethe Prefentment of the
Jury; with Submiffion they onght to have begun
it again, either with a Quodgue, or {omething that
fhould have referred it to the firlt, Furatores pra-

Jeutaint, or elfe they muft have begun quite again,
with a Furatores Ulterius prafentant, and not have
coupled them as this is with an Er. The moit
Forms begin with an altecins prafentant, but here
we find no Overt-A& is {o introduced. They
might prefent Part, and not prefent the other Parr,
for any Thing that does appear. Every Thing
ought to be laid pofitively, as the Jury’s Diffnas;
it may be only the Clerk’s Saying, and not the
Jury’s, for any Thing that does appesr. Your
Lordfhip remembers the Cafe of the King and
Tiobridge upon a Wrir of Error to reverfe a
Judgment for ere@ing and continming a Cottage
againft the Form of the Sratute; now Coitia for-
mam Statuti was in the Besinning of the Indi&-
ment,
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mént, but not in the Conclufion; to the ereing
but not the continuing, And though there was
chere Furatores ulterins dicunt, it was not fuper Sa-
cramentum fuum, and they did not fay, he did
continue 1t againft the Statute; and there being no
formal Prefentment, that he maintain’d the Cot-
tage notwithftanding the A&, Er did not {o cou-
ple it to the firft Part, as to make it a good Pre-
{fentment.  So we {ay in this Cafe, this is a Fault,
and difterent from all the common Forms; there
ought to be a dire® Prefeniment of each Overt-
A&, and not coupled by an Er. * For Er will
not do it; for itis a ditin& Overt-A& every
one, and fhould have been Et guod Confultaverunt,
guodgue Agreaverwie, that a certain Number
fhould do fo and {o; and to be fure, it thould have
been {o at the laft Overt-A&, which is only, Et
sidem Crhiflophoins Knightly, &c. did buy Arms and
Horfes. Now this laft Et, being a loofe Con-
jun&ion Copulative, in common Senle ought to. re-
fer to that which they had agreed upon, for that
is laft mention’d there, and the narural Senfe
leads thither, and not ro the Beginning of the Bill
“Juratores prafentant quod.

Mr. Phipps. 1 fhall not trouble your Lordfhip
further, they ought to have put in a Quodgue, or
an Ulterins prafentant.

Mr. Att. Gen, Where would you have the Quod-
-que, or the Ulterius prafentant ¢

Mr. Phipps. Either to every Overt-A&, or at
lealt to that laft.

Mr. Att. Gen. The IndiGment fets forth, that
they committed {uch, and {uch a Treafon; Their
ObjeQion 1s, that Quodgue is not put into every
Overt-A&; and our Anlwer is, that the firft
Quod governs all chat rélates to that Treafon. It
may be if there were two diftin& Treafons in the
Indi&ment, when you come to fet forth the Second
Trealon, you thould {ay Suratores nlterius prafen-
tant the Second Treafon; but the Overc-A&s to
prove the fame. Treafon, are all Parts of that
Treafon, and make but one Species of Treafon,
which is the Imagining the Death of the King.
There’s the Treafon; and te bring it to pafs, they
did fo, and fo: This, my Lord, muft be Part of the
Finding of the Jury as well as the Treafon 1t {elf,
of which thefe are the Qverc-Ads.  But then if
you will lay the levying of War in the {fame In-
diGtment, then it may be you muft {ay Furatores
ulterius prafentant quod, &c. But it had been a
firange Abfurdity to fay, Furatores nlterius pra-
fentant, fach and fuch Overt-A&s: For the Overt-
A& is not a further Indi&ment, but only a fet-
ting forth that which 1s Evidence, upon ivhich
they found the Indi&ment for Treafon.

Mr. Sol Gen. What the Indilment fays, i1s as
dire® Affirmation as can be all along of the Pre-
fentment of the Jury, that the Priloner and others
did compals and imagine the Death of the King;
and to bring it about, they did confult together,
and did agree to make ufe of fuch and fuch
Means, and were to have a Party of 40 Men, and
they bought Arms and Horfes. Now it does
not repeat quodque, or ulterius prafentant quod, vo
every one of thofe Sentences, that they did fo and
{o, and that they did {o and fo. Now I would
tain know the Difference between Saying, and
they did fuch a Thing, and Saying, and that they
did fuch a Thing. That’s all the Difference that
they think to overturn this Indi&ment for. The
omitting of a Furatores ulterius prafemant, cer-
tainly is nothing; for the fift Prelentment runs
- Vor IV,
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through the whole Indi¢tment, and chére does not
need an Ulterius, |

Sir B. Shower. Certainly there thould have been
a Qunodgue at lealt.

L. C, F. No indeed, T think it is better as i
15, than as you would have’had it; becaufe the
firlt Qued goes chrough the whole, Thar in order
thereunto he did {o and {o; would you have it {fad
€5 quod in order thereunto he did {o and f{o; buc
tho that may be good Senfe, I thirk it is not fo
good as the other. This Indi&ment is for one Sort
of Treafon, and that is, for Compaffing the Death
of the King; and it is, I think, more proper to
have but one Qued, than to have more; for 1t
makes the whole Indi@ment more entire. As
to the Furatores nltevins prafentant, that is never
proper, where the Spicies of Treafon is the fame:
For indeed if there had been rwo diftin& Trealons,
the one for compafling the Death of the King, and
the other for levying of War, in thar Cafe you
mult bring it in by alterins przfentant Becaule
they are two feveral Ofences, though compris'd
in one Bill, and they are in Law as two Indi@-
ments. And fo it is in the Cale thar you men-
tioned of Cotrages: It is one Ofénce to erect a
Cottage, and another Oftence to continue a Cot-
tage, and they are to have feveral Punithments;
and becaufe they there jumbled them both toge-
ther in one Indi¢tment, that Indi&ment was held
to be nonght: For by Law, the Inditment for

ere@ing a Cottage, ought to conclude contra for-
mam Statuti, and chen the Jury muit begin again,
€7 wlterins prafentant quod the Cortage was conti-
nu’d againft the Form of the Statute; becaufe
they are feveral Offences. Bur here the High-
Treafon is but one and the fame Oftence, and the
other Things are but Overt- Ats to manifeft this
Trealon, the Compaffing the Death of the King ;

‘and troly I chink it is better as it 1s.

Mr. Phipps. 1 have feen feveral Precedents of
Indi&ments, where the feveral Overt-AQs were
to the fame High-Treafon, buc fiill they had each
an ulterius prafentant,

Mr. 4t. Gen. 1 believe it is hard to find many
IndiGments in the fame Words: I am {ure all
are not.

L. C. Bayon. Is it not as great an Sir Edward Hard,
Affirmation te fay, and they did fuch a Thing, as
to {ay, and that they did fuch a Thing.

L.C. . I cannot reconcile it to my Reafon,
bur it fhould be as good Senle without that as
with it.

L.C. F. Treby. In a long Deed it begins, This
Indemture witneflah, tha: the Party granted fo
and fo, and the Party covenants thus and chus;
and {o it goes on commonly, without renewing
the Word That to the fubfequent Claufes: Buc
yet the firlt Expreffion (This Judentuie witheffeth
thar) governs the whole Deed, though it be many
Skins of Parchment.

L. C. % It you begin with an Indenture, you
begin, 1hat it witnefleth fo, and fo; without re-
newing, unlefs it be a very diftin&@ Thing.

Sir B, Shower. My Lord, we think that Simil-
tade makes for us. 4. B. covenants {o and {o In
? Conveyance, and then further, that {o and
0s

L. C. /. But there you reftrain that in the Be-
einning of the Covenant to every particular in thac

Covenant.
Mr. 4t. Gen. Will your Lordfhip pleafe to call

the Jury now?
4U 2 LCY.
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L. C. 5. Have you a Mind to go on with the
Trial, orto goto Dinner 2

Mr. 4t Gei. 1 believe your Lordfhip can try
but one more to Night, and that may be as well
after Dinner as before.

L. C. f. Well then, adjourn el s a-Cleck, and
in the mean time," you Keeper, knock off the Pri-
foners Fetters,

Keeper. They thall, my Lord.

Then the Court adjourwed till 5 a-Clock in the
Afteincon, it being then abont 3.

Lot Meridiem, the 21/ of April-go.

The Court 7‘31‘2:7*}235/, and was ?'g/}mz’d

about 6 771 the E‘zﬁe;z;f;@.

Clof Ar. Keeper of Newgate, bring Chailes
Craubuiiee to the Bar, (which was done.) Charles
Cravbnyriie, hold up thy Hand (which he did.)
Thofe gocd Men that you fhall hear called and
perfonally appear, are to pafs between our Sove-
veign Lord rhe King and you, upon Ttrial of your
Lile and Death; and cthevefore if you will chal-
lenge them or any of them, your Time is to fpeak
unto them as they come to the Book to be {worn,
and betore they be {worn.

Cranburie, My Lord, I humbly defire I may
have Pen, Ink, and Paper.

Conrt. Aye, Aye. (He had them,)

Cl.of Ar. Where is Geoige Furd ¢

Ciyer, Vous Avez,

Craunburize. 1 challenge him.

Cl.of Ar. William Underbil,

Cranburne. 1 challenge him,

Cl. of Ar. William Withers.

Crandurne. I challenge him.

My, Phipps. 1t your Lordfhip pleafes, thofe
that were of the laft Jury I hope fhall not be call’d
of this Jury: This Prifoner being tried upon the
{fame Indi&ment the Jaft was.

L. C. . If they be not, it fhall be in Eafe to
them, but it is not in Favour of you.

Mr. Pripps. We humbly conceive, having given
their Verdict upon the fame Indi@ment, they are
not fuch indifferent Perfons, as the Law intends
they fhould be, and think ic is good Reafon they
thould not ferve upon this Jury.

L. C. 5. What though it be upon the fame In-
difimenc? the Evidence is not the fame ; for they
are diftin& Offences.

Mr. Phipps. I do not know whether it be a gcod
Caufe of Challenge, but fubmit it ro your Lordfhip.

L. C. 7. Well, yon may doubt of it if youl
pleale, and try the Exception,

Cl. of Av. Thomas Trench,

Cranbuine.'1 challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. Fobiz IWulfe.

Cranburire, 1 challenge him.

Cl. of Ar. Fames Bodinatcn,

Ciaibarie, I challenge him.

Cl.of Ar. Fonathan Audrews,
pear.) Fobr Rayumond,

Crandurie, 1 challenge him,

Clof Ar. George Haws,

Craiiburie. I challence him,

Cl. of dr. Francis Bary.

Cranburine. 1 challenge him.

Cl.of Ar. Arthur Bailey,

Cranburne, 1 challenge him
laft Jury.

L.G 4. That is no Reafon; Wil vour chal-

Ienge him peremptorily

( He did not ap-

he was upon the
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Cranberne, I do challenge him,
Cl. of 4r. Fobu Caine.

Cranbuiue- 1 do not except againft him,

Cl. of 4. Hold Mr., Casne t)e Book, Cryer.

Cryers Look upon the Prifoner, Sir. You fhalr
well and truly try, and true Deliverance make be-
tween our Sovereien Lord the King and the Pri-
foner at the Bar, whom you fhall have in Charge,

and a true Verdi give, according to your Eyj-
dence, fo help you God,

Cl. of Ar. Thorsas Gloyer.

Crandnrire, 1 challenge him,

Cl. of Ar, Derme; Sheppard, ( He did not
pear.) Gesrge Tredway, ( He did not
Matthew Barcman, (
Thorubuyy.

Cranbuiie, 1 challenge him.

Clof Ar. Fames Partherich,

Cranburie. { challenge him,

CLof A Thunas Freemay
pear. ) Rebert Dredon,

Cranbzize. 1 do not except aganft him. ( &
was fwori.)

Cl.of Ar. Sefeph Bliffor,

Cranbuine, I challenge hin.

Cl. of A Tomothy Lannp, ( He did nor ap-

pear. ) Sohi Hurvis, (He did nos appear.) Fohu
Billiers.
Cranburie. 1 have nothing to fay againft him:
(He was Fuworn) L ‘
Cl. of Ar. Richard Boyran. :
Craiburite. 1 do not except agamnft him, ( He
was fworin )
Clof Ar. George Carter,
Erancis Chagran,
Crandurie, 1 challenge him.
Cloof dv. Alexander Fypp,
Cranbuyue. I challenge him.
CL of Av, Nicholas Roberts.

Cranburite. 1 have nothing to fay againft him.
(He was frorin

Gl of Ar. Thomas Playflead,

Craubuyize, | challenge him.
Cl of i William Atles.
Cranbuine, | challenge him.

Cl.of Ar. Fehiz Mas . (He did not appear.
Andiew Cook, : ppear.)

Cranbuiie, T do not except agamft him. ( He
was [wori,)
Cl.of Ar, Yobu Hall.
Craiburne, | Challenge him.
Cloof Ar. Willian Pﬁrtrﬁdge.
Cranburie, | challenge him.
Cloof Ar. Peter Lewigne.
Cranburne, | challenge him,
CLoof Ar. Thomas Moody.
Cranburie. T challenge him.,
Cl. of 4v. Richard Belinge.
Cranburne. 1 challenge him.

CL of Ar, Thomas Evans.

Craiburie, 1 do not except againft him, ( He
was fuworn, )

Cloof Ar. Thomas Ramage,

Cranburne, 1 haye nothing to fay againft him.
(He was fuwori.)

Cl. of Ar. Edward Townfend,

Cranburne. 1 challenge him,
Cl of dv. William Gunfon.

Crauburne, T challenge him.
Ch of Av. Philip Wightman,

Cranburie. 1 fay nothing againft him. ( He
was fwori.) | .
Cl of 4y,

ap-
| appear. )
tle did not appear,) Tinothy

(He did not ap-

(He did not appear. )
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Cl of Ar. Sohn Wibourue.
Sir B. Shower. 1 hﬂpe you take an Account of

the Challenges, My, Hardiftey.
L. C. 9. Nay, you fhould take care of the

Challenges, who are his Council : if he had no
Council; we woun’d take care of him.

Cryer. Here 1s Mr. Wyborne, What fay you to
him?

Craiburie. 1 have nothing to fay. (He was

fworn.)

Sir B, Shower. T hope your Lordthip will alfo
be of Council for him.

L.C . Weare to be equal and indifferent be-
tween the King and the Prifoner : Bur you chat
are now his Council by Law, ought to take care
that he lofe no Advantage.

Ch of Ar. William Strode.

Cranburire. 1 have nothing to fay againft him.
(He was fworn.)

Cl. of Ar. Daniel Byfield. (He did not appear.)
Benjamin Neble. ( He did not appear,) Thomas

IWhite,
Cranburie. 1 do not except againlt him, ( He

was [wori.) _
Cl of Ar. Cryer Countez. Fohu Caiite,
Cryer. One, Ut.
Cl of Ar. Thonas WWhite.
Ciyer. Twelve good Men and true, ftand toge-
ther, and hear your Evidence.

The Names of the Twelve Sworn were thefe,

Fobiz Caine, Efq. Y (Thomas Evans, Gent.
Robert Bredon, 1:Aq. l Thomas Ravage, Gent,
Fobir Billers, Eig. <‘ Phitip Wightman, Genr,
Richard Bourn Elq. { } Fohie Wykorue, Gent,
Nich, Roberts, Gene. | | William Strode, Gent. and
Audrew Cook, Gent.) \Thumas White, Gent,

Cl. of Ar. Cryer, make Proclamation.

Ciyere QOyez. 1t any one can inform my Lords
the King’s Juftices of Oper and Terminer, the
King’s Serjeant, or the King’s Attorney General,
before this Inqueft be taken of the High-Treafon,
whereof thie Prifoner at the Bar fands IndiQed,
Iet them come forth and they fhall be heard; for
now the Prifoner ftands at the Bar upon his Deli-
verance : And all others that are bound by Recog-
nizance to give Evidence againft the Prifoner at
the Bar, let them come forth, and give their Evi-
dence, or elfe they forfeic their Recognizance.

L. C. 4. Mr. Attorney, Do you think we fhall
be able to try the other to Night.

Mr., At. Gen.  "That is according as this holds,
mv Lord.

'L.C. . Ifpeak it for the Eale of the Jury,
that they might be difpatched, and not atrend
another Day.

Mr. A4t. Gen. 1 doubt we cannot try any more
than this to Night,

L. C . Well it 1s no great Matter, 1t will be
but a Morning’s Work; it may be too great a
Serefs and a Hurry to do any more to Night ; and
thercfore we will difcharge the Jury for to Night,
thofe of them that are not fworn; but we will
be here to Morrew Moyning by Seven a Clock;
and therefore pray Gentlemen attend early.

Cl. of Ar, C Cranburne Hold up thy Hand.
(which be did.) You that are fworn look upon the
Prifoner, and hearken to his Caufe. He ftands
indiGted by the Name of Chavles Cranburne, late

of the Parith of St. Paul! Cuvent Garden, in the

jfor High-Treafon.
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County of Middlsfex, Yeoman, for that he, with
Chriflopher Kinightley, late of the {fame Parifh and
County, Gentleman, Robert Lowick, late of the
{ame Parith and County, Gentleman, and Aubrofe
Rookwood, late of the fame Parifh and County,
Gentleman, the Fear of God in their Hearts nor
having, nor weighing the Duty of their Allegi-
ance, but being mov'd and feduced by the Infti-
gation of the Devil, againft cthe moft Serene,

moft Ill}lﬂrious, moft Clement, and moft Excel-
lent Frince, our Sovereign Lord, Billian the

Third, by the Grace of God, of Eugland, Siotland,
France and Ireland, King, Defender of the Faith,
O'c. their Supreme, True, Rightful, Lawful, and un-
doubted Lord, the Cordial Love, and the true and
due Obedience, Fidelity and Allegiance which eve-
ry Faichful Subje& of our faid Lord cthe King that
now 15, towards him our faid Lord the King thou’d
bear, and of Right ought to bear, withdrawing,
and wholly to extinguith, intendin g and contriving,
and with all their Strength, purpofing, defigning
and confpiring the Government of this Kinadom
of Eugland, under him our faid Lord the King
that now is, of Right, duly, happily, and very
well cltabliffied, altogether to fubvert, change and
alter; as alfo our faid Lord the King to Death
and final Deftrution to put and bring, and his
Faichful Subjeéts, and the Freemen of this King-
dom of Eigland into intolerable and moft mifer-
able Slavery to Lewis the Freuch King to fubju-
gate_and enthral, the roth Day of Feb. in the
7th Year of the Reign of our faid Lord the King
that now is, and divers other Days and Times,
as well before as after, at the Parith of St Panl
Covent-Garden aforefaid, in the County afore-
faid, fallely, malicioufly, devifithly, and traite-
roully, did compafs, imagine and contrive, pur-
pole, defign and intend our faid Lord the King
that now is, to Slay, Kill, and Murder, and a
miferable Slanghter among the faithful Subje&s
of him our faid Lord the King, throughout
this whole Kingdom of Euglaud to make and
caufe; and ther faid moft wicked, 1mplous,
and devilith Treafuns, and traiterous Compaf-
(ings, Contrivances and Purpofes, aforefaid, to
fulil, perfec, and bring to Effe®, they the faid
Chriftopher Knightly, Robert Lowick, Ambrofe Rook-
wood, and Charles Cranbuine, and very many other
falfe Traicors, to the Jurors unknown; after-
wards, to wit, the fame Tenth Day of Eebrua-
i}, In the Year abovefaid, at the Parith afore-
{aid, in the County abovefaid, and divers other
Days and Times, as well before as after, there and -
clfewhere in the {fame County, falfely, malicionfly,
advifedly, fecretly, traiteroufly, and with Force
and Arms, did meet, propofe, treat, confulr,
confent, and agree, him our faid Lord the King
that now is, by lying in wait and wile, to Af-
{affinate, Kill and Murder: And that exccrable,
horrid, and deteftable Aflaffination and Killing the
{ooner to execute and perpetrate; afterwards, to
wit, the fame Day and Year, and diverfe other
Days and Times, at the Parifh aforefaid, in the
County aforefaid, traiteroufiy did treat, propofe,
and confult of the Ways, Manner, and Means,
and the Time and Place where, when, how, and
In what manner our faid Lord the King {o by
lying in wait the more eafily they might Kill:
And did confent, agree, and aflent, that Forty
Horfemen, or thereabout ( of whom they the
faid Chrifopher Kuightley, Robert Lowick, Ambyofe
Rookwood, and Charles Cranburne, fhould be four ci'
an
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and every one of them traiteroufly took upon
him{elf to be one) with Guns, Muskets, and P1-
{tols, charged with Gun-powder and Leaden Bul-
lets, and with Swords, Rapiers, and other Wea-
pons, Armed, thould lie in wait, and be in Am-
buth our {aid Lord the King, in his Coach being,
when he fhould go abroad, to fet upon; and
that a certain and competent Number of thole
Men fo armed, upon the Guards of our faid
Lord the King, then attending him, and being

with him, fhould {er upon, and them thould fight
with and overcome; whillt others of the fame

Men fo armed, him our {aid Lord the King (hould
Aflaffinate, Slay, Kill, and Murder. And they the
{aid Chriftupher Kuightly, Robeit Lowick, Ambrife
Rookwood, and Chailes Cranburite, the T'realons,
and all cheir treafonable Intentions, Purpofes and
Contrivances aforefaid to execure, perform, ful-
fil, and bring to efie&, afterwards, {to wit) the
aforefaid Tenth Day of Febiuary, in the Seventh
Year abovefaid, at the Parifh aforefaid, 1n the
County aforefaid, divers Horfes, and very many
Arms, Guns, Piftols, Swords and Rapiers, and
other Weapons, Ammunicion, and Warlike
Things, and Milizary Inftruments, falfely, ma-
licioufly, fecretly and traiteroufly did obtain, buy,
oather together, and procure; and to be bought,
obrained, gathered together, and procured, did
caufe, with that Intent them in and about the de-
teftable, horrid, and execrable Aflaffination, Kil-
ling, and Murder of our faid Lord the King that
now is, as aforefaid, to be us'd, imployd, and
beftow'd: And the fame Premifles the more fafely
and certainly to execute, do, and perpetrate, the
aforéfaid Chriffopher Kuightley, with one Edward
King ( late of High-Treafon, in contriving and
confpiring the Death of our faid Lord the King
that now is, duly conviGted and attainted) by the
Confent and Affent of divers of the Traitors and
Confpirators aforefaid, the aforefaid Tenth Day
of February, 1n the Seventh Year aforefaid, trai-
teroufly did go, and came unto the Place propo-
{ed, where {uch intended Aflaffination, Killing,
and Murdering of our faid Lord the King, by ly-
ing in wait, (hould be done, perpetrated and com-
mitted, to view, fee, and obferve the Conveni-
ency and Fitnels of the fame Place for {uch lying
in wait, Affaffination, and Killing, there to be
done, perpetrated and committed ; and that Place
fo being fcen and obferved, afterwards, to wit, the
fame Day and Year, his Obfervations thereof to
{everal of the faid Traitors and Confpirators did
relate and impart, to wit, at the Panfh aforelaid,
in the County aforefaid; and the faid Chailes
Craunburne the fame Day and Year there, in order
to the fame execrable, horrid, and deteftable Aflaffi-
nation and Killing of our faid Lord the King, by
the Trairors and Confpirators aforefaid, the more
readily and Dboldly to execute, perpetrate, and
cemmit, advifedly, knowingly, and traiteroufly
did bear and carry among divers of thefe Trai-
tors and Confpirators forward and backward
from fome to others of them, a Lift of the Names
of divers Men of them” who were defigned and
appointed our faid Lord the King, fo as afore-
{aid, by lying inwait, to Kill and Murder againft
the Duty of his Allegiance, and againft the Peace
of onr {aid Sovereign Lord the King that now is,
his Crown and Dignity, and againft the Form of
the Statute in thac Cafe made and provided.
Upon this IndiGtment he hath been arraigned, and
thereunto hath pleaded not guilty, and for his
2

Trial hath put himfelf upon Ged and his Coun-
try, which Country you are; your Charge is
to inquire, whether he be guilty of the High-
Trealon whereof he flands indied, or not
guilty: if you find him Guilty, you are to
inquire what Goods or Chatels, Lands or Te-
nements, he had at the Time of the High-
Treafon committed, or at any Time fince: If
you find him not guilty, you are to enquire whe-
ther he fled for ic; if you find that he fled fox
it, you are to enquire of his Goods and Chat-
tels, as if you had found him guiley: if you find
him not guilty, nor that he did fly for it, you
are to fay {oand no more: And hear your Evi-
dence,

My. Afsmtague. May it pleafe your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury; this is an In-
di@ment of High-Treafon chat is found againft
four Perfons ; but the particular Treafon againk
the Prifoner at the Bar, is for Compaffing and
Imagining the Death of the King, and endea-
vouring to {ubvert the Government, and enflave
the WNauon to Lewss the French King: And the
Indi@ment {ets forth, ‘that the Prifoner at the
Bar did for this purpofe meet and confult with
{everal falfe Traitors to the King and Govern-
ment, of the Ways, Manner, and Means how,
and the Time and Place when and where to Af-
{affinate the King ; and at length they agreed that
forty Horlemen fhould go together, and fet up-
on the King m his Coach, as he returned from
Hunting ; fome to attack the Coach, while others
{fet upon the Guards. The Indi&ment does fur-
ther charge him with getting Horfes and Arms,
and particularly with carrying a Lift of the Af-
faflinacors from one to another. Thefe are the par-
ticular Things charged in the Indi&ment, and to
this Indi¢tment he has pleaded not guilty 5 if we
prove the Fact, Gentlemen, we don’t doubt your

ufltice.
) Mr. At. Gen. May it pleafe your Lordfhip, and
you Gentlemen of the Jury; the Prifoner at the
Bar, Charles Cranburue, is Indi@ed for High-
T'reafon, in compaffing and imaginiag the Death
of the King. Gentlemen, the Over-A&s laid
in the Indi@ment to prove the Prifoner guilty
are, That he was at {everal Meetings and Con-
fultations abour the Manner of putting this De-
fign in Execution; at which Meetings. it was
agreed, that there fhould be about forty Horfe-
men 1n Number prrpﬂr’d, and arm’d for that Pur-
pole, and they did provide Horfes and Arms for
that very Thing, and did agree to put it in Exe-
cution.

Gentlemen, the Evidence that you will hear
produced againft the Prifoner at the Bar will be
of this Nature. You will hear from che Wit-
nefles, that about Chriftmas laft, or the Begin-
ning of Famnary, Siv George Barcley, did come
over from France from the late King Fames, to
whom he was an Officer in his Guards, with a
Commiffion for atracking the Prince of Orange,
or levying War upon his Perfon. He came over
about that Time, and feveral Troopers of the
late King Fames's Guards, to affit him in that
barbarous Confpiracy. When Sir George Barcley
came over, he did acquaint with this Defign fe-
veral Pesfons in England, chac he thought proper
to be Accomplices with him in it; particularly
Capte Porter, Mr, Chavick, Siv William Perkins,
and feveral others whofe Names you will hear of,
and they had feveral Meetings about it the Be-

ginning
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ginning of Febinary, at Capt. Porter's Lodgings,
at the Nagg’s- Head in Covent-Garden, at the Sun
Tavern in the Strand, at the Glbe Tavern in
Hatton-Garden, and feveral other Places where
they confulted in what manner they might attempt
and accomplifh this bloody Defign.

Gentlemen, you will hear, chat at thefe Meet-
ings it was proposd, that they fhould do it by
Ambufcade as the King came from Richmond 2
Hunting, whither he uled to go uwpon Saturdays:
Others were for doing it on this Side the Wa-
ter. And fo thetr Opinions being divided, it was
thought neceflary to find out and lettle which was
the beft Place; and in Order thereunto they em-
ploy’d Capr. Portery, Mr, Kuightley, and Mr, King
(who was executed) to view the Ground, and ac-
cordingly they went, and pitch’d upon the Lane
between Brentford and Tuynkam-Gieeir for this
Purpole, as the moft convenient Place : And ha-
ving {o cone, they came back, and gave an Ac-
count to thofe that had appointed to meet ’em, 1o

hear the Succefs of their Expedition, at the
Naga's-Head in Coveint-Garden, and in that Place,
vou wiil find by the Evidence, that thofe Perfons,
who were the Heads of the Confpiracy, under-
took to find their feveral Proportiens of hlen, for
whom they would undertake, that would go with
them, and be concern’d in this Defign. Sir Gesge
Barcley was to furnith about twenty. lle had
the Command of the Troopers that came from
Frauce, and thole other Oilicers that came thence,
vere under him. Capt, Porter was to furnifh fe-
ven, Chlaiiock was to furmih eight, Siv Williaiz

erkins was to furnifth five Horfes and three Men,
and, I think, Lewick was to furnith {ome more:

Tn the whole Number they reckon’d there fthould
be about forry-

Tt will appear, Gentlemen, that the Prifoner at
the Bar, Mr. Crazbuine, was one of the Men that
Capt. Porter undertook co ger, and engage in this
Defien; and accordingly Capt. Poiter did acquaint
My, Craiduriie with 1t; and he did undertake to
be one, and to be ready to go with him, and be
eoncerned in this Allaflination.  You wll find he
was acquainted with it about the sath of Fliu-
ary, the Day before the firlt Time that they in-
tended to aftanle the King: Then he did under-
take and agree to prepare himfell agaaft the next
Day. The next Day, which was the 15th of
February, they had feveral Meetings, and they
were making Preparation in Order to go our.
It happen’d, by great Providence, his Majefty did
not go abroad that Day, and thereupon they dif-
oers'd themfelves; bac they had Meetings after-
wards, at which Meetings the Prifoner was pre-
{ent, wich Capt. Porter, My, Pendeigrafs, La Rue,
and feveral others that were concerned in the
Confpiracy, particularly the 21ft of February, the
Day before the fecond Time they were to have
put this in Execution. Capt. Porter being at
the Swi-Tavern, with {everal other Gentlemen,
and they refolving to have 1t execured the next
Day, if che King went abroad; Capt. Porser {ent
for Craibuine, and Kejes chat was executed, and
Kendrick and Sherbor, four of thofe that he had
undertaken for, (of whom, 1 {ay, Cranburne, the
Prifoner at the Bar, was one) and then he ac-
quainted ’em that they were refolv’d to go on
with it the next Day. And then they agreed to
be in a Readine{s accordingly. The next Day the
Prifoner, with fome others, met at Mr. Purteis,
where they were preparing to go out and attack

for High-Treafon.
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the King, and they had feveral Difcourfes about
the Ways and Means of doing it; and particu-
larly Capt. Porter at that Time faid, that he had
a very good Gun that held abont (ix or eight Bul-
lets, and that Mr. Pendergiafs was to have, who
was to attack the Coach, and fhoot into the
Coach: Mr. Crauburie was there prefent at that
Time, and Mr. Crauburie was imploy’d particular-
ly by Capt. Porter to carry a Lift thar Peiter wric
of the Names of feveral Men that were to a& in it
under him, and this he was to carry to Chaiaock ;
Porter writ 1t and gave it him, and he carry’d i
with Dire&ions to bring it back with the Lift of
the Namesiof Mr. Clainock's Men. Cranburie
did accordingly at that Time carry the Lift of the
Names to Capt. Chariack, and broughr 1t back
with an additional Lift, from Capt. Chariock, of
his Men.

At that Time, you will hear further, when
Craiburne brought che Lift, he brought an Ac-
count that he heard the King did certainly go
abroad: For Mr. Chaseck had Intelligence {o
from Chawmbers, who lay st Renflugton to ger In-
telligance: At which there was very great Rejoy-
cing among all that were prefent at thar Time,
hoping they fhould have an Opportumey to puc
this execrable Defign in Execution; and {o they
prepar’d all of “em to go out.  Theve were fe-
veral Inns in Zwinbam - Grecn ard  Breatford,
and thereabouts, and they were to be placed
two or three In an Inn, thar they might be
ready to get together when Time fhould lerve,
It happen’d the King did not go abroad thac
Day neither, there being fome Difcovery of this
Defign, and {o they did difperfe themfclves, as
apprehending 1t was difcovered,

Gentlemen, 1t will appear by {everal Witnefies,
that the Prifoner at the Bar was engaged 1n this
horrid treafonable Defign, and was ro have alted
a Part in it. We will call our Witnefles thar
will make the Particulars out to you, and we do
not queftion bur you’ll do whar is right.  Furft,
call Capt. Porter; (who was fuciin,)

Mr. Sol. Gein, Pray, it you pleale, Cept. Forter,
give the Court and the Jury an Account what you
know of this wicked ntended Aflaffination, and
what Share the Prifener at the Bar had int.

Capt. Porter. My Lord, before this wicked Al-
{affination was on Foot, the Prifoner at the Bar,
My, Cranbuiie, was imploy’d by me to buy Arms,
I ufed to give him Money to go to the Brokers to
buy Arms at {econd-hand, and he brought a
Sword-Cutler to me, of whom I bought about
twenty Swords. And when Sir George Barcl:y
came into Euglaud, and this Bufinefs was refolv’d
upen, I acquamted him with the Defign, and
promis’d to mounr him. He never was at any
of the Meetings with Capt. Charnock, Sir Geoige
Baicley, or Sir illiam Perksns 3 but he went to
look for a Horfe, and was ready both Satardass
to go along with me. On Saturday the 22d 1
fent him with a Meflage to Sir William Perkius,
for the Note for the two Horfes, which he had
promifed me to furnith me with, out of his five
that he was to furnifh ; he came back again, and
told me that there was a Meflenger came and f{aid
that the King did go out, and he knew whese to
have the two Horfes; that Mr, Charnock was a-
fraid we thould not have the falf Number of Men,
and defired me to fend lim the Names of my
Men; 1did write a Lift of the Names of my Men,
and 1 went afterwards to the Blue-Pofts in Spring-

| Garden,
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Gardeir, whither he was to come to me; he did
fo, and he bronght back the Lift of my Men,
with the Lift of Mr. Charnock’s Men written un-
derneath it, and at the fame Time News was
brought that the King did not go absoad thatDay.

L.C. . You fay, that before the Aflaffination
was fet on foot, you imployed him to buy Arms
and Horfes,

Capt. Porter. My Lord, I acquainted him with
it the Friday before the firft Satuyday.

L. C. . You faid before the Affaffination you
imployed him to buy Arms: When was that?

Capt. Porter. 11aid before the Afiaffination was
on foot I imployed him to buy Arms. 1 told
him 1 was to be a Captain in Colone! Parker’s
Regiment, and promied to make him my Quar-
ter-Malfter, )

L. C. . How long ago was thise Wasit a
Week before the AflafTination was on foot ?

Capt, Porter. He has known of my being a
Caprain in Colonel Parker’s Regiment this two
Years.

- Mr. At Gen. T do doubt my Lord, he does
not diftinguith the Times when he bought the
Arms, and when the Aflaflination was.

L. C. 9. Yes, yes, he does now; I mifappre-
hended him at firft, and thought he faid he had
imployed him to buy Armsa Week before the
Aflaffination was on fcot; but he fays it wasa
longer Time.

My Ait. Gein. 1 deflire my Lord, he may be
ask’d what Time he bought Arms before this Af-
{affination: When was the laft Time he bought
Arms?

Capt: Porter. It was feveral Months before the
Aflaffination.

Mr. Att. Gen. Was it within a Year before it.

Capt. Porter, Yes I believe it was within a Year.
I gave him feveral Times Money for that pur-
pofe, in all above ten Pounds, and he told me,
one with another, he had bought ten Cafe of
Piftols, and kept them in the Houfe til there
were Occalion.

Mi. Ait. Gein How lc. 3 ago isit?

Capt. Porters 1 believe about a Year; within
a Y ear.

Mr. At. Gen. When did you firflt acquaint him
with the Allaflination ?

Capt. Porter, Prelently after Sir George Barcley
acquainted me with it, I{ent to him, to defire
him to get the Piftols clean and ready.

Mr. dtt. Gen. Did you tell him of the Defign?

Capt. Porter. I told him there was a Delign on
foot, and I would tell him more when I {aw him
next; and I defir'd him to get the Swords from
the Sword-Cutlers, and the Piftols clean and rea-
dy. And I met him afrerwards, and told him
of the Defign, and that we intended to do it on
Saturday the fifteenth; and he engaged to be
ready and make one. On the Friday before the
twenty-fecond he went with me to the Cock-ptr,
and there we met with one Mr. Guin, and I ask'd
him if he knew where any good Hackney-Horfes
might be had? He {aid he believed he did ; and
1 {ent Cranburie with him, and he came back,
and told me he had found two or three out in
Bloonisbury.

L.C. . Look ye, Capt. Porter, you muft not
{peak fo faft, it is impoffible to underftand {o
much Matter as you deliver without diftingmifhing
of Times Youfaid, that fome long Time before
the Aflaflination was on foot you {fent him to buy
Arms, for what Purpofe were thofe Arms?

Mr. At Gen, My Lord, be has told you —

L. C. %. Pray let me hear it from him again,

Capt. Porter. I {ay my Lord, he knew of my
being a Captain in Colonel Parkei’s Regiment
this two Years,

L. C. 9. But what were thele Arms for that he
bought?

Capt. Porter. To be ready againft King Fames
landed, which was defigned feveral Times.

L. C.F. Why, now you make the Matter clear
to me,

Mr. Ar. Gen. My Lord, that is not the Thing
we go upon, that is but introdu@ory to the Bufi-
nefs thar we are now a Trying, Therefore we
defire to know of him: Caprain Purter, when
did you firft acquaint Crawbuine of the Aflaffina-
tion of the King?

Capt. Porter. As foon as Sir George Bavcley ac-
quainted me with it, and defired me to ger what
Men I could to efteét it, 1 fent for Craubuiue to
my Lodgings in Noifolk-Strcer, and lie came to
me one Morning; and I told him there was a
Defign on foot, and I would rell him more of it
afterwards,

Mr: Sol. Geir. When was 1t that Sir Gevrge Bar-
cley acquainted you with 1c?

Capt. Poster. About the latter End of Yaimary.

Mr. At Gen, And what {aid he to it when you
acquainted him with ir2

Capt. Porter, He did agree to go with me,
and I promifed to furnith him with Horfe and
Arms; and on Fiday before the fifteenth I fent
him with three Cafe of Piftols to Sir William
Perkins, to furnith che three Men he was to mount
with his own Horfes.

L.C. . Who was to have thofe threc Cafe of
Piftols,

Capt. Poiter. Siv William Perkins was, and he
carried them to Siv IVilliam Pe;kings.

Mr. Ar. Gen. How long was this do you fay,
before the Aflaffination was to have been?

Capt. Porter, It was Friday before the fifteenth.

My, 4t Gen. That was before the firft Time

that it was to have b-en done. ,

Capt. Porter, Yes; and Friday betore the laft, 1
{ent him to look after the Hotles that Guan {aid
he believed ke could help me to, and he came to
me to the Sun-Tavern in the Strend, and told
me he and Feffery Guan had found three Horfes
in Bleomsbury, and 1 came out of the Room
where I was with Sir George Barclay and others,
and there was Kendiick, and Keyes, and Cranbuiite,
and I told them we were refolved to put it in
Execution the next Day.

Mr. A4t Gen, Well, pray what Difcourfe had
you with him the next Day?

Capt. Poiter. The nexe Day, the 22d, he came
to my Lodging ar Maiden-Laie, and 1 {ent him
to Sir William Perkins for a Note for the two
Horfes, that I was to mount of his: He came
back and told me he knew where to have them,
and that Capt. Charinock was aftraid we fhould
not have our Compliment of Men, and defired
me to {fend him an Account what Men I could
bring, which I did by Mr. Grenburne, and being
to go to the Blue-Poffs, ordered him to bring it
to me thither, and he did bring i1t back to met to
the Blue-Pefts wich Captain Chainock’s Lift undex-

neaths
Mr, Sol. Gen, Pray Caprain Porter, was there

any Body prefent when you {ent the Lift, and
the Prifoner broughr it back to you?

Capt,
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Captain Pendergrafs, and Mr. King, 1 know of
none elfe,

Mr. At Gen, Pray do you remember what
Healths were drunk after you heard the King was
not-to go abroad ? |

Capt, Porter. I don’t remember what Healths
were drunk that Day particolarly, but whether it
were Thurfday or Friday, (1 cannot tell particular-
ly the Day) We drank a Health to the Squeezing
of the Rottex Orange upon the next Saturday,

Mr. 4t. Gen, Who was prefent that Day when
that Flealcth was drunk ?

Capt. Porter. Mr. Cranburne was there prefent
at that Time, and did drink the Health,

Mr. Cooper. Pray, Siry did he meet you by Ap-
pointment on Salrrday the 15th, or was it by Ac-
cident ?

Capt. Porter. By Appointment, as all the reft
did, to get ready as all the reft did, to go upon
the Delign; and fo it was both Days.

Sir B. Skaswer. If they have done with Mr. Por-
ter, we would ask him a Queftion or two for the
Prifoner: We defire to know when it was that
thofe Arms were bought that he talks of: For we
muft acknowledge that Mr, Cranbrrne heretofore
went upon feveral Meflages for Capt. Porter
When was that buying of Arms?

Capt. Porter. T tell you I cannot exadtly tell
the Month.

Mr. Cranburne. Do you remember the Year?

Capt. Porter. I believe it was lefs than a Year
before the Affafination was on Foot.

Mr. Cranburne. If you remember, Sir, it was a
Month before Col. Parker was putin the Tower,

Capt. Porter. It was feveral Times, 1 cannot
tell the particular Times,

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, 1 defire to know
when he firft communicated this Defign to
Mr. Cranburne, and who was by, and where it was.

Capt. Porter. 1 told you I fent for Mr, Cran-
burise one Day in the Week before the 15th, and
he came to me at my Lodging in Norfolk-fireet,
and I acquainted him that Sir George Barclay was
come, and there was fuch a Defign on Foot; and
I defired him to ger thofe Piftols that he had of
mine ready, and cleaned 3 that they might be
ready for the Execution.

Sir B, Shower. W hat Day was that?

Capt, Porter. One Day in the Week before the
15th,

5Mr. Cranburne. Did you ever name Sir George
Barclay to me 1n your Life ¢

Capt, Porter. Yes I did, I told you he was
come from Fraice.

Mr. Cranburne. Where was that, at Mr.—

Capt. Porter, In Norfolk-ftreet, where I lay?

Mr. Cranburne, Who was by ?

Capt, Porter. No Body but my felf.

Sir B, Shower. Upon what Occafion did you
meet there ?

Capt. Porfer. 1 fent for him to my Lodging.

Sir B. Shower. How long had Sir George Bar-
clay been in Town, before that Time?

Capt. Porter. 1 cannot tell the Time when he
came to Town.

Sir B. Shower. How long was it after he came
to Town before you faw him? Had you feen him
a Week or a Fortnight before? Pray recollect
yourfelf. 4

Capt, Porter. Itold you that the firft Time [
heard of him, was the latter End of Fanuary;

Vor lV.

Jor High-Treafon.

. Capt.Porter, Yes, there was Mr, De /s Rue, and .
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Capt, Charnock told me he wascome, but I was
then fick of the Gout, |

Sir B. Shower. Now then I would defire to know,
who was by, upon the Friday before the 22d,
at the Swn-Tavern in the Strand, when you and
Mr. Craunburne were there ?

Capt. Porter. 1 did tell you, Sir,

Sir B. Shower. 1 defire to know, whether there
was any Body belides Mr. Craunburue, Kendrick,
and Keys?

Capt, Porter. Sir, T will tell youall T can re-
member; I was in one Room with Sir Geprge
Barclay, and there was Sir #illiam Perkins, Capr.
Charnock, and myfelf; and afterwards I went in-
to another Room, where there was Kendrick, and
Cranburne, and Keys; and Feffrey Guan came in
afrerwards; I remember no Body elfe.

Mr. Phipps. Was not Gunu there when you
firft came In?

Capt. Porter. Tothe beft of my Remembrance,
he came In afterwards.

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, this may be a very
material Part of our Defence, and therefore we
muft enquire a little the more into it. Mr, Porter
is pleafed to fay, that he was in a Room with Sir
George Barclay, and Charnock, and Sit William
Perkins; and he came out into another Room
where was Mr. Cranburne, Kendrick, and Keys;
and there he fays, after he had been there fome
Time, Gunn came in; I defire to know whether
Gunn was there when he firft came in?

Capt. Porter. To thebeft of my Remembrance,
he came in afterwards; but [ cannot pofitively tell,
for I was in and out feverel Times.

Mr. Phipps. At the Time that you communi-
cated this Deflign to Mr. Cranburne, what faid he
to you?

Capt. Porter. When [ firlt commuiicated the
Thing to him, Itold him there was a Thing on
Foot for the Service of King Fames, and defired
him to go along with me,

L. C. }. What Kind of Service did you tell him
it was?

Capt. Porter. He asked me, what kind of Ser-
vice 1t was? I told him Sir George Barclay was
come over, and 1told the whole Defign of the
Aflaffination of the Prince of Orange, that it
was Intended to take him off, as he came from
Richmond from Huntng.

Mr. Pbhipps. And pray what did Mr. Cranburne

fay to you?

Capt. Porter. He faid he would be ready to go
along with me,

Mr. Phipps. You fay, youlent by him three
Cafe of Piftols to Sir William Perkins, at that
Time did you tell him for what Defign thofe
Piftols were?

Capt. Porter. I told him, they were for the
three Men that Sir William Perkins was to mount
upon three of his five Horles.

M. Cranburne. Did you fpeak to me to carry
thofe Piftols to Siv #illiam Perkins ?

Capt. Porter, I think o, to the belt of my Re-
membrance [ ordered you my felf to carry them.

Sir B. Shower. Captain Porter, 1 defireyou to
recolleCt your {elf, and tell us plainly, whether
the Defign was communicated to Mr, Granburue
before the 15th,

Capt. Porter. Certainly, Sir.

Sir B. Shower. Are you fure of it?

Capt, Porter, Yes, Sirs I am fure of it.

4+ X Sir



710 157. The Trial of Charles Cranburne; 8 Will. I11.

Sir B. Shower. 1 ask you, becaufe you know
what has been faid upon this Occafion in other
Trnals.

Cranburne, Where did you write the Note,
that you fay you fent to Sir William Perkins?

‘Was that Note fealed or was it not? '

Capt. Porter. 1 did not tell you that I writ a
Note.

Cranburne. You fwore that you wrote a Note,
and fent it by me to Sir William Perkins for two
Horles. |

Capt. Porter. I faid no {uch Thing, Sir. _

M. Sol. Gen. Look you, Capt. Porter, let him
ask you any Queftions, and if they be proper an-
{wer them, and let not his Affirmations or Mif-
takes provoke you to beangry. ‘ |

Capt. Porter. 1 faid, 1 fent him to Sir 77illiam
Perkins, for a Note to have the Horfes from M,
Lewis. _

Mr. Phipps. Did you fend him with a Letter,
or wasit a Meflage by Word of Mouth?

Capt. Porter. I did fend him by Word of
Mouth, for a Note.

L.C.7F. Pray Gentlemen, obferve the Lvi-
dence, Sir WWilliam Perkins wasto give a Note for
two Horfes, and Capt. Porzer fent Cranburne for
the Note.

Mr. Phipps. The Quetftion therefore that I ask,
is, Whether he fent a Letter for the Note, or
whether by Word of Mouth?

Capt. Porter. 1 fent by Word of Mouth.

Mr. Cranburne, Pray will you tell the Court
what you faid upon the 22d to Mr. Penderprafs
and me, after you came down from the Blye- Pofts
leéaning upon the Rail.

Capt. Porter. 1 don’t remember a Word of it,
for | cannot remember every Word that I have
{poken.

Sir B. Shower. 1 you can remember one Par-
ticular, fure you can remember another. 1f you
can’t remember this, how came you to remember
any Part of the Difcourfe that happen’d at the
Blue-Pofis?

Capt. Porter. Becaule that was material to this
Bufinefs, for 1 had very fcon after a particular
Occafion to recollect it upon the breaking out of
the Plot.

Mr. Cranburne. Pray what Hour was it this Sa-
turdey the 15th that you communicated this De-
fign to me?

Capt. Poiter. T cannot tell what Hour, but I
fay you met me at the Blue-Pofls Saturday the
15th.

SMr. Craxburie: You fay, youcommunicated it
to me the 15th,

My, At. Gen. He fays he communicated 1t to
you, before the 15th.

Mr. Cranburne, I delire to know where he was
the 14th,

Capt. Porter. 1 fay, one Day before the 15th;
i that Week I fent for you to come to my Lodg-
ings, and you did come, and there I communica-
ted 1t to you.

Craxburne. Sir, 1 was not at your Lodgings
that Week. |
- Mr, Phipps. What Day of the Week ?

Capt. Porter. 1 cannot be politive whether it
was 7burfdny, or Friday, or what Day; but one
Day that Wecek it was.

Mr. Phipps. You ought to be pofitive when it
was.

Capt. Porter, 1 do tell you as near as I can.

Mr. Phipps. With Submiffion, my Lord, he
ought to be pofitive one Way or other.

L. C.F. Nay, I don’t fee that he onght to be
politive to a Day ; he may be fo if he can.

Cranburie. Pray what Day did you fay you
fent me to Sir George Barclay ¢

Capt. Porter. I do not fay that I ever fent you
to Sir George Barclay?

Mr. Phipps. Can you take upon you to fay,
That he was at your Lodgings that Week before
the 15th?

Capt. Porter. To the beft of my Knowledge
it was one Day that Week.

Mr. Phipps. To the beft of your Knowledge :
Are you fure of it?

L. C. 7. Speak as certainly as you can.

Capt. Porter. Indeed, 1 believe fo, it was be-
fore the 15th. I am fure, I think, it was within
three or four Days after Sir George Barclay had
acquainted me with it, I fent to the Prifoner to
come to me to my Lodgings, at Mrs.—— in
Norfolk-fireet, and acquainted him with it.

L.C.7. And when you acquainted him with
it, What did you tell him? What Part was he to
act in 1c?

Capt. Porter. Ttold him, Twould have him go
along with me, and that I had fet him down for
one of my Party, and would provide him Horfe
and Arms; and he did agree to go along with
me,

Siv B. Shower. Mr. Webber, Pray let me fee
Charnock’s Trial.

Mr. §b. Buckingbam. Why, Sir Bartholomew,
15 the Trial any Evidence?

Sir B, Shower. Mr, Sheriff, I know what Ufe I
can make of it.

My, Sol. Gen. Will you ask him any more
Quellions?

Sir B. Shower. No, Sir.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Then {wear Mr. Dela Rue. (which
was done,)

Pray, Sir, give the Court, and the Jury, an Ac-
count what you know of the intended Affaffina-
tion, and what Share the Prifoner had in it.

Mr. Dela Rue, It 1s too long a Story to tell you
all that 1 know of this Matter; but, it you pleafe,
I will tell you what concerns the Prifoner at the
Bar. I am heartily forry that I have Qccafion to
appear againft him, as I would be truly againft
any Body: But {ince I am here upon my Oath, I
muft declare the Truth, and nothing but the
Truth; and I hope I fhall not declare any Thing
but what 13 Truth. Upon Saturday the 15th of
February, the Day that the Defign was to have
been put in Execution againft his Majefty, and all
that were in the Coach with him, and againft his
Guards, I went to Mr. Charnock’s Lodgings in
Norfolk-fireet, to inform my felf whether they
refolved on that Day to go out upon the De-
figns and Ifound by Mr, Charnock that they did
refolve it, and I ftayed there a while, till fuch
Time as Mr. Chambers came in; 1 did notknow
whence he came then, but, as I was informed af-
terwards, he came from Kenfington to Mr, Char-
nock, and his Boots were dirty; and Mr. Charnock
told me he had fent a Meffenger to Mr. Porter;
And, fays he, if you will ffay alittle Time, I fhoall
have an Anfwer. The Meflenger came back, and
told him, That Capt. Porter din’d at the Blne-Pofts
in Spring-Garden. 1 did not go to dine with him,
but- went Home, where 1 faw Mr, King at my
Lodging, who told me, that the King did not go

out
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out that Day. I told him, I heard he did not :
I tound by Mr. Chambers’s coming back, and that
we had no notice from Mr. Charnock, that it was
concluded the King did not go out as it was fup-
pofed he fhould bave gone.  When | had dined
ac my Lodging, I went to the Blue-Poffs in
Spring-Garden, to Mr. Porter, and there were tour,
or five, or fix People with him; there was one
Mr. Sherbors, and Mr. Kendrick, and two People
that 1 never faw belore, and another Perlon, but
I can’t tell row who he was. When we had
been there a little while, comes in this unfortunate
Muan at the Bar, Mr. Cranburne 3 T don’t know
where he had beeny bue by s comuig in fo
laee, I fuppole he had not dined, and Le ordered
the Drawer to get him {ome Coftelets.  This s
all I can fay as to that Day. T bad {een Caprain
Porter twice or torice between that and the 22d,
and he defired me to be at home on Friduy
Night between Eight and Nine, and he wonld
fend to me: e did fend, and I was from
home, But when | came I was nformed his
Servant had been to fpeals with me s and in the
Morning, about Eight or Nine o’clocis, Saturday
the 22d, he fene his Servant to mie to tell me wis
Mafter would fpeak with me at his Lodgings. |
went to his Lodgings, and he thea lay m M-
dei-Lane, at one Drown’s a Surgeon: YWhen |
came in, he was in Bed; and he wld me in
French, Touts Parties font prefls, All Parties are
ready, I underftood all along that there were
three Parties to be. engaged ; one to attack the
King’s Coach, and the two others the Guards:
Sir Geerge Raiciey was to bead the irft, and Porver,
and Rookwsed, the reft.  Mr, Porter arole and
dreffed himfelt, and v came Mr. Cianburne; and
M. Porter wen: out to him in the Dining-Room,
and what he £id I can’e weli: Bur {foon after came
in Pendercrafs, Mr. Keys, and Mr, Kimg, and
then he takes Pen, Ini, and Paper.

Sir B. Strwwer. Who tool rhat?

N, DL’ {ﬂ' .Rt'.‘:’ CLLPI:‘..{H _!rjv} (cr :.00]{ PCH, In}.{,
and Paper, an< wiies down a Lift ot his Party,
and puis me Jown firfl. Mr, Pendergrafs asked
me it 1 was the Captain, and I made him fome
Anfwer, but what in pudcular T cannot teil 5 1
think I told him 1 kucw of the Thing before the
moft did. But I can remember particularly thae
Lik was given to Mv. Ciazburne, 1o carry to
Mr. Charnock 5 upon what Account 1t was, | can-
not tells but I concluded, that Mr. Cherieck was
to be acquainted with thofe Perfons that Mr. Poy-
1o was fare of : And Mr. Porter at that ume
told me that he was difappointed of fome
Peoole, and defired me to get him fome other
Men in their Booms; and he {ent particularly to
one that Mr. Kizg propofed ; and I did go, and
brought him to the Blue-Pofls, where Captain
Poster told me he was to dine 3 and the Gentleman
1 went to, told me he would meet me at the Blue-
Pofts in Spiing-Garden, When 1 came back to Mr.
Porter's Lodgings, Mr, Porfer and Mr. Pendesgrafs,
and Mr. O.dfield, and I, went in a Coach to the
Blue-Pofis in Spriina-Garden; and when we had
‘been there a little while, Mr. Cranburne came back
to give an Account of the Errand Mr. Porier had
fent him upon, and he brings this Lift.

M, Ait.Gen. \Who brought it ?

My, Dela Rue. M. Cranburie.

Crandurie. Whither did 1 bring 1t 2

Mr. Dela Rue. To the Blue-Pofts in Spring-
Gaiden.

Vor. IV.

Jor High-"Trealon.

Al

L. C. ¥. You muft not ask ary Queflions till
they have done wira kim.  But Mr, De /o Rue,
let me ask you winat Day was this?

Mr. De la Kue. ‘This was Satnrday the 22d of
February; and he toid Wir, Porter there wasa Lilt
of Mr. Charnoct’s Wen at the bottom of that Lift ;
and I tock the Lift in my Hand, and there was
Mr. Charnock's Lift of Six or Seven, or rhepe-
abouis, of his Party, and at the bor cinol 1 was
R. C. [ think, for Rebert Ch.runock. Mr. Porter
takes Mr, Cranburne from the Company into ano-
ther Room, and 1 went after them, and he told
Captain Porter, in my hearing, that the King did
not gooutthat Day.  There is one Thing I forgot
which now I rceolledt, and 1 am upon my Q.th
to tell the Truth, andg the whole Truth,  When
I was at Mr. Porter’s Lodging, he told me the
King was to goout; and that Mr. Chambers,
the orderly Man, had {ert word, That the King
refolved to go out between Ten and Eleven.

L. C. ¥, Who fud fo?

Mr.Dela R..e. Mr. Crazburze told me fo ar M.
Porter’s Locgings, 1 fay I bad forgor it, bar it
occurs to my Mumory row, tha o wld methere
before he went to che Blie-FPeis, that the King
did go our thar Duv toween "Vep and Lleven ;
for Mr. Clambers, the orderly Man, hal been
with Mr, Charucck or Sir 5 1ciam Perkigs, (o let
them know fo much. Anag atre-werd's when he
came back with the Lift of Corpvan Porzer’s Men,
to Captain Porter at the Blue-Poffs n the Spring-
Gardeir » there was at the oot of that 1at, a
Litt of Mr. L5 aeck’s ien in another Hand, 1
fuppofe writ by himfclf, but thac T canner fwear
whof IHand it was s and Vi Porter tonk him inio
ancther Room, and then Mr. Crrozr4 told him
the King did not go out, and! believe it was then
berween 11 and 12 o'clock ;3 and he aifo toid
Iiv, Perter, that Mr, Chairnect was avprencnfive
the Thing was difcovered, and therefore defired
him to have a care of himicii, for he himfelf was
refolved not to Jie at home that Nighty I think,
my Lord, Mr. Poster did fend back Mr. Cran-
burie to Mr, Charnick, 1 cannot be pofitive whe-
cher he did or not, but I believe he did 5 hecaufe I
am {ure Mr., Cranburie aid wll Mr. Perter, Sir
Geoige Barclay “would Ipruk with him; and Mr.
Porter made Anfwer, why thould he defire meto
g0 to him, when he knows 1 am under fome ill
Circumitances, and he can better come to me ?
and I believe Mr. Perter did fend Nin Cianburie
once again to Mr. Charrsck.

L.C. ¥ Wdl, pray do not fay any thing of
any Matter, but what youcan be pahtive in.

Mr. Dela Rue. But Mr. Perter did ot go to
Mr. Chaviock, nor did Mr, Clariock come to
him, therefore they ity d there anc dined ; and af-
ter Dinner, or a little before Dinner, Keys the
Trumpeter came up and told us, that my Lord
of Oxford's Regiment of Guar.s was returned trom
Richmond, foaming: Keys wen: Jown Stairs a-
oain to learn Intelfigence, as | thousht, and came
up and told us he faw the King’s LUaches newly
retarned to the Aenfe, and Mr. G abuine was
by all the Time ; I think this was berore Dinner,
and then we went to Dinner,

L. C. %. 1 tell youagain, don’t fpeak any thing
that is material, but what you canbe pofiive In,

M. De la Rue. 1 am pofitive as to the Thing,
and that it was the 22d of february, but 1 cannct
be pofitive as to all the Circumftances. Aftr
Dinner there was the ufual Healths, the Jacobite
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Healths to King Fames, and the Prince of Vales,
and the Reftoration, and the Jike 5 and after that
I think it was Mr, Porter took an Orange in his
Hand, and fqueez’d it, I am fure onein the Com-
pany did, and drank fomething to the Rotten
Orange, I cannot very well remember juft now
what it was; bat I would be cautious of {aying a-
ny thing but whatis Truth; butif your Lordfhip
will give me leave to recollect my felf, I will tell
you what it was——Oh! it was to the fqueezing
of the Rotten Orange, and the Health went
round, and Mr. Crauburne was in the Company,
and drank the Health, But being difappointed
and fruftrated of the Defign by the King’s not go-
ing abroad that Day, and Mr. Pester being cau-
tioned by Mr. Charnock to take care of himfelf, and
being told that Mr. Charnock would not lieat home
that Night, and the Guards returning in that
manner, they were all apprehenfive that the thing
had taken Air, and the Defign of Aflaflinating the
King was difcovered, and therefore Mr. Poricr
concluded of going out of Town 3 feveral Healths
were drunk round, and 1 think about Two o’clock
he went out of Town, and then the Company
broke up. Thisiswhat I can fay as to the Prifo-
ner, and | hope I have faid nothing but what is
Truth.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Then, my Lord, we defire to
know whether they will ask him any Queftions ?

Mr. Phipps. At the time you fay this Lift was
given by Captain Porter, to Mr., Cranburre, did
Mr. Porter declare to what purpofe the Lift was
fent ?

Mr. Dela Rue. No, Sir, not a Word of any
fuch thing. Mr. King was by, and Mr. Peirdei-
grafs was by, and I think Mr. Keys was by, and
he writ a Lift of his Party, putting me down
firlt 5 and Mr. Pendergrafs faid to me, you are
Captain, and he gave it to Mr. Crauburne to car-
ry 1t to Mr. Charnock 3 what the particular Mcf-
fage was, I cannot be pofitive : Indeed I don’t ve-
ry well remember the Meffage, but the Lift was
carried to Mr. Charznck, and to the beft of my
memory it was to give Mr. Charnock an Account
what Men he was fureof 5 for Mr. Porter told me
of feveral Difappointments he had had, of Per{ons
that had promifed him, and failed.

Mr. Phipps, Can you remember what Mr, Craz-
burae {aid upon that?

Alr. De la Rule. No, I do not.

Cranpurne. What Meflage was that, you fay,
1 brought from Sir George Barclay ?

Mr. De la Rue. 1 do not fay that you brought
any Meflage from Sir George Bardlay.

Cranburne. You faid that I brought a Meflage
that Sir George Barclay would fee him.

My, De la Rue. 1 donot fay {o ; but1 fay that
you told Mr. Porter that Mr. Charnock fent you
with a Meflage to let him know that Sir George
Barclay was defirous to fee Mr. Porter, to conter
about taking care of themfelves;

Cranburne. Did you hear me name Sir George
Barclay’s Name?

Mr. De la Rue. Yes, 1 fay you told Mr. Porter
that Mir. Charnock bid you caution him to take
care of himfelf, and that he would go that way,
for Sir George Barelay, and he, defired to fee him ;
and Mr. Perter {aid 1t was an unreafonable thing
for Mr. Charnock 1o defire ir, becaufe they knew
he was under Circumftances that it was not proper

for him to go, and he wondered they would not
rather come to him,

L. C. 7. What time a Day was this ?
Mr, De la Rue., 1t was about T'welve o’clock .

1 think.

L.C.7. Was it after fuch time as the News
was brought that the King did not go abroad thar
Day?

Mr.Deln Rue. Yes, my Lord, it was after
that time.

Mr. Phipps. Were you with Sir George Barelay
when he was here in England 2 Did you fee him
here ?

Mr. De la Ree. 1 did not fee him on this fide
of the Water. | knew him abroad, ard a great
many other unfortunate Perfons, that were con-
cerned in this Affair 5 I knew fome of them here,
and that they were concerned in the Defign, but
I did not converle with many, indeed with but a
very few about it ; for to fhew that 1 was not a
Man that defigned to trepan or enfnare any Man,
I did never exchange two Words about this
Matter with any Perions that 1 knew were con-
cerned 1 it, but Sir Billiam Perkins, (and that
but in a {mall meafure) and Mr. Charnock and
Mr. Pcrter, and Mr. King, and Col, Parker 5 ex-
cept what pafied upon the 22d, berween Mr. Poy-
tery and Mr. Chariock, when Mr. Porter fent Mr.
Craiburne to Mr. Charnock.  Mr. Cranbusse was
one who Mr. Porter called his Quarter-Mafter : I
know this Gentleman was commonly depending
upon Mr. Pertery but 1 think I never was much
in his Company, Idid not know what D:fign he
had upon him, but I was told by Mr, Poster, that
he-intended to make him his Quarter-Mafter, and
I underftood Mr. Perter was to have a Troop of
Horfe in Col. Parkei’s Regiment.

Mr. Plipps. You fay you knew a great many
of them that were concerned, but you difcourfed
and converfed but with a few?

Ay, De la Rue. 1 do fo, Sir.

Mr. Phipps. Flow do you know that they wers
concerned, when you did not difcourfe with
them?

Mr. Dela R1e. By Information from Mr. Char-
nock and Mr, Porter,

Mr. Pbipps. Do you know any thing more of
Mr. Granburne, than the Lilt, and what you have
faid already?

My. De la Rue. 1 give you an Account of all
that I do know.

L. C. j. Anfwer that particular Queftion. Do
you know nothing more than what you have faid ?

M. Dela Ree. No, my Lord, I'do not remem-
ber nor know any more as to Mr. Cranburse than
what I bave deciared, and I am forry I had occa-
fion to declare {fo much,

Mr. Ait. Gen. "Then call Mr. Penderprafs, (who
was [worn.)

My, Sol. Gen, Pray will you give my Lord and
the Jury an Account of what you know of the
Intended Aflaflination, and how far Mr. Crai-
buyne, the Prifoner at the Bar, was concerned in
it,

Captain Pencergrafs. My Lord, the 13th of F-
bruary iaft, I came out of Hampfhire, Mr. Por-
ter {ent for me to come to Town, and I met him
that Day at the Blue- Pofts in Spring-Garden, and
there he told me of the Affaflination that was
to be done on Saturday following: The next
Day we dined at the Rofe-Tavern, where the
Prifoner dined with us, and we talk’d of the Bu-

[inefs, that was Fridav the yath, and we were
to be in readinefs the next Day to affaffinate the

King,
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King, as he was coming from Richmond ; but
fome Company coming 1n afterwards, we left off
the Difcourfe, and talk’d no more that Night.
‘I'he next Day that we were to do the Bufinefs,
we met at the Blue-Pofis in Spring- Garden, and
finding the King did not go abroad that Saturday,
we dined there at the Blue- Pofts, and talk’d over
again of Affaflinating the King, and the Prifoner
was by at the fame time ; they were all mightily
concerned the King did not go that Saturday; bat
when we had dined there, we had no further Dif-
courfe about the Affaflination that Day, but every
body was to prepare againt tite next Saturday,

L. C. ¥. Was that agreed upon then 2

Capt. Pendergrafs, Yeus, it was, by all the Com-
pany ; fo we parted that Day. Some time the
next Week I met Mr, Porter, and Mr, Porter
ask’d me if I had 2 Horteman's Sword ; 1 told
him, No: Says he to Mr. Cranburne, let Capiain
Pendzrygrafi have one of the Horfemen’s Swords
that you have got.  Says Mr. Cranburne to me,
i you will come to my Houle you thall make choice
of one yourleif, for | have feveral at home. Said I,
NViv. Cornboarre, 1 cannot go that Way, bur Il
take one of your cuecling, if fo be you'll leave
it at my Lodgings : He faid he would do it, and
did; Le left it at my Lodyings 1n Suffole- Street,
which Sword I have ftill. The Day following
] iniee bim, and he ask’d me if I had received the
Sword; 1 faid I had it and he fuid, 1t wasvery
well,  After this 1did not fee Mr. Cranbarne till
Saturday the 22d, at which Time 1 came to Mr,
Perter’s Lodeings between Nine and Ten oclock
in the Morning, and the Prifoner at the Bar was
there, and I heard Mr, Porser give him a Meffage
to go to Sir /Villiam Perkins for fome Horles, I
know not how many. The Prifoner went, and in
{fome time after, came back again, and brought
an Account that the King went out that Saturday
the 22d to Richmoid ; {o every body was to get
ready : And Mr. Cranburue fard, that Mr. Char-
nock delired that Mr. Porter would fend a Lift of
his Men ; upon which Mr. Porter wrote a Laft of
his Men, and gave it to the Prifoner to carry it to
Mr. Charnock, and bid him meet him at the
Bluc- Pofts 5 and Mr. Poricr, and Mr. De la Rue,
and I, took Coach, and went down to Spring-
Garden, and when we came to the Blue-Pofts,
there were fome Perfons that I think Mr. De s
Rue had appointed to come there ; the Prifoner
comes thither, and brought the Lift back, with
a Litt of Mr. Charnock's Men underneath. I
know not who the Men were, for I faw it only
on the one Side of the Table, in Mr, Peries’s
Hand; at the fame Time the Prifoner brought
an Account, that the King did not go Abroad
that Day, and prefently after we had the fame
Account from other Hands; and Captain Perter
and I went out of Town, and we heard no more
of 1.

L.C. F. Are you {ure that he did agree to this
Matter before the 15th?

Capt. Pendcsgrafs. Yes, I am fure of 1, he
agreed to it Friday the 14th, at the Rofe-Tavern
in Covent-Gardeit,

L.C. ¥. On the 15th, it feems they were dif-
appointed ; are you fure there was an Agrecment
to purfue it the 22d?

Capt. Pendergrafs. Yes, Iam fure there was,
my Lord.

L. C. 7. Was the Prifoner there ?

Capt. Pendergrafs. Yes, my Lord, Iam fure
that the Prifoner at the Bar was there.

Sfor High-Trealon.
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Cranburne. Pray, Mr. Pendergrafs, was there
any Difcourfe about this Thing when I was there?
Capt. Pendergrafs. Yes, Mr, Cranburie, you
cannot but remember there was,
Cranburse. What Hour did I come there, pray
Sir?
Capt. Pendergrafs. Truly, T cannot be pofitive
to an Hour; but you were there while the Dif-
courfe was,
Cranburie. Whether I did ftay there all the
while, and who was in the Company ?
Capt. Pendergrafs, All the Company broke up

about fix o’clock, there was Mr. King, Captain
Porter, Mr. Kendrick, Mr. Cranbuyrne, Mr. Keys,

and myfelf.

Cranburne, Was Kendrick there when I was
there?

Capt. Pendergrafs, Yes, I am fure of it I will
do you all the Juttice in the World that I can.

Str B, Siewer. You fay, Sir, he did agree upon
tl}c ::I +th to this Defign 5 pray what Words did he
ufc:

Capt. Pendergrafs. He did agree that we thould
atiack the King the next Day.

Str B. Shower. Pray, Sir, 1f you can recollet
yourfelt; what did the Prifoner fiy, or whether
you took him to agree by being filent ?

Capt. Peadergrafs, He faid, he hop’d we fhould
cxecute our Bufinefs the next Day,

L. C. F. What Day was that ?

Capt. Pendergrafs. That was the 14th of Febru-
ary, and the fame Night I gave Account of the
Matter to my Lord Portland,

Mr. Pioipps. Did he agree to be one in the Exe-
cution of the Defign?

Capt. Pendergrafs, Yes, he did; he difcourfed
the ivlatter to me himielf.

Mr. Ail. Ges. My Lord, we have done with
our Evidence.

L.C. 7. Well; then what fay you to it for the
Prifoner?

Str B. Shower. My Lord, what we have to fay
on behalf of the Prifoner in this Refpet is this
Here are but three Witnelles produced, and as to

one of them, De la Rue, there is no Evidence
that he gives your Lordfhip and the Jury, that
affelts tlus Matter, but only that there was a
Lift given by Captain Porter, and carried by the
Prifoner to Mpr, Charnock, and fo brought back
apain, But he does not recollect, nor fwear to
any Meflage that was fent from Porter by the
Prifoner to Mr. Charnock: Now, my Lord, the
bare Carrying of a Note of Names will be no
Evidence of Treafon. Mr. D¢ /e Rue does not
fwear to any Privity of the Prifoner, what the
Lift was for, nor to the Delivery of the Lift,
which is the Overt-A&t in the Indi@ment; nor
upon what Account this Lift was written, or fent,
or brought back again, or any Word that pro-
ceeded from Captain Porter to him upon giving
the Lift, or any Word when it was brought back
again. S0 that as to De /e Rue’s Teftimony, we
muft {ubmit it to the Memories and Recollection
of your Lordthip and the Jury; we think he
only proves a Plot in general, of which there 1s
no peradventure, cvery body is fatished, that
there was fuch a horrible Confpiracy : Thofe that
have been condemned and executed for it, have
own’d it, and fo it can never be doubted, but he
does not fay any Thing to afle¢t the Prifoner ac
the Bar; for as to the Drinking of Healths, and
being prefent when thofe Healths were drurl:k,

tho'



714 157. The Tr}'al of Charles Cranburne, 31 Car.IL

tho’ it be an Evidence of Difaffection to the Go-
vernment, or too much good Manners and Com-
plaifance to the Company a Man is in; yet that
Difaftettion, or civil Temper, or Complailance,
we hope are no Evidences of Treafon. It is plain
the Prifoner did depend very much upon Caprain
Postery he was in TTuth his Servant to go of his
Errands, and expeéed an Office from him, God
knows when; but it does not appear by any par-
ticular AQion, that he did any thing that can
be Treafon, upon a1r. D2 [a Rue’s Evidence. Fhen
as to what Mr, Pendersrafs fays, 1 mult confels his
Evidence comes Home : For he fays there was a
Defizn of the Aflaflination, and fome Agrecment
of the Prifoner to it ; but I muft beg vour Lord-
fhip’s Favour to obferve, upon Mr., Peadergrafs's
Evidence, if that ftand alone, it will be but one
Witnefs, and then we are fafe by the Purview of
this Act of Parliament,

L. C. ¥ Ay, and by the Law, before the
making of that Act,

Sir B. Shower, Then, as to Captain Porter, 1
muft beg leave to fay, 1f our Witnefles are come
that were ablent at the other Tral, and they
prove what isin my Inftructions, 1t will be very
much queitionable, whether there be any Credibi-
lity due to his Telimony : Then 1f you take off
his Teftimony, there s only the Evidence of Mr.
Pendergrafsy and it he be to be believed, to
which I have nothing to fay at prefent, in the Cafe
of a Man’s Lifc, upon an Indictment of Treafon,
where the Law requires two credible Witnefies,
his fingle Teftimony is not {utficient to convidt the
Prifoner. 'We beg Leave to calt our Wienefics,
and then we fhall leave it to your Lordfhip, and
the Jury.

&r. Phipps.  As to the particular Overt-Aét
fid in the Indi€tment, the carryiag about the
Lift, only Mr. De la Rue {peaks to 1t, and Sir
Barthelamew Shezwer has given 1t an Anfwer, and
I thall not repeat it.

L.C. 7. Look ye, for that, if any ope Overt-
A& is prov’d by two YWitnefles, 1t’s well enough.,

Alr. Sol. Geir. Befices, they miftake, my Lord,
cxtremely 5 for Captain Porter, and Mr. Pender-
giafs, Ipeak both of them to that Parricular, as
to the Lift.

Sir B. Sheweer, We do not deny it; the Que-
flion is, Whether you have two credible Wit-
nefles ¢

Cranburne. Pray, Mr. Pendergrafs, do you re-
member what Caprain Perter faid 10 you, and I,
when we came down to the Blue-Pofts, leaning
upon the Rail ?

Capt. Pendergrafs. Indeed, Sir, I do not.

Craiburne, 1 would have you recollet yourfelf;
as we ftood againft the Rails in Spring-Garden,
when we came down from the Blue-Pofts, alter
the Defign mifcarry’d, Mr., Porter faid, Mr., Char-
nock, and they, might thank themfelves if 1t were
difcovered 5 For, fays he, [never communicated &
Pord of this Thing to any of my Party.

Capi. Pendergrafs, Indeed 1 don’t remember a
Word of it, Sir,

Mr, Plipss. My Lord, we have one Piece of
Evidence to offer agaft the Teftimony of Cap-
tain Porfer : He fays, That he {ent Cranburne with
Gun from the Cock-pit to fee for Hackney- Hor-
{es, and that Crauburse came to hun to the Suu-
Tavern, and there they had fome Difcourfe about
executing the Defign the next Day 5 and being
ask’d, Who was by, when he communicated the

Defign to Cranburne, and particularly, Whether
Mr., Gannwas by ? He {ays he came in afterwards,
but was not there at the Time of the Communica-
tion about the Defign. Now we fhall prove that
Gunn came in with the Prifoner, and was witl
him all the Time, and there was no fuch Dif
courfe happen’d.

Sir B. Shower, Call Feffery Guim, and Mary
Geriard, | They apgeared.,]
Your Lordfhip will obferve, what Captain Porter
{fwore, That he went into the Room to Cranburye,
and Gunn was not there : Now, if we falfify him
in that Particular, we fhall fubmit to your Lord-
fhip how far he Is to be believed in the reft,

Mr. dit. Gen, Pray, Sir Bartholomerw, ask your
Witnefles what you will, but make no Defcants
upon their Evidence till you have heard them.

Then the tivo Hitielfes swere frvoril,

L.C. ¥. Well, look ye, you are both upon your
Oaths, Confider what you fay, {pcak the Truth,
and tell all that you know, and nothing but the
Truth, Which do you begin with?

Adr. Phipps. Jeffeiv Gumn @ Pray, Mr. Guun,
did you go to the Szu-Tavern at any Time with
Mr, Cranburie ¢

Guimn, Yes, 1 did.

Air. Phipps. What Day of the Month was it ?

Gunn, | cannot pofutively tell the Day, it was
of a .Z}I{ff'{}‘

Sir B, Shower, Was it of o Friday, in Iihiu-
ary, or January ¢

Guin, It was w February.,

Ar, Phpps. Was it before the Plot bioke out?

Gunn, Yes, 1t was.

Air. Phipps, How long was it before the Plot
broke out ?

Gunn, 1 cannot tell that, truly.

Mr. Phipps. Whence did you go?

Guan. 1 was at the Cock-pit, and I went from
thence to the Sun-Tavern,

Sir B, Shower. VWaom did you meet there ?

Guin, 1 faw Captain Porter there.

Sty B. Shower. What Room were you in?

Guun. We went thto a Room next the Street,

Sir B. Shewer. Who was there with you ?

Gunn, There was Mr. Cranbuiie, and 1, and
Mr., Kevs.

Sir B, Shower. How long was 1¢ before Mr.
Porier came 1n to you ?

Guin. He came in about half a quarter of an
Four after I was there,

Sir B. Shower. Were you there from the Begin-
ning tll Mr. Craubuise went away.

Guan, Mr. Cranburne, and'l, went from the
Cock-pit together.

Sir B, Shower, How long did you ftay there?

Guii. I was there about an Hour and a half,

Sir B. Shower., Were you out of the Room at
all in that Time?

Guii. Yes, I was out of the Room once.

Sir B. Showe-, How long were you out of the
Room?

Gunn. 1 went Home to my Lodging,

Sir B. Shower. Were you ever with Mr., Cran-
burne at the Sun-Tavern at any Time befides this?

Guann, Never in my Life,

§ir B, Shewer. Whom did you leave with him
when you went out ?

Gunn, Capt, Porter, and Mr, Keys, as I remem-
ber.

Sir
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Sir B. Shower. Were you there before Captain
Porter came to him?

Gumn. I was with Mr. Cranburne, and Caprain
Porter came in about a Quarter of an Hour after
we came from the Cock- it together.

Sir B. Shower, Pray recollett your felf, and tell
us upon your Oath, were you there when Capt.
Porter came in ¢

Gunn. Yes, | think I was there when Capt. Por-
fer came 1n.

Sir B. Shower. Did you go and leave him there?

Gunn. We went all out together. I was there
about an Hour and half.

L.C. F. Nay, but you faid you were abient
fome Time.

Gunn. 1 went Home, and came back again,

Sir B. Shower. When you went FHome, did you
leave Mr. Cranburie behind you?

Gunn, Yes, I think fo.

Mr. Phipps. Did you leave Captain Porter with
him 2

Gunn. 1 think Capt. Porser was with him then,

Mr. Phipps. But upon your Oath, was you In
Company with Mr. Cranbarne at the Sun-Tavern,
when Capt. Porter came firlt in?

Gunn. Capt. Porter went 1n and out feveral

Times.
Sir B. Shower. Did you fee Capt, Porter before

you went to your own Houfe?

Guni. Yes, fure.
Mr, Phipps. '{"hen it cannot be true what Mr,

Porter fays, that Gunn did not come in tli after-
wards.

Mr. 4. Gen. Now, Mr, Guan, Iwould ask you
a Quettion or two firft, Were you there all the
while that Mr. Cranburie was there, or did you
go Home?

Guin. 1 went Home.

Mr. At. Gen. Did you come back again?

Gunn. Yes, I went home and eat fome Victuals,

Mr. 4t Gen. How long were you abfent?

Gunn. I came back in half a quarter ofan Hour.

Me., At Gen. How far is it to your Houfe?

Guinr. *Tis not above 100 Yards.

Sir B. Shower. Did Mr. Porter come in to you
before you went Home, when you firft came in
with Cranburne ?

Gunn. He came in after we were in the Room.

Mr, Phipps. Capt. Porter {faid, when he came
into the Room Gunn was not there,

L. C. ¥. He did not fay poli:ively, but as he
remember’d; now I would ask you a Queftion
oF tWO.

Sir B. Shower. Pray my Lord, our Inference from
this Evidence is this: Capt. Porter fays, that upon
Friday the 211t of February he was with Crau-
burne at the Swn-Tavern, and out of one Room
into another he came to Mr. Cranburne, and talk’d
with him of this Defign, and after that Gumi came
in to the Room, after the Communication was
over: Now this Man fwears he went from the
Cock-Pit with Mr. Cranburne, he was with him
in the Room at firft when Capt. Porfer came;
fome Time afterwards he went to his own Houfe,
and left Captain Porter with Mr. Cranbyrne, and
came back again, and they came away together:
Now we fay, thefe two are inconfiftent 5 for Capt,
Porter {wears that Gunin was not there till after che
Communication was over.

L. C.F. As he remembers,

Mr. Phipps. Nay, I think' he was-pofitive he
came in afterwards. .

L
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L.C. ¥. As Iremember he was not pofitive,
but call Capt. Porter again, ,

Mr, Phipps. When you came back from your
Houfe, who were in the Room?

Guin. The fame Company as I left, as far as
I remember,

Mr. Mountague. Was Capt, Porter inthe Room
when you came back ¢

Gunn. Indeed I can’t directly tell, I believe he
was.

L. C. ¥. Pray obferve what your Witnefs fays:
He fays, Capt. Porter came 1n and out, and was
there feveral Times before he went away.

Gunn. Yes, my Lord, he was fo.

L.C. 7. And you were abfent fome Time, but
were you there fome Time before Porter came 1n?

Gunn, Yes, 1 belicve I was.

Then Capt. Porter came in.

Mr. At. Gen. Look ye, Capt. Porter, you fez
that Man there?

Capt Porter. Yes.

Mr. 4. Gen. Pray give an Account of what
you know of that Man’s coming in to you at the
Sun-"Lavern.

Capt. Porter. 1 came feveral Times out of Sir
George Barclay’s Room into theirs, and to the befl
of my Remembrance, Mr. Cranbnine was there
before Guan came in,

Sir B. Shower. Do you remember whether the
firlt Tiume that you went our of Sir George Bar-
clay’'s Room to fpeak with Mr, Cranburre, Mr.
Gunn wasthere?

Capt. Porter, To the beft of my Remembrance
he was not; to the beft of my Remembrance,
Mr. Guna, 1 faw Mr. Cranbursie in the Room
betore you was there.

Sir B. Shower. Did not you order Guun to
come with him to the Sa#-Tavern ?

Capt. Porter. Yes; Sir, I did.

Sir B. Shower. Cannot you tell whether they
came together ¢

Capt. Porter. 1 wasnot in the Room when they
came in fuft, but to the beft of my Remembrance
he was not there when I came 1n the firft Time.

L. C.}. Now, Gunn, you hear what Capt. Por-
ter fays, before you went away to your own Houfe
did Mr. Porter come fnto the Room to you?

Ginn, Indeed, my Lord, Iam not pofitive, I
think he did.

Mr. At. Gen. Neither of them is pofitive, and
it isa Circumftance not very material; for it feems
he was abfent, and then the Difcourfe might
be,

L.C.¥. No, it 13 not material, but you fee
upon a {trit Examination what it comes to?

Sir B. Shower. They are agreed upeon it I per-
ceive, to be pofitive on neither Side.

Mr. Phipps. Mr. Cranburre, pray ask Mrs.
Gerrard what you have a mind.

Cranburne. Pray what do you know of Capt.
Porter’s going out'in Difguife, and wearing falfe
Hair and Vizards, and going upon the Highway,

and fuch things?
Gerrard. 1 know not what Mr, Cranburne

means. | A which the Peaple langi’d, ]
Sir B. Shower. It is no laughing Matter, when
a Man 15 upon his Laife.

L. C. ¥, No, no; let
fwer the Queftion:

him have. fair Elag.;- An-

Cranburie:
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Cranbyrne. Do you know any thing of. your
Mafter’s going abroad in Difguifes?

Gerrard. 1 do not know any thing of my Mal-
ter’s going upon the Highway. |

L.C.¥. Did he go out with Vizards, or any
fuch Things? |

Gerrard. I never faw him wear a Vizard or
falle Beard in my Life, but he had once a Patch

on when he was forced to keep out of the way,
upon the Account of the Dsg-Tavern Buftnefs in

Drury-Lane,
Mr. Phipps. See if Mr. Edwaird Boucher 1s here.
[ He was call’d, but did net appear.]
Sir B. Shower. Call Mrs. Busrton. [Which <was

doire, but fhe did not appear.]
Mr. Phipps. Is William Hardyman here? [ He

was call’d, but did not appear,]

Sir. Shower. Then call Sunon Dawfon, and we
have done. [#hich was done.]

Crier. They are all call’d, but they do not
appear. :
Sir B, Shewer. My Lord, we muft fubmit 1t
to your Lordfhip’s DireCtions, upon the Evidence
that has been given, as to the Credibility of thefe
Witnefles, and whether what Capt. Poiter fays,
and what G fays be confiltent; o that you can
be fatisfied there are Two Lawful Credible Wit-
nefles to prove any Overt-Adt.

L.C.¥. Yes{ure, butl would have you debate
it, if you believe there be any thing 1n 1.

Sir B. Shower. I fubmit it to your Lordthip’s

Directions.
L.C.¥. The Queftion is, Whether I {houid

give any Directions at all or no, or whether there
be any Occafion for i?

Crarnburne. 1 declare this openly before this
Honourable Court, and {o many Noblemen as are
here, that Mr. Porter never made me acquainted
with this Defign, till what he {wore here.

L.C. ¥ I can'’t tell, *tis fworn by two Wit-
nefies.

Cranburne, 1 do declare, tho® Capt Pendergrafs
fays he does not ren-~mber it, that Capt Purter
did declare in Spring-Garden the 22d, when he
came out of the Bine-Pofis by the Rails, 1f this
Defign milcarry, fays he, Mr. Charnock, may
thank himfelf; for I never communicated this Se-
cret to any of my Friends.

L. C. 7. Bur hark ye, do you confider what
you fay, if this Defign mifcarry: Pray what De-
fign was that?

Cranburne. He never named any thing but the
Defign, he did not fay what it was.

L. C. . But why were you employ’d to carry
a Lift from Capt. Porter to Mt. Charneck and to
bring a Lift back again from him to Capt. Porter ?

Cranburne. 1 did carry the Note, but there was
-nothing mentien’d what the Lift was for,

L. C. ¥. Then you were there on Friday, the
14th, 2nd there the Defign was propofed to Affaf-
finate the King the next Day, and you engag'd
an 1t

Cranburne. Not a Word of it true, my Lord.

L.C.77. Aybut Mr. Pendergrafs fwears it, and
that you were hearty in the Matter, and hop’d
'you fhould do your Bufinefs the next Day.

Cranbuine, I can't help it if he does fwear it.

L. C.’¥. Then you were at the Mecting at the
Sen-Tavern the z1ft, -

Cranburne. My Lord, you hear what Guan fays.

L. C. F. Asto that they are neither of them
pofitive, but you did there promile and undertake

the Matter, that Capt. Porter is-pofitive in, that
it was agreed by you all to do it the 22d; and
Mr. Pendergrafs fays, when you were difappointed
the 15th, you all agreed to purfue the fame De-
fign the Saturday following.

Cranburwe. My Lord, I did not dine at the
Blue-Pofts that Day.

L. C. 7. But you were there; [ think indeed
Mr, Pendergrafs fays you came in after Dinner,
and had {ome Steaks.

Cranburye. 1 never heard directly nor indire@ly
of this Defign, till what 1 heard them fwear here,

L. C. 7. Gentlemen of the Jury, you do under-
ftand for what Crime this Prifoner at the Bar ig
Indicted: 1t is for High-Treafon, in Deligning
and Compafling the Death of the King, which was
to be effected by an Aflaflination, in the moft bar-
barous and wicked Manner, that any Attempt of
that Nature can poflibly be made, being 1o fur.
prife the King, and murder him in his Coach.

'T'he Queftion Gentlemen is, whether this Pri-
foner be Guilty of this Crime or no; there have
been three Witnefles produced that have given
Evidence againft himy Capt. Porter, Mr, De /a
Rue, and Mr. Pendergrafsy and they do all tell
you, that there was fuch a Defign on foot 1o AL
faffinate the King, as he came from Hunting ac
Richmond, after he came on this Side the Water,
in the Lane between Brentford and Turnbam-Green,

“There were diverfe Perfons engaged in this De-
fign, which Sir George Barclay was come from

Firance to promote and manage: Capt. Porter, as
it -clocs appear upon his Evidence, was a Perfon
that was principally engag’d, and at that Time
was hearty in the Profecution of it.

As to Mr. Cranburne, Capt. Porter tells you hie
was 2 Man that he had had a long Acquaintance
with, and had employed himand defigned to em-
ploy him as an Officer under him, in cafe a Revo-
lution happened, which it feems abour that Time,
and fome time before it, was expc€red.  Captain
Porter was to have been a Caprain and [ think he
defigned to promote Craiburie to be his Quarter-
mafter ; and he fenc him to buy Arms; and Pre-
parations were made for that Bufinefs ; but tha is
not the Thing that we are now upon, the Matter
that now properly falls under our Confideration,
1s this; The Coming over of Sir George Barclay,
the latter End of Jannary, or the Beginning of
February laft, upon which, as it frems, Mr., Porser
was engaged ; and having an Interelt in this
Cranburane, and there being Horfes to be furnifh’d
to attack the Kingand his Guards abour Zuribam-
Green, this Man, Cranburie, was a Perfon that
was engaged to be one of the Horfemen thac
were to make the Atrack, and he tells you that
he did employ him to provide Horfes and Swords,
and to prepare the Piftols, and that he did en-
gage In1t, and particularly thar the Defign was
to be executed on Saturday the 15th of Februayy,
and that he was then ready to go with Capr. Por-
fer; but on that Satnrday the King did not go
abroad, whereby the Defign was difappointed for
that Time: Afterwards there was a Metting at
the Suzn-Tavern in the Strand, where he mer with
Sir Geosrge Barclay and others of them, and there
comes to that Tavern Mr. Cranburie and others,

and they were in another Room, and Capt, Por-
ter fays he came to them, and did difcourfe about

purfuing the Defign the very next Day, which
was agreed, and Granburne was ready to go the

next Day.
Then
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Then he tells you further, that the next Day be-
ing Saturday the 22d, the fecond Time that this
Aflaflination was to have been executed, upon the
Defire of Mr. Charnock, who was a Perlon alfo
that was engaged in this Defign, Captain Porter
writesa Lift of the Men he could bring, and {ent
it by Crapburne to Charnock 5 Cranburne carries
the Lift to Mr. Charnock, and bringsitback again
with an Addition of the Names of Mr. Charnock’s
Men underneath.

vir. De la Rue 15 called, and he {wears to that
very Circumftance, that Mr. Crandurne was fent
by Captain Porter with a Lift to Mr. Chariock,
and brought it back again from Mr. Chbaruack,
with an Addition of other Names.

Then Mr. Peadergrafs tells you, that he was
with this Mr. Cranburne, the Prifoner at the Bar,
the fourteenth of Febraary, and there was a2 Dif
courfe of going in purfuance of this D={ign the next
D.y, and the Prifoner agreed to it, which he is
pofuiive in: Le tells you, that when they were dif-
appointed the 15th, being at the Diwe-Pofls, they
then agreed to purfue it the next Saturday 3 Crain-
burae was one of them that agreed.

Captain Porter and De la Rue inform you that
Healths were drank to the late King, and the late
Queen, and the Prince of #ules, as they called
him, and then at length, as the concluding Health,
Caprain Porter, or fome of them in the Company,
having an Orange in his Hand, {quecz’d it, and
drank a Health to the Squeezing of the Rotten
Orange, which was pledged by all, and particu-
Jarly by Mr. Cranbuiney as 1s proved by both
Captain Poiter and De la Rue.

Sothat now, Gentlemen, I mult leave it to you,
whether this is not Evidence fufficient to prove
this Man guilty of che Treafon whereof he is in-
difted, thatis, of Defigning and Intending the
Aflaffination of the King, and being engaged as
a Party to execute this Defign, whenever there
was an Opportunity.

The Counfel infift upon it, on the Bzhalf of
the Prifoner, that what Captain Poiter fays 1s not
Evidence: Inthe firft Place they urge that he is
not @ Man of Credit, for they have mentioned that
he ufed to be difguifed, and wear a Vizard Mask,
and go abroad under odd Circumftances, and
thercfore his Reputation they hope is not good
enough tomake him a credibleWitnefs againt the
Prifoner : Now the Prifoner’s Witne{s being pro-
duced, fays he never knew him goin Difguife, or
wear a Vizard Mask, but once he wore a Patch,
becaufe he was under fome ill Circumftances about
a Riot in Drury-Laney every Body underftands
what the Meaning of that was, his Drinking of
Healths at a riotous Aflembly, upon the 1oth of
Fuue, and he being under fome Profecution for that,
occafioned him to wear that Difguife, but it was
not done to hiader any Perfon, or do any Mif-
chief.

But then, fay they, he is miftaken in his Evi-
dence, of the Mecting at the Sun-Tavern the 21t
of February, the Day before the laft, that chis
Defign was to have been executed, for whereas
he fays, chat Guan was not there when he came
to them, yet Gera was in the Company at that
Time, and whereas he fwears pofitively that they
diicowrfed of going upon the fame Defign to
afluTinate cthe King the nexe Day, as was agreed
the Saturday befores Gann heard no fuch Dif-
courfe, Gunn is called, and he fells you-he did
come to the Suan-Tavern at that Time, with Cran-
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burne and Captain Porter, he came intothe Room,
and he heard no fuch Difcourfe, Thé}r did bi::en
it indeed that Guan had been there all the while,
and if fo, then if there had been fuch a Difcourle,
he muft have heard tt.  Gunn has been examined,
and does tell you he was not there al} the while,
but went out and was abfent for fome Time, about
half a quarter of an Hour. | |

They have made a Queftion whether Captain
Porter came in when Guun was there, he faystruly
he thinks that Captain Porzer did come into the
Room while he was there, before he went out, but
he cannot tell certainly, he was there fome Time,
while he was there, Then Captain Porter was
called again, and Captain Porter does fay he
knows Gunn was there, but whether he was there
at that Time he came in, he cannort fay pofitively ;
but Gunn fays Captain Porter was going in and
out feveral Times, as Porter fays himfelf; and
Guiiii was abfent for fome part of the Time, So
that I cannot fee any fort of Contradiftion berween
the Evidence that Perter gives, and the Evidence
that Guniz gives; the one is uncertain, and fo is
the other as to that Circumftance.

But, Gentlemen, they would infer, that if there
was any fuch Difcourfe while Guur was there, it
muft be of neceffity that Guan muft have heard it
butitis not neceflary the Difcourfe thould be when
Guiin was there: Captain Porter {wears pofitively,
that there was fuch a Difcourfe of going the next
Day to purfue the Defign, and he fays he thinks
Gunn was not prefent at that Time when the Dif-
courfe was, and Guin fays he was abfent fome
part of the Time.

And fo I'muft leave it toyou ; upon the whole
Matter, if Mr. Cranburne the Prifoner at the Bar,
did confent and agree to act in this bloody and
wicked Defign, then you are to find him Guilty ;
if you are not fatisfied of that upon the Evidence
you have heard, or you think there is any Incon-
hiftency, or Incoherence in the Teftimony on the
one fide, and the other ; and that there 1s good
Reafon to disbelieve the Evidence againft the
Prifoner, then you are to acquit him. You have
heard your Evidence, and you had beft confider of

it

l of the Crewon. Who keeps the Jury ?
Crier. There 1s an Ofncer fworn,

Their 1he Fury withdrew to confider of their Ver-
dict, and about @ Quarter of an Hour after re-
turicd,

Cl. of Arr. Gentlemen, anf wer to your Names,

Fobis Catne. |

Mpr. Caine. Here. [ Zid o of the Reft. )

Cl. of Arr. Are you all agreed of your Verdict

Fury. Yes.

Cl.of Ar#. Who fhall fay for you?

Fury. Foreman.

Cloof Ari. Charles Cranburie, hold up thy
Hand. [#bich be did) Look upon the Prifoner ;
how fay you, is he guilty of the High-Treafon
whereot he ftands indiCted, or Not Guiley ¢

Foreman. Guilty.
Cl. of Arr. \What Goods or Chattels, Lands or

Tenements, had he at the Time of the Treafon
committed, or at any Time fince?

Foreman. Woneto our Knowledge,

C! of Arr. Thenhearken toyour Verdict asthe
Court has recorded it.  You {ay thar Charles Cran-

burne is guilty of the High-Treafon whereof he
4 Y ftands
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he ftands indifted, but that he had no Goods,

158. The Trial of Robert Lowick, 8 Will, fII.

L.C. 7. We cannot do it, unlefs the Jury ba

Chattels, Lands, or Tenements, at the Time of full without them ; if you come early, we fhall
the High-Treafon committed, or at any Time difpatch you prefently.

fince, to your Knowledge, and fo you fay all.
Fury. Yes.
My, Caine. My Lord, the Jury humbly defires
they may be difcharged from their Attendance to-
morrow.
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Then the Prifoner was taken from the Ray,

and the Court adjonrned till Seven o’ clock the
next florning.

CLVIIL The Trial of RoBERT Lowick, for High-

Trealon, April 22,

é{?‘é}i‘fﬁg‘“&%ﬂls Day the Juftice of Oyer and
il ook Tt:.rmmr;r holden for the County of
Qﬁ@ﬂ% Micdlefex, met, and the Court was re-
(ﬂﬁ?;ﬂ%;}ﬂ fum’d by Proclamation inufual Form.
SrHZIAGRY  Clert of the drvatgnments, Keeper of
Newgate, fet Rovert Lowick to the Bar, (whichwas
done.) You the Prifoner at the Bar, Robert Lo-
wick, thofe Men that you thall hear called and per-
fonally appezr, are to pafs between our Sovereign
Lord the King and you, upon Trial of your Life
and Death ; i therefore you will challenge them,
or any of them, your Time is to fpeak unto them,
as they come to the Book to be iworn, and before
they be fworn.

Mr, Mempefl.n. IF your Lordfhip pleafesto fa-
vour me with one€Word for the Prifoner at the Bar,
I thall not trouble your Lordfhip with any thing
that was urged by the Gentlemen that were of
Counfel Yefterday, but I fhallrely upon fomething,
that has not yet been Ipokento, My Lord, they
have notlaid any Time or Place where the Confent
or Agreement was, for the forty Men that were to
fer upon the Iing and his Guards: There is a
Time laid before where they met and difcourfed
of the Ways and Ni.as how toaffaffinate and Inll
the King ; but when 1t comes to the Afenferunt,
Conferferunt, & Apreaveryit, wich fubmiffion, this
being another Adt, there ought to be another
Time and Place laid, and for that I fhall cite your
Lordihip two or three Cafes 5 for Men may meet
and propofe, and difcourfe, and confult of fuch
Things, tho’ they be very il Things, and yet
that may not be T'reafon, 1t’s the Agreement that
15 the Treafon, and fo 1t was held in Captain
Dlague’s Cale about taking the Tower. They may
meet at one Time and Place, and at another Time
and Place they may agree, in Dyer, 68 5. and 69
Pl 28. A Man was indicted for Murder, That he
at fuch a Place in and upon the Perfon that was
murdered, infultum fecit, & ipfum, the Perfon that
was murdered, cum guedasn eultello, of fuch a Price,
percuffit 5 and he docs not fhew the Place where he
ftruck him, nor had the Indi€&ment the Words, ad
tune G ibidem, and therefore the Court held it void :
So it 1s likewile ruled in Goedrick’s Cafe, Hll,

35 & 119, and therefore in Indi@tments for Mur-
der, fmce they generally

Time and Place of the Affanle, but likewife of
the Blow ; {o likewife 1n Things of a moreinterior
Nature, as Refcues returned by the Sheriff, ihat
the Capias was ferved, but does not fhew wiicre
the Refcue was; or though he thews where the Ar-
reft was, and an & coupled the Refeue to it, yet it

-
r

fet forth not only the paraverunt, ordinaverunt & levaverunt,
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was adjedged an ill Return, Dyer 69. Pl.2g. 10.
Edw. 4. 15 Fitz, Ret, Vice. 32 Bro, wet. Det, Bre.
g7.and Krror 193. Palm 564, and inNey 114. there
are thefe Words, Noze, It was moved in Difcharge
of Refcue, the Return was, that they, viz. 4. 4.
aforefaid, the Briliffs, ad tunc & ibide wulierave-
runt, e, And the atorefaid Gearge, &c. Refeufen
7unt without ad tune & ibidem, r.frred only to the
Vulueraversnt, and not to the Rewferunt, and
therefore the Reeurn was adjudged infufficient 5 for,
my Lord, although in Conveyances, a Claufz or
Word in the Beginning or End may refer to the
Whole, yet in Indi€iments, every Sentence muft
be certain, plain, and exprefs, and have 1ts own
Time and Place: Theretore In Noy's Rep. 122.
Raymond was indited for ftopping a Crofs-Way
leading from a certain Viile called Stoake, into a
Ville callec A/elton, in the County of Dorfet, and
the Indiétment was quafh’d, becaufe in the Coun-
ty of Dorfet fhall refer only to Adelten, and not to
both: Soan Indiétment of forceable Eniry into a
Mefluage exiflens Liverum Tenemeitum of 7. S, 15
not good for want of theWords ad tzar, though the
Participle exiffens does ftrongly imply that ic was
his Houfe at that T'tme, 3 Cro. 754. Het. 73. Noy
121, Palm. 426, Bride. 65, 2 Cro. 214, & 610.
Sid, 102, Lat. 109. &8¢, And my Lord Cote
tells us 1 Cafoin’s Cafe 5 B. that Inditments of
Treafon, of all others, are the moft curioufly and
certainly indited and penned ; and all thofe that
I have {een and obierved, have contained more
Cerrainty than the Indictment now before your
Lordthip : In Reginald Tucker’s Cafe, the Indict-
ment was, That he and Thomas Place apnd Bride=
waler, in Com, Somerfett, predici, Compaffaverunt,
to kill and depofe the King, (e, and tobring their
treafonable Purpofes to effelt, they the faid Regi-
nald Tucker and Thomas Place, the fame Day and
Year, at Bridgwater aforefaid, in the County a-
forefaid, againft the King, with a great Multirude
of People, array’d in a warlike manner, viz. with
Swords, €5c. feipfos illicite & produtorie infiinl od

tune & ibidem congregaverunt & affemblavernnt &

,..}

guerram publicam contra dictum Dominum Regein

apud Bridpew ey praedit, in Com. predill, dids
vicefimo Die Funit Anro primo fupradifle proditoric
S0 In the
Inditmentof Gate, as it 1s fet forth atlarge 1n a
Plea in Bar of Dotver, brought by his Wife, he
with Force and Arms, apud Villam de W are, &,
affembled with a great many Perfons, £ Bellun
ciudele contra diffam  Dominam Reginam apzd
Ware, predidd, ad tunc falfo {3 pioditorie publi-

L
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Cavit & levavit, ac infuper ad lune & ihidem falfp  not feverally engage therein, and one or fome of
& proditorie, proclaimed the Duke of Northum- them might undertake it, and yer the Company

berland, to be Lieutenant-General of their Forces ;
&3 etiam falfp &5 proditorie apud Ware predid.
ad tuire, proclaimed the Lady Fean Dudley Queen,

not agree to it; and it cannot be mended by In-

“tendment. There was Vaux’s Cafe, in the 4 Rep.

44. he was indicted for Murder, for perfuading a

This is in Bendlowe’s Reports, publ_iihed by Ser- Man to take Cantharides; itwas laid, That he pes-
jeant Rowe, fol. 55. placito 1. So in the Earl of  fuadebat enndem Nicholatm recipere £5 bibere qucit -

Leicefter’s Cale, Plewd. Com. 385, the Indi€tment
is laid much after the fame manner, and many
other Indi¢tments, which at prefent Iam unwilling
to.trouble your Lordfhip with; and this being
one of a new Form and of the firlt Impreffion, |
hope your Lordfhip will hold it infufficient, And,
my Lord, when they go farther, and fay, £¢ gui-
libet, corum proditorie_fuper [e fufcepit effe unum,
there is no Place or Time alledged where that was
done, which of Neceffity fhould be mentioned :
For it is a conftant Rule1n our Books, that what
is iffuable, ought to have a Place where 1t may be
tried. Now, this 15 iffuable, and the moft material
Thing in the IndiCtment is, for compaffing the
King’s Death.  The Overt-Adts are, That Chri-
Stopher Knightley the Prifoner, and two others, did
canfult to killthe King 5 and afterwards did agree
how to do it, wiz. by forty Horfemen Quorum,
thefe fhould be four, and every one of them did
agree to beone; then comes the other Overt-Aét
of providing Arms for them., Now fuppole they
fhould not prove the laft, wiz. the providing
Arms; then, my Lord, they muft refort to one
of the other Overt-Alts, that thefe four did con-
fult and agree to ki)l the King 3 or that thefe four
did agree, the manner how to do it, as s laid in
the Indiftment; and ’us plain they muft fail of
Proof of cither of thefe; tor by the not profecut-
ing any one of the Name ot Chrifiopher Kuightley,
but preferring a new Indictment againit one Alex-
ander Krightley, it appears that Chriffophber Kuight-
ley was riot there and the proving thele three o-
thers making 4 Confult and Agreement, 1S not a
Proof of the fume Overt-Aét, that 1s laid 1n the
Indi€tment, as it onght to be by the late A¢t; un-
lefs they can prove that a Confult of Three 15 a
Coniult of Four: And if it be anfwered, that it is
alledged, that Quilibet eorum fuper fe fufeepit, then
will ehat come to be iffuable, and the maft mate-
rial Part of the Indictment 3 and confequently a
Place ought to have been laid where 1t fhould be
ericd 3 chis, my Lord, is a diftin¢t Sentence of it
4ulf, it is in a Parenthefis, and though you take it
away, the Senfe of what remains 1s perfect and
intire 3 and confequently this Sentence is or thould
be intire of it feif, and therefore ought certainly to
be exprelled. Belides, 1f your Lordfhip pleafes, it
isnot pofitively laid, what thele Perfens feverally
undertook to be, thereis indeed mention made be-

fore of Forty Horfemen, agreed upon to fet up-
on the King, then comes the Parentbefis, Quornm
tidems Chriftophorus Kuightley, Robertus Lowick,
Ambrofins Rockzoed €5 Carolus Cranburne forent
Quatnor, & quilibet eorum proditorie fuper f¢ fufiepit
effe unum : 1t is perhaps exprefled fully enough by
the Word Quoram, .that it was agreed thele fhould
be four of the forty Horfemen ; but there wants
the Repetition of the Word Quorum, to exprefs
what they feverally engaged to be; and the Word
¢7 cannot join and conneCt the Sentences : Tor fo-
reint and fufcepis differ not only in Number, but
alfo in Mood and Tenfe, and the Senfe is not ne-
ceffarily coherent; for it might be true, that the
Majority of the Company might agree, thele
fhould be four, and yet they themiclves might
Vor, IV.

dam potum mixtum cum qitodam veneno vocat. Cay-
tharides 3 and the Indictment fays, Quod predicius

Nicholaus nefciens predifium potum cum Veneno proe-
dicio fore intoxicatum, fed fidem adbibens Dide per-
Juafioni Willielmi Recepit & Bibit; but does not
fay, venenum predifium, but yet it adds, Per guod
reeditius Nicholans immediate poff veceptionem ve-
nems prediiti, languithed and died; here, one
would think, was a fufficient Implication, that he
took and drank the Poifon 3 but it was ruled, that
none of thefe Words were fufficient to maintain
the Inditment ; for the Marter of the Indi€&ment
ought to be plain, exprefs, and certain, and thall
not be maintained by Argument or Implication,
and therefore for Want of thofe Words the In-
dictment was held infufficient, and the Man again
indicted for that Offence, and there feems much
more [ncertainty inthis Indictment, and therefore I
humbly pray yourLordfhip that it may be quafh’d.
§ir B. Shower. My Lord, 'we think the Objec-
tion is fuily pur, and therefore we defire to have

their Anfwer to it.
Mr. A4t. Gen. We think, my

Lord, this Objeétion will re-
cetve a very plain Anfwer. The Inditment fets
forth, That at fuch a Place the Prifoner at the Bar
did 1magine and compafs the Death of the King :
There is a particular Cafe where the Imagining
was, and that they, to accomplith that Treafon,
in compaffing and imagining the Death of the
King, did, among others, poffea eifdem die & anno
apud parochiam predifiam, meet and confult, &,
fo there’s the fame Place fet forth again, wherein
they did meet and confult of the Ways and Means,
and Time and Place, when, where, and how to
aflaflinate the King: And immediately it follows,
&5 confenferunt € agreavernnt, &e. that forty Men,
whereof they were to be four, and every one of
them undertook to be one, fhould do fo and fo.
Now, my Lord, fay they, It is not faid that the
Agreement that there thould be forty Men to do
it, was at the fame Time and Place where they did
meet and confult about the Ways and Means ;
But, my Lord, with fubmiffion, it is very plain,
that the Agreement for forty Men, and the parti-
cular Agreement for them to be of the Number,
is but the Effett of the Confultation that is men-
tion’d juft before: For it is faid, they confulted
how they thould do i, and they agreed to do it in
this manner ; the particular manner ts fet forth
immediately after that, it is faid they did confult
of the manner ; {o that, my Lord, it is Part of
the former Sentence; a Particularizing of what
they did agree upon at that Confultation; but it

is no diltinét Overt-Act ¢ If 1t had been a diftint
Overt- A&, then the Cafes that have been cited by
the Council, do fhew, that there thould be a parti-
cular Tiine and Place mentioned for every Overt-
Act; but this 1s only a Part of that Overt-Atk
that was mentioned generally before : This tells
you particularly what the Means were they did
agree upon, and the Sentence is not compleat ull
you have gone over this; fo that, my Lord, with
fubmiffion, it had been very improper when they
agreed at fuch a Time and Place, of the Means

4 Y 2 and
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and Ways how it fhould be effetted, then to fet
forth that it was at the fame T'ime and Place where
they did confult of the Ways and Means, that
cannot be proper 5 for it is not laid at firft, that
there was any particular Way propofed, but only
in general, they confulted of the Ways and Micans
therefore, my Lotd, all this that Mr, Mompeffois
has faid, will not be pertinent to this Cafe, 1t 1s
impoffible to have been otherwife 5 it 1s but a
Part of the Sentence; and it is not compleat till
you have gone over the fcvex_'al Particulars : Asto
the Cafe of a Refeous, thatis, the Offence upon
which the Matter is to bz grounded ; the Zeilbeia-
wit and Pulneravit are not the Relcueing 5 but
where there 15 not one Sentence compleat, uli you
come to the End of thefe Words, there 1t mult be
all taken together ; fo it is here, they confulted of
the Way, and agrecd this to be the Way, which
they fet forth m particular : It is joined to the for-
mer Part of the Sentence, and the swhole is not
compleat without it. | -
Sir Fobe Hales AMr. Sol. Gen. With fubmiffion,
" my Lord, it cannot be otherwife,
nor can they make it Senfe otherwife.
Sir ok 11, Le G- J. They fay you might
and fhould have put in, ad tanc &I
hidei,

M. 8o, Gen, With fubmiffion, my Lord, I
fay it cannot be repeatcd again : Indeed if you
would make it like the Cale, as Mr. Mompe/foir
would have it, that forty Men did agree to 1t, and
torty Men did it, it were neceflary to name Time
and Place, as it is in the Cafe of Murder: That he
did agree to murder him, and afterwards knock’d
him on the Head, there you fhall lay Time and
Place where heagreed, and where he did the Adt,
for there is an AcCt doney but in this Cafe there 1s
no A& done, but only an Agreement that forty
fhould do it, whereof thefe four were to be part
of the Number. Now, they cry, you do not fay
what thefe four were to be for, Yes, we do:
The Forty were to do fuch an A&, and thefe
were to be four of "at forty, and every one of
them undertook to be one s fo that it cannot beex-
prefs’d otherwife than itis ; for what they fay of
the Indidtment’s being not in the {ame Form that
other IndiCtments are, that will be no Argument
at all; for 1c docs not follow, that there muft be
one exprefs’d [Form of IndiCtment; of Right there
are divers Forms of Indiétments, and all of them
aood, becaufe IndiCtments are to be framed ac-
cording to the particulur Cafe, and they cannot
put me an Inftance of fuch a particular Cafe as
this. As to that of the Miftake of the Name of
Knightley, that unqueftionably can be no Objeétion
at all : For how does it appear to the Court, that
this 15 again{t the fame Perfon that was before in-
dited by the Name of Chriflephber 2 there may
be another Chriflopher, for ought they know :
But I will fuppole, that the Coufule was proved
not, as 1t 1s laid, that there were to be four 3 but
only that they were to be three of them, it would
be well enough agamft the Prifoner at the Bar, it
he be proved to be one.

M. Conyers, Firlt, we have herelaida Timeand
Place for the Treafon alledged 1n the Indi®ment,
and alfo for the two Overt- Ad&s, how, when, and
where it was to be done, and the providing of
Arms for it; and for this Particular of the forty
Men, that they would have us put the ad tune
ihidem to that, is but Part of the Overt-A&, which
was before alledged ; for the firft Overt-A¢t men-
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tioned, 13 the Meeting and Confulting, ard there
we lay both Time and Place; that on fuch a Day,
and at fuch a Place, they did meet and confult of
the Way and Manner how to do fuch an A& ;
And then we continue on the Sentence, by parricu-
larizing how it was to be effeCed 5 that they did
agree there fhould be forty Horfemen to do i,
whereof they were to be four: This is bur a Part
of the Overe-A&t, which is the Confulting and
Agreeing upon the Ways and Means 5 this parti-
cular Means agreed upon, being but the Refalt and
Efeét of the Confultation before: So that we con-
ceive there 15 no Want of Time or Place unon

. . ’ L
which to take Iffue 1 this Cafe.

Al Comeper, My Lord, Lthink, with fubmiffion,
there is nothing inthenr Objection, and I take it to
have received 2 tull Anfwer already : Yet I would
ask one Thing of the Gentlemen of the other Side,
had the Senience run without the YWords de s mo-
dis & mediis, e, which follow after the Word
confultavit, -and before the Words & aggreatit 5 in
this manner, That they did then and there traite-
roully treat, propole, cenfult, and agree, that
forty Florfemen, or thereabouts, with Guns, and
fo torth., If then there had been any Colour to
think it neceflary, that 1t thould be laid in this
manner, ‘That they did then and there raiteroufly
treat, and then and there raiteroufly propofe, and
then and chere traneroudly confult, and did then
and there traiterbully agree: And if not, then I
would defire them to tell me why thei aid there is
more neceflary to one Verb dif coree, than it is
to all the Reft, i Senfe and common Speaking,
The only Ufe of a Conjunction copulative, is to
derive the Force of fomz Words, in a Sentence fore-
eoing, down to a Sentence following, to avoid Re-
petition ¢ And here, thoush after the Confultation
be put many Words that relate to that Macer, by
Way of Parenthells ; yet the ad fzic & jbidewm
{till does refer to all the Verbs following, being
joined by the Conjuntion copulative 5 it does
not vary the Cale at all, the putung in that Paren-
thefis; 1t 1s noewiehitanding but as one Sentence:
And the fuppoling that the Parenthefis {teod out,
makes it very plain, there can be no Colousr to fay
there wanted a Repetition of the ad twiic & ibiden
to cvery Verb.

Sir B. Shower. With fubmiflion to your Lor-
thip’s Judgment, there 15 no Anfwer made to this
Objection. I doagree, if there had been [everal
Verbs, and no other Words had intervened, that
an (&' would have coupled all together, and you
nced not have repeated ad tuic €5 ibidem to every
one: But here is a Faét after the Verbs, thar
makes onc compleat entire Sentence 3 and if this
of the forty Men were left out, it had been a good
Sentence, that they did propofe and treat how,
where and when s that’s a Sentence of it felf, the
Confulting and the Treating of the Ways and
Means ; But then they fay, and they did agree
and affent that forty fhould do it: Now there s
no Neceffity for the interpreting of thefe Words,
‘That they fhould confult and agree at the fame
Place and Time ; there is no neceflity to conjoin
this Agreement for the forty Men with the Con-
fultation ; they might propofe and confule at one
Time and Place, and not agree, and afterwards a-
aree at another Time and Place ; It isnot a Spe-
cification, or, as they call it, a {pecifick Account
of the Confultatton, nor a neceflary Effe@ of i,
fo as to make it neceffary to join them together 3
they might meet and confult at one Time and

Place,
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Place, and at anothet Time and Place they might
agree that forty thould do it ; and therefore when
you fay at one Time and Place they did confult
and propofe, and afterwards they did agree ; it is
not neceflarily implied, that it muft be at the fame
Time and Place; and when 1t is not neceffarily
implied, we think it neceffary in Indiltments, for
Certainty-fake, to have ad tunc & ibidem inferted
again.

Mr. Mompeffon. My Lord, Mr., Sdllicitor {ays,
‘That as to other Precedents, that does not make
it neceflaty that this fhould be like them; and
that it is no Argument that it ought to be {o here,
My Lord Coke, in Calvin’s Cafe tells us, That by
Precedents the Law is known, and that Indit-
ments of Treafon are of all Things the moit cu-
rioufly penn’d 5 and it is common to tnfer the Law
is fo, becaufe ufually ic is fo in the Precedents of
IndiCtments,  Ar, Sollicitor fays likewife, That
there may be a Chiiffopher Knightley befides an A-
fexander s bur 1 cannot take that for an Aonfwer
to the Exception I urge, which Is the Want of
ad tuic & ibidem at the Quorum, and the Quilthet;
for the Quilibet may come to be in Queftion as the
moft material Pare of the Indiétment, becaufe the
Agrecment of the Four upon the Meeting of the
Four 15 allede’d as an Overt-A&.  Now, with
Jubmifiion, they nft prove the Aflembly of the
whole Four, or they do not prove the Overt-Act
exprefly lid: Then as to the Quilibet fufcepit,
which 1s the moft material Part, it has no Time
nor [lace. *

Air. 1. Gen. No fure: We do not need to
prove all four, for it is a diflint Oflence m each,
and if any one undertoolz, it is well enough a-
cainft him: and for the Time and Place, we tell
you, it is Past of the former Sentence, and makes
but an 1ntire One,

Ay, Mompeffon. As for the Refidue of the Verbs,
if they had been omitted, 1t had ceen good Senfes
but this is a perfet intire Sentence of itlelf, when
it tells you what they confulted and treated of, as
in the Cafe of the Reiiue that I puots if it had
ftopp’d there, it had been a good Sentence without
the Fulnaveriit.

Ay, A1, Geir, 'The Refeous is the Offence in
that Cale, the other is diftinft : But here, 1in this
Cale, nothing can be plainer than that all 1s one
A&, as we have laid 1, That at fuch a Time and
Place they did confult and treat of the Ways and
Means ;3 but then there is no Agreement menti-
oned till after we have faid they did confult of
the Ways and Moeans, and did agree that this
fhould be the Way : This is certainly one intire
Sentence that fhews what the Agreement aas up-
on the Confulation as the Refule-of it

My Cowper. As to what Sir Baribclome Sheer
{1y s, That we ought to repeat the ad tunc & ihidem,
untefs the Senfe of the Words implics a Neceffity
that the Confultation and the Agreement fhould

¢ at one Time and Place. My Lord, there can
be nothing in that, for it does not arife irom the
Neceflity of the Thing one Way or t’other 5 but
we take it as an intive Sentence, and that the
whole Matter is fufficiently conne€ted and laid to
one T'ime and Place, though it might be divided,
it muft be taken, as alledged, to be one intive Fact,
or elfe it recurs to the fame Objection, thar ad
tene & ihidem muft as well be put to every Verbs
for *tis poflible they might propofe at one Time
and Place, and confult at another, and debate at
another, as well as agree at another : So that no-
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thing is to be argued frem the Neceffity of the
Thing more in ong Cafe than the other; for onc
Man might propofe it in one Place, and the Relt
might then thake their Heads at it, and then they
might again meet and confult at another Place,
and afterwards agree at a Third : But when it is
fad then and there they did meet, confult, and
agree, 1t cannot be underftood but that the Agree-
ment was at the fame Time and Place with the
Meeting and Conful,

Sir B. Shower, But this can be no Anfwer that
Mr. Cowper gives now, for propoling, and con-
fulting, and treating, and debating, are all of the
fame Signification, for one Man’s propofing to
another ; and the other’s propofing to him, 1s
confulting, treating, and debating ; but now con-
{lting and agreeing are different Things.,

M. Cowper. So is propofing and confuling :
One may propofe, but there muft be at leaft Two
to confult ;: There 1s that mce Difierence between
them.

Sir B. Shower. Every one muft agree for him-
{elf, and that muft be certainly laid with Thme
and Place, let the Propofal and Confulration be
what it will,

L. C. F. Mr. Mompefloir puts that Cafe in Djer
apon an Inditkment of Murder, That on fuch a
Day, and at fuch a Place, the Party made an Af-
fault upon the Perfons {lain, & percaflit 5 but dees
not fay, Et ad tuic & ibidem percaffit, and for not
alledging that the Indictment was held nought.

My, At. Gen. My Lord, That is a different
Cafe from this, becanfe infultum fecit, and the
pereuffity are different Crimes; there 1s a great
Difference between an Affaule and a Stroke @ Bue
here it is, That they did propofe and confult of
the Ways and Means, and agreed upon this par-
ticular Way ; thar is the fame Thing ; 1t 15 not
an intire Sentence till you come to the End or it,
then it is compleat when you fhew what was the
Eft& of the Confultation; what they were a-
areed upon, and not ull then.

Adir. Mompeffon. A Man’s holding up his Hand
is an Affanle, bur he muft aGually Strike, to be
guilty of Murder : So a Man may debate, and
yet not agree: Itis the Agreement that 1s the
‘T'reafon.

L. C. ¥. Read the Indi@ment.

Cl. of Arr: Y™ Ecimo die Februarit anio Regui didli
F Domini Regis anine feptimo, 5 di-

15 alits dishus € vicil S "
verfis alits diehus < vicibus, tam antea guam pofiea,
aprd Parochiam Sanéli Pauli Covent-Garden, pie-
di, i Comilaty predicP fulsé; malitiosé, diabclice,
proditorie, compaffaverunt, imaginati & nachinati

fuerunt, excogilaveinit, defignaveriit & intendebaiit

dictum Dominnm Regem nunc occidere, inteificcre, &
murdrare, & flragem miferabilein tnler fidcles fub-
ditos ipfius Domini Regis per totum boc Regium Aii-
plie paffere, & caufare & ad eafden: nefandifjimas,
siequifimas & diabolicas proditiones & proditorias
compaffationes, machinationes, £ propofila fua pre-
dicta perimplend® perficiend® €5 ad effetum redigend’
ipfi iidem Chriftophorus Knightley, Robertus Lo-
wick, AmbrofiusRookwood & Carolus Cranburne,
€5 quam plurimi alii falfi proditores ( Jurator’ pre-
dictis ignoti) paflea [eilicet eodem decimo die Febiu-
arii anno fupradicio apud Parochiam prediflam ii
Com® preditto, ac diverfis aliis diebus & wicibus,
tam antea quam poftea, ibidem & alibi in coem com’

falsé, maliiiosé, advifaté, clandefliné, proditeric, ac

vi €5 arsmis conveniehant, propofuer’ trafigver’ cou-
z
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Jultaver’ confenfer’ & aggreaves’ ad ipfum Dominum

Regem iunc ex infidits & dolo percutiend’, Auglice
to aflaflinate, iuterficiend’ €5 murdrand’ &S ad exe-
crabilem, borrendam & deteflabilem Affaffination’ 4n-
glice Affaflination, & Interfeltionem il6° citins exe-
quend’ &5 pevpetrand' poftea, [eilicet eifdem die &
aino ac diverfis aliis diehus & wicibus apud Payoch®
pred’ i Cowd® pred:flo proditorie trallavey’ ropo-
fuer' &5 confultavey’ de <iis, modis & mediis ac
tempore & loco ubiy quando, qualiter & quomedo dic-
2um Dominum Regem fic ex infidiss facifins interfice-
renty S confenfer’ aggieaverumt & affenfer’ quod qua-
dragint® bomines Equeflyes aut eo civeiter (quor’ tidens
Chriftophorus Knightley, Robertus Lowick, Am-
brofius Rook wood €9CarolusCranburne forens qua-
tnory (G quilivet eor proditerié [uper fe fufcepit efje
unnm) cum Bombardis, fclopis & felopetis, pulvere
bombardico, £ globulis plumbeis onerat® & cum gla-
diis, enfibus & aliis drmis arma? infidiaii forent &
efferit in jubfeflu; Anglice in Ambuth, ad enndum
Domi.um Regem i Rlieda [na, Anglice bis Coach,
exifien’ quando foris ivet tnvadend’, Quedque quidem
T campetens numerns de bominibus illis fic armat® i
fateilites, dnglicé the Guards, iffins Domini Regis
ciunr Lanc attendend’ & fecum exifieir’ aggielfi forent
& eos expugnaremt &5 dezincerent, dum alii corsidem
Lomiram fic armal’ ipfum Dominytm Regem percite-
renty titerficerent, occiderent & auidrarent,

Adr. Mompeficin. The Confule 1s Tike the Affaule,
and the Agreement is like the Stroke.

L.C.J. Treby. It is a nice Cale as you would
have it, but I think 1c is very natural as the Kings
Counlel put 1t at firft; they lay the Coniulration
ot the Ways and Means how it fhould be done,
and then they conclude that thus it fhall be done :
All which malkes bue one intire Thing,

L.C. . They fay they met that Day at St.
Punl Covent-Garder, that’s in the Beginning, and
did confuit how to kill the King; and they con-
fented and agreed among themfelves, thatit fhould
be done 1n this manner : Does not this refer to
both Time and Placc "1 the Beginning? It is a
continuing on of the fame Sentence, and makes all
but one and the fame Aty itis the Refult of the
Confultation at that Time and Place.

Sir B. §hezeer. But, my Lord, 1t might be at
another Flace : They might confult at one Place,
and cenclude at another.

MMy, Convers, But 1t 1s laid to be at the fame
Place, for no other Place does appear, and it is
one contnued Sentence,

L. C. 7. 9reby. Youwould make the Repetition
fo frequent and reiterated, that it would become
abfurd.

Mr. Aut, Gen. Indeed 1 do not know what thefe
Gentlemen would have,

Sti B. Shesver. We would have this Indiétment
as all others are, the Precedents are as we fay, and
we hope this fhall purfue *em, or elfe be quath’d.

L. C. F. Look ye here, Sir Bartholomeww Show-
er; {uppofe this Part thould not be right, that
will not vitiate the whole Indi@ment.

Mr. Mompeffern. But your Lordihip won't fuffer

them to give Iividence of that Part that is vicious.
L.C.f. Yes, yes; it comes within the firft

Words of the Time and Place laid ; they may
aive Evidence of i, becaufe this is but a fetting
forth for the Manner agreed upon for the Execution
of the Delign that was before confulted and
treated of ; it is comprehended in the former
Words; and i they had omitted this out of the

158. The Trial of Robert Lowick,

§ Will. II1.

Inditment, the Indiétment hLad been never the
worfe 5 there had been a {ufficient Overt- A&t al-
ledged to prove the Compaffing and Imagining
the Death of the King ; for if People at fuch a
Place and Time meet, and propofe the Way and
Means how to efiect it, do you think the Indi&t-
ment would not be good enough without laying
the particular Means agreed upon ? Certainly it
had been well enough it this had been omitted.
Do you think they cannot give in Evidence this
as a Proof of the Overt-Aé&t? Certainly they may.

Sir B. Shower. The Queflion will be, my Lord,
then upon the Whole, W hether the Conclufion of
the Indiétment, conti-a legiantic fieDebitun, thall
be taken diftribuaively to every Faét, and if fo,
then there ought to be Time and Place alledg'd to
every Fadt.

L. C. /. Suppole you lay feveral Overt-A&s,
and prove but one, yet he is to be found guilty of
the High-Treafon, which is the Imagination, and
Compafling the Death of the King, which is the
Crime laid in the Indiftment; then fuppofe this
was left out of the Indictment, they might give
it in Evidence, as a Proof of the Overt- A&, thar
it 1s well Jaid for Time and Place 3 and therefore
though it be exprefs’d, and not fo fully and parti-
cularly laid, we cannot quafh the indi€tment for
1t, becaufe the Indictment would have been good,
though that had been onuzted.

L. C. 7. Treby, That is certainly true, itis no
Caufe for quathing the Indictment,

M, §oll, Gen. The Inditments againtt the Re-
oicides were tor Compafiing the Death of the
King, and they gave in Evidence that he was pue
to Death, though they charged in the Indictment
only the Compalling and Imagining the Death of
the King.

L.C.%. Ay fure, that 1s an Overt-Aét with a
‘Witnefs, the Indiétment was not latd for Mur-
dering the King, but for Compafling his Death,
which 1s the Treafon according to the Act of Par-
liament of 25th, £4, the 3d, and as an Overt- Aét
they gave the Cutting off’ his Head in Evidence,

Mr. Art. Gen, The Indiétment fays, they com-
paffed and 1magined the King’s Dcath, and they
agreed to do 1t in this manner 3 if this be not all
one intire Sentence I krnow not whar s,

L. C. ¥#. Astoyour Cafe, Mr. Momy . ffonr, which
you quote out of Dyer, it 1s poffible 4 Man may
make an Affault at one Time, and ar another
Time make an Aflaule and give a Stroke, burt this
is all one Act, it does but fpecify what was gene~
rally confulted of and propofed.

L.C . Treby. Pray, doyou think a Man may
demur upon a common Action of Battery, where
't1s faid firft, at fuch a Time and Place, Inufultum

fecit & verberavit, walneravit, becaufe there is not

a Place fet to every Word.

Mr. Mempeffon.  Inditments ought to be very
curioufly penn’d, and what is good in an Action
will not be good 1 an Indictment, with Submifiion.

L. C.F. Treby. But fuppofe you fhew’d it for
Cauie upon {pecial Demur.

M. Mympeffen. My Lord, I cannot tell what
it would amount unto.

L.C.¥. You cannot quafh the Indiétment at
this Time, that is not poflible, becaufe the In-
di¢tment is good as to the reft, {uppofing this was
not fo well as it might be,

Mr. Mompeffon, Then, my Lord, Iam in your
Lordfhip’s Judgment, whether they fhall be ad-

mitted to give in Lvidence this partcular Thing.
_ 7
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L. C. 7. They may certainly give in Evidence,
the Agreement to have Forty Men to kill the
King, as a Proof of the Confultation, Agreement,
aud Coufent to kill the King 3 and the Confenting
to have Forty Horfemen is an Evidence of their
treating, propofing, and confulting to kill the
King. Then for y.ur Objection of Quilibet fuf-
cepit to be one, that is well enough, 1t 1s all {ill
but one Sentence.

Sir B. Shower, One of which 1s 1t? for they
have not laid in the Indiétment what it is, whether
it be onc of the Four, or one of the Forty.

L. C. ¥. Whether it be one of the Four, or the
Forty, is not matcrial, for cannot one be found
guilty, and the reft acquitted ? the one is not
charged with the ACt of the other, but they are
{everal Offences, and each muft anfwer for him-
{elt,
Suppolfe an Indictment of Confpiracy, and it 1s
laid 1n the Inditment that Four did confpire,
can’t you prove that two conipired? no Queftion
you may. [t is not certainly neceflary that every
onc fhould be proved to have confpired. Suppofe
it were alledged that Four did beat 2 Man, and
docs not fay Quifibet eornm beat him, you may
give in [vidence that one did beat him,

Sir B §h.wers No
a Battery, but in che Cafe of a Confpiracy there
mull be more than one,

L.C. 7. Nay, I wil ask you even inan Action
of Conipirecy, where the very Gift of the Action
15 Confpiting together, cannot two be found guil-
ty, and the reft acquitted ¢ In Riots there muft
be Three or more. It may be you'il lay Ten,
but it is fufficient, I hope, if you prove it upon
any Three of them.,

Mr. Att. Gen. The Difference 1s berwixt Con-
tracts and Crimes, for Contraclts they are joint,
but Crimes they are in their own Nature feveral,

Mr. Sol. Gen. Befides, my Lord, though they
be out of Time, yet this is not to the Abatement
of the Irndi&tment, but to the Evidence ; how do
they know, but we will give it in Evidence that
Ch iflopher Kuightley was one.

L. C. F. Treby Nr Alompeffon moves it as a
Cavear againft your giving it in Evidence,

Sir B. Sweweer. If in an Outlawry againft di-
verfe, they leave out thefe Words, Nec eornm als-
guis comfareit, that is every Day held to be
nought, ard for that Reafon we fay, the Quili-
bet corum fufcepit is neceflary too, and without be-
ing laid canror be given in Evidence, and if it
be laid, it cught to have Time and Place.

L.C. 7. Toeby. The Default of Appearance
muft be a feveral Thing, and when he lays it
jointly #oi comparuerunt, it may be true that all
did not appear, if any one made Defanlt; but
when you charge Men with a Fact done, though
in the plural Number, yetit is a diftin& feparace
Charge upon every one.

Cl of Arr. Robert Lotwick, thofe Man that thou
fhalc hear call’d, and perfonally appear, are to pafs
between our Sovereign Lord the King and you,
upon Trial of your Life and Death ; if therefore
you will challenge them, or any of them, your
Time is to {peak to them as they come to the
Book to be {worn, and before they be {worn.
Geoige Ford.

Lowick. 1do not except againft him

Cl. of Arr. Hold the Book to Mr. Ferd.

Crier. Look upon the Prifoner; you fhall well

and truly try, and true Deliverance make, be-

jfor High-Treafon.
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tween our Sovereign Lord the King and the Pri-

foner at the Bar, whom you thall have in Charge,
and a true Verdict give according to your Evi-

dence : So help you God.

Cl. of Ary. Thomas Trench,

Lowick, 1 have nothing to fay againft him :
( He was fuworn. )

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Wolfe.
Lowick. 1 do not except againft him, (He was

fworn.)

Cl.of Arr. Fames Bodington,
Lowick, 1 challenge him,

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Raymond.
Lowick, 1 {ay nothing againft him, (He was

faworn.)

Cl. of Arr. George Hawes,
Lowick. I do not except againft him: (He was

In all Indi€tments, Offences are feveral: fivorn.)

Cl. of Arr. Thomas Glover.

Lowick. | challenge him.

Cl. of Ars, NMatthew Bateman.

Lowick. I do not except againft him, (He was
[fwern,)

Cl. of Arr. Fames Partherith.

Lowsck, 1 challenge him.

CL of Arr, Fofeph Bliffet.

Lowick. T challenge him.

Cl. of Arr. Alexander Forth,

Lowick. T challenge him,

Cl. of Arr, Erancis Chapman.

Lewick. I challenge him,

Cl. of Arr. Nicholas Roberts.

Lowick., 1 challenge him,

Cl. of drr. Thomas Playfiead.

Lowick. 1 challenge him,

Cl. of drr. Sfobn Hall,

Lowick, 1 challenge him,

Cl of drr. William Partridge,

Lewick, 1 challenge him,

Cl. of Arr. Peter Levigne.

Lowick. 1 challenge him:

Cl. of Arr. Thomas Moody:

Loavick. I challenge him,

Cl. of Arr. Thomas Ramage.

Lowick. 1 do not except againft him. (He was

Sfworii. )

Cl. of Arr. Edward Townefend.

Lowick. I challenge him.

Cl. of drr. William Gunfon,

Locick, I challenge him.

Cl. of drr. Fobn WWyborne, he did not appear.
William Strode.

Lowick, 1 challenge him.,

Cl. of Ary. William Hild,

Lowick. I do not except againft him, (He was
fwori.)

Cl. of Arr. William Piits,

Lowick. 1 do not except againft him. (He was

fworn.)

Cl. of Arr. William Smith.
Lywick. 1 do not except againft him, (He was

fworn.)

Cl. of Arr. Mofes Cook.

Lowick. 1 challenge him;

Cl. of Arr. Benjamin Boliby.

Lowick. I do not except againft him. (Ze was
fwora.)

Cl. of drv. Elias Fletcher.

Lewick. 1 have nothing to fay againft him,
(He was fworn.)

Cl. of Arr. Crier conntex, George Ford,

Crier. One, {J%.
cl,
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CL of Arr. Elias Fletcher.

Crier. Twelve Good Men and true, ftand to-
gether and hear your Evidence.

L. C. 7. Now the reft of the Jury that have
appeared are difcharged.

Cl. of Arr. Crier, make Proclamation.

Crier. Oyez, It any one can inform my Lords
the King's Juftices of Oyer and Terminer, the King’s
Serjeant, or the King's Attorney-General, before
this tnquelt be taken ot the High-Treafon, where-
of the Prifoner at the Bar ftands indifted, let them
come forth, and they fhall be heard, for now the
Prifoner ftands at the Bar upon his Deliverance,
and all others that are bound by Recognizance to
give Evidence againft the Prifoner at the Bar, let
them come forth and give their Evidence, or elfe
they forfeit their Recognizance.

The Names of the Twelve fworn are thefe s
George Ford, Elq; Y ( ThomasRamage,Gent,
Thomas Trench, Elq; I l Hilliam 117ld, Gent,
Fobu IFolfe, Elq; 9 Hilliam Pitts, Gent.
Fobn Raymond, Biqy ¥ William Smith, Gent.
George Hawes, EAQ; Beuyamin Bolthy, Gent,
Matthew Bateman, Efq; ) ((Elias Fletcher, Gent.

CL of drr. Robest Letnck, hold up thy Hand.
[#hich be did.] You that are fworn, look upon
the Prifoner, and hcarken to his Caufe. He ftands
indicted by the Name of Robert Lesvick, late of
the Panifh of St. Paul Covent-Gardei, in the Coun-
ty of Middlefex, Gentleman; for that he, toge-
ther with Chriflopher Kuightley, late of the fame
Parifh and County, Gentleman; Ambrofe Rook-
tweod, late of the fame Parith and County, Gentle-
man ; and Charles Cranburie, late of the fame Pa-
rifh and County, Ycoman ; not having the Fear
of God 1n their Hearts, nor weighing the Duty
of their Allegiance, but being moved and feduced
by the Inftigation of the Devily as falfe Traitors
againft the moft Screne, moft IHuftrious, moft
Mild, and moft Exc..lent Prince, our Sovereign

Yord, WILLIAM the Third, by the Grace of
God, of Englard, Scotland, France, and Irelaid,
King, Defender of the IFaith, &', their Supreme,
"T'rue and Rightful, Lawful and Undoubted Lord;
the Cordial Love, and True and Due Obedience,
Fidelity and Allegiance, which every Subjeét of
our faild Lord the King, that now is, towards
him our faid Lord the King, fhould, and of
Right, ought to bear, withdrawing, and utterly to
extinguifh, Intending and Contriving, and with
all their Strength Purpoling, Defigning and Con-
{piring the Government of this Kingdom of Eug-
land, under him our faid Lord the King that now
15, our Right, duly, happily, and very well efta-
blifhed, aliogether to fubvert, change, and aleer ;
as alfo the fame our Lord the King to Death and
final Deftruction to put, and bring, and his faith-
ful Subjetts, and the Freemen of this Kingdom of

Enclard, into mtolerable and moft miferable
Slavery to Lewis the French King, to fubjugate
and enthral, the 1oth Day of February, in the Se-
venth Year of the Reign of our Sovereign Lord
the King that now 1s, and divers other Days
and Times, as well before, as after, at the Pa-
rith of St, Paul Coyent-Gard i atorefaid, in the
County aforefaid, faifly, malicioufly, devilifhly,
and traiteroufly, did compafs, umagine, and con-
trive, purpolfe, defign, intend, ourfaid Lord the
King that now is, to kill, flay, and murder; and
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miferable Slaughter among the faithful Subje&s
of our {aid Lord the King throughout this whole
Kingdom of England, to make, and caufe, and
the fame their moft wicked, impious, and devi-
lith Treafons, and traiterous Compaflings, Con-
trivances, and Purpofes aforefaid, to fulfil, per-
fect, and bring to Effcct, they the faid Chriflopher
Kmghtley, Robert Lowick, Ambrofe Reokwiod,
and Charles Cranburne, and very many other falfe
Traitors to the Jurors unknown ; afterwards, to
wit, the fame 1oth Day of February, in the Year
abovefaid, at the Parifh aforefaid, in the County
aforefaid, and diverfe other Days and Times, as
well before as after s there, and elfewliere, In the
fome County, falfly, malicioufly, advifedly, fecret
ly, and traiteroully 5 and with Force and Arms
did meet together, propofe, treat, confulr, con-
fent, and agree, him our faid Sovercign Lord the
King, that now 1s, by lying in Wait and Wild,
to affaflinate, kill, and murder, and that execrable,
hoirid, and detcftable Aflaffination and Killing,
the fooner to execute and perpetrate 5 afterwards,
to v it, the fame Day and Year, and diverle other
Days and Times, at the Panifh aforefaid, in the
County aforefaid ;5 traiteroufly did treat, propole,
and confult, of the Ways, Manner, and Means,
and the Time and Place, where, when, how, and
in what manner, our faid Lord the King, fo by
lying 1n wait, the more ealily they might lkill,
and did confent, agree, and aflent, that Forty
Horfemen, or thereabouts; of whom the faid
Chriftopher Kuightley, Robert Lowick, Ambrcfe
Roovkwsod, and Charles Cranburye, would be four
and every one of them traitercufly took upon him-
{elf to beone, with Guns, Muskets, and Piftols,
loaden with Gun-powder, and Leaden Bullets;
and, with Swords, Rapiers, and other Arms,
armed, fhould lie in Wait, and be in Ambufh, the
fame our Lord the King in his Coach being,
when he fhould go abroad to fet upon, and that a
certain and competent Number of thofe Men fo
armed fhould fet upon the Guards of him our faid
Lord the King then attending on him, and being
with him, and fhould fight with them, and over-
come them, whillt others of the famie Men {o
armed, him, our faid Lord the King, to aflaffinate,
kill, flay, and murder : And they the faid Chriffo-
pher Knightley, Robert Lewick, Ambicfe Roskzvacd,
and Charles Cranburne, their Treafons, and all
their Tramerous Intentions, Defigns, and Con-
trivances aforefaid, to execute, perpetrate, fulfil
and bring to Effe€t afterwards, to wir, the afore-
faid 1oth Day of Febrnaiy, 1n the Seventh Year
aforefaid, ac the Parifh aforefaid, in the County
abovefaid, divers Horfes, and very many Arms,
Guns, Piftols, Rapiers, and Swords, and other
Weapons ; Ammunition, and Warlike Things,
and miliary Inftruments. falfly, maliciouily, fe-
cretly, and trarteroufly did obuain, buy, gather
together, and procure 5 and did cauf to be bought,
obtain’d, gather’d rogeiher, and procured with
that Intent, them, 1n and about the deteflable,
horrid, and execrable Aflafiination, Killing, and
Murder of our faid Lord the King, that now is,
as aforefaid, to ufe, employ, and beflow 5 and the
fame Premiffes che more falely, and cerrainly to
execute. do, and perpetrate, he the alorefaid Cori-

fropher Kuightley, with one Edward King, lately

of High4l'reafon, in Contriving and Confpiring
the Death of our faid Lord the King that now 18
duly conviéted and attainted, by the Confent and

Affent of divers of the Traiors and Conipira-
tOTS
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tors aforefaid, the faid tenth Day of February, in
the feventh Year abovefaii, traiteroufly did go
and come to the Place propofed, where fuch in-
rended Affaffination, Killing and Murder, of our
faid Lord the King, by lying 1n Wair, fhould be
done, perpetrated and committed, to view, fee,
and oblerve the Conveniency and Fitnefs of the
fame Place, for {uch lying in Wair, Affaffination
and Killing, there to be done, perpetrated, and
committed ; and that Place being {o viewed and
obferved afierwards, to wit, the fame Day and
Year, his Oblervations thereof to feveral of the
faid Traitors and Conlpirators, did rclate and im-
party to wit, at the Panfh atorefaid, in the Coun-
ty aforefaid, and the aforefaid Charles Cranburne,
the fame Day and Year there in order, the fame
exacrable, horrid, and deteftable Affaffination, and
killing of our faid Lord the King, by the Trai-
tors and Confpirators aforefaid, the more readily
and boldly to execute, perpetrate,. and commit,
advifedly, knowingly, and tratieroully, did bear
and carry among divers of thofe Traitors and
Confpirators forwards and backwards, from fome
to others of them, a Lift of the Names of diverfe
Men of thofe who were defigned and appointed,
our faid Lord the King, {o as aforefaid, by lying

in Wait to kill and murder, againft the Duty of

the Allegiance of themthe faid Chrifopber Knivhi-
ley, Rebert Lowick, Ambrofe Reokwsoed, and Charles
\Cranburne ; and agaiaft the Peace of our faid
Sovereign Lord the King that now 1s, his Crown
and Digpity, as alfo againit the Form of the Sea-
tute 1n {uch Cafe made and provided : Upon this
Indi¢tment he has been arraigned, and thereunto
hath pleaded Not Guilty, and for his Trial hath
put lumfelf upon God and the Country, which
Country you are: Your Charge is to inquire, whe-
ther he be guilty of the High-Treafon whereof he
{tands indicted, or not guilty ;s 1f you find him
guilty, you are to inquire what Goods or Chattels,
Lands or Tenements, he had at the Time of the
High-Trreafon coinmitted, or at any Time fince,
to your Knowledge. If you find him Not Guil-
ty, you are to inquire whether he fled for i, if
you find he fled for it, you are to inquire of his
Goods and Chattels, as if you had found him
Guiley ; if you find him Not Guilty, and that he
did not fly for it, you are to fay fo,and no more ;
and hear your Evidence.

My, Mountague. May it pleafe your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury, this 1s an Indict-
ment of High-Treafon againft Robert Lowick, Pri-
foner at the Bar, and the Indiftment does charge
him with compaffing and imagining the Death of
the King, and endeavouring to fubvert the Govern-
ment, and inflave this Kiogdom of England, and
bring it under French Tyranny and Slavery, and
the Indictment fets forch that Rebert Lowick, the
Prifoner at the Bar, the Tenth of Feornary, met
feveral falfe Traitors, and there confulted and
treated how to affaffinate his Majefty 5 and agreed,

that forty Horfemen to get together, fome to at-
tack the Guards, while others were to affaflinate

the King in his Coach ; and the Indiftment char-
ges him likewife with getting togetber Hor{es and
Arms for this purpofe, to this he hath pleaded Not
Guilty. We will call our Evidence, and prove the
Fat againft him, and we do not doubt but you
will do your Duty. '

M. Att. Gen, May it pleafe your Lorcthip, and
you Gentlemen that are f{worn, this Is an Indi&t-
ment of High-"T'reajon, in confpiring and compal-

Vour. IV,

for High-"Treafon.
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Nacure of our Evidence agamft the Prifoner at
the Bar Is this.

You will hear, Gentlemen, by the Witneflts,
that about Chriffmas laft a Confpiracy and Delign
was {ct on foot to affaffinate the King, and accord-
togly to accomplithic, there were feveral Perfons
fent over from France by the late King Fames,
who were Part of his Guards, and particularly
Sir George Barclay was to be the [Head of them
he was a Lieutenant of the Guards there, and he
was fent over in Faneary laft, and there were a
creat many Troopers fent over, who were to be
under his Direction, particularly Mr. Harris, who
will give you an Account, that he was fent over by
Order of King James, and he was told partice-
larly King Fames had a Service for him to do in
England, and he hoped it might be an Opportu-
nity to advance him., He was to obferve the Or-
ders of Sir George Barelay, and by what Token he
fhould know him 3 hewas to meet him in Covent-
Garden, and he was told he might find him there
twice 2 Week in the Square, about fix o’clock,
after it was dark 3 and that he might know him,
he told him, he would have his white Handker-
chief hanging out of his Pocker ; accordingly M.
Harris came over, and Mr. fare came with him,
and they came and did meer with Sir George Bay-
dlay, and they, together with Sir Gerrge Barclay,
and feveral others here In England, ™ir. Porter,
Mr. Charnock, and Sir WWilliam Pei fins, did eater
into Confultation how to effe& it; There were fe-
veral Meetings about it, and you will find the Pri-
foner at the Bar was at feveral Meetings t. that
Purpole, and they did undertake among them, to
provide fo many Men as might make about the
Number of Forty, which they thought fufficient
for the Execution of this Defign,

Gentlemen, you will hear that the Prifoner at
the Bar did treat with feveral Perfons to be en-
gaged In it; pariicolarly abour the 5th of Febry-
ary, he fent to one Bertram, and asked himif he
would be engaged in aDefign for K. Fames's Service
that was quickly to be executed, without asking
of Queftions, and afterwards, I think, he under-
took he would: So about the 14th of Februaryhe
met him again, and that was the Day bafore the
firft Time they intended to atiack the King, and
then being fo near the Time when it was to be ex-
ecuted, he thought it proper to acquaint him with
the Thing he had engaged him in ; and he did ac-
quaint him, That the next Morning they were to
be ready to attack the King and his Guards, and
bid him be fure to get his Boots and other Things
ready for that purpofe, and he gave him a Guinex
i orderto it.  Bertrain, it {eems, on the 15th of
Febraary did not come, and the King it feemsdid
not go abroad that Day, fo they were difappoint-
ed at that Time; but the Sunday afier Bertram

met him, and Mr, Lowick complained that he had
not come upon the Saturday according as he had
undertalens and he told hiniit would have been
the fame Thing, he would have difappointed them
if the King had been in the Field.

Gentlemen, you fhall find, Thar as he thus en~
gaged Mr. Bertiam, fo he was to provide feveral
others; and did declare, That at his own Charge
he had got two or three, he complained of it asa
Hardihip putupon him, That whereas Mr. Harri;
had 6 5.2 Day Subfilterice, and was only to 1ake
care of himfelf, he, Mr. Lowick, had at his own
Charges engaged and provided {everal,
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Vou will find, Gentlemen, that Mr. Roeokwood,
who was ried Yefterday, bad feveral Meetings a-
bout i, with Mr. Lowict and Mr, Harris; they
did chinicit to be a barbarous Thing : But however,
they were refolved to obey Orders, and the Pri-
foner in particular faid he would obey Orders, tho’
he thought it a very wicked Thing.

Gentlemen, you will find by the Evidencenow
the Matter was carried on 3 the Prifoner was to
he engaged in it, and did not only embark him-
{elf in Perfon, but engaged others, and did treat
with them about it.  We thall call cur W unefies,
who will give you a full Account of it, and then
we fhall leave it with you, who we queltion not
will do Juftice. Firltcall George Harris 5 who ap-
peared and was {worn, |

Nir. Sol. Gen. Pray will you give an Accountto
my Lord and the Jury, what you know ot the in-
tended Afaflination, and what Part the Prifoner at
the Bar had in it.

Ldr. Conyers, Begin from the firft, and tell your
whole Knowledge as you did Yeiterday.

My, Harris. Onthe 14th of Fauwary, New Stile,
I was ordered to wait on King James at Dnner ;
after Dinner was over, 1 was called in, where was
Col. Parler and Mr. Hare at the fame Time, and
King Fames told me he was very {enfibie of the
good Service I had donehim 5 and now he hadan
Opportunity of coing fomething forme: 1 was to
¢o irto England, and there to be {ubfifted, and [
was to follow the Orders of Sir George Barclay
the King roid me | thould find Sir Geosge Barclay
in Covent-Gardeiny with a white Handkerchief hang-
ing out of his Pocker, on Apndays and Thitrfdays
between the Heurs of fix ard feven in the Even-
ing, and that wasthe Sign I was to know himby,
and he ordered me t go to Mr. Carell, that 13
Secretary to the late Queen, and Col. Parke went
along with me, and he ordered me ten Lessid.res,
and Mr. Hare as much, which Mr. Cerofl gaveus
and if that were not fufficient, or if we were
VWind-bound at Cslazs, we had Orders to apply to
the Prefident of Calaisic se furnifhed with whatwe
wanted : accordingly we went, and the Wind
not {erving when wecome to Calats, we were for-
ced to ftay there, and our Chaiges were paid to
our Landlady by the Prefidentjof Calais, according
to the Order we received at St. Germaiits ; when
the Wind ferved fair we went on board, and came
to Rumney-marfh, toone Mr. Hunt’s Houle, and
from thence he furnifhed us witha Couple of Hor-
fes, and we came the Sandy-way to one Mr, Te-
ker's, and from thence to Mr. Crofs’s, and from
thence to Gravefend, and from thence to Loudon :
We came up in the Night-tide, and being late
when we came to Town, Swuday-night, we lay at
an Inn at the lower-ena of Gracechurch-fireet 5 the
next Day we went to look for Sir George Bardlay,
but not finding him 1n Coveirt-Garden, according
to what King Fame; told us, Iadmired at it ; but
one Mr. Birkenbead meeting my Comrade the next
Day, faid, Sir Gesrge Barclay defired to fee us, and
appointed us to meet him, which we did that
Night, where Sir Gesrge Barclay ask’d ushow the
King and Queen, Prince and Princefs did ; he told
us at that Time he had no Money for us, but in a
few Days we thould have Money ; and accord-
ingly he fent us Money., We had five Guineas,

but it was at twice 3 two Guineas at one Time,
and three at another, and this was for a Month’s
Subfiftence at five Shillings a Day, Guineas going
then at thirey Shillings.  Ard afterwards when
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Major Holmes delivered the Heorle, upon Saturdzy
the 15th, we had another Guinea, that made up
what we had to be fix Shillings a Day when we
had Horles, and five Shillings a Day when we
had none: And as for Mr, Lowick, the firlt Satur-
day which was defigned for the Aflaffination, [
happened to beat Mr. Counter’s Lodgings in £e/-
bornya Confeltioner’s 3 and there I fee Mr. Lowvick
core 1n,

M. Conyers. W ho lodged there, pray Sir ?

Haivis, Sir Geoige Barelay and My. Conister had
Lodgings there 5 and Mr. Lowick came in there,
but 1 cannot fay he ftay’d there any Time, I think
he went out prefently afterwards, Thenext Week
I met Mr. Lowick in Red-lyon Ficlds, and dif-
courfed with him there about this Matter, and I
told him what a barbarous and inhumane Thing
it was that we fhould be the Murderers of the
Prince of Orange, and that it would render us odi-
ous to the World, and that we fhould be a conti-
nual Reproach to cur ferves 5 Le did agree it was
{o : But in concluiion Mr. Lowick faid he would o~
bey Orders, and he faid Sir George Barclay he was
fure would not do it withcut Orders;  That Day
when we were walking out, we met Sir Georpe
Barday and Najor Heluses riding in the High-way
up towards {fliugion, and we {poke to him, for
Mr, Lowicz told me the Thing was difcovered, and
his Name was given up, and other Gentlemens,
and Ithink another; and fo hetold me that one
Hairifon tola himvot it, and forewarned him that
Night irom lying in his Lodging; and he told
him that he belicved it would not be fafe for the
Reft to lie in their Lodgings, or to that effe&.

My, Att, Gen. When he faid he would obey Or-
ders, VW hat was the Difcourfe abeut?

Harris, We were talking of murdering the
Prince of Orange: And not only that, but I do
believe that Mr. Lowick is {o fenfible that what I
{ay 1s true, and heis a Man of o much Conftience
and Honour, that he will not contradiét any thing
that | affirm or have faid here, On Satuiday the
Two and Twentieth we dined at the Caftle, a Ta-
vern or 2 Cook’s Shop, atthe End of Red-lyon
Street. 1 was much in a Sweat, and he asked me
what made me fo ¢ I told him1 had been getting
Captain Kockwood’s Party ready ; and I rold him
(laughtng) that Captain Rookwscd faid 1 thould be
his 4id du Camp,end {o I was getting the Men to-
gether : Says he to me, you may very well do
ity for you have Six Shillings a Day, and I have
nothing. Mr. Lewick, you know what I fay to be
true 5 1 krow rot why you lift up your Hands ;
but you cid tell me I might very well do it, having
fix Shillings 2 Day, and you had nothing, and yer
broughta Couple of Men at your own Charge, and
that ther Horfes could not be difcharged unlefs
you went. Thefe were hic Words, my Lord, or
to this effect,

Mr., At Gen. What do you mean by being
difcharged ?

Harris. ITmean this, that T belicve he paid for
them ; und they were waiting at 2 Houle tili he
came.

Ar. Conyers. Why were they to be difcharged
that Day ?

Harvis. The Reafon why they were to be dif-
charged that Day, was, becaufe Caprain Roobwood
had told him before, that the Prince of Oraszz did
not gooutthat Day ; and therefore we went oge-
ther to walk towards /flingren.

L. C. 7. What Day was that?

Harris.
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Harris. The fecond Saturdaythat it was to have
been exccuted. I was not a Spy upon any Man’s
Aéions: 1 cannot tell what they did any more
than [ tell you: ! do not wrong you any Way
in the World, Sir, 1 am {fure on 1t.

L. G F. When was 1t that you {poke with
Mr. Lowick about murdering the King?

Harris. 1t was Monday, Tuefday, IV ednefday, or
Thurfday, 1 cannot be exact to the Day, buc it
was one of thele Days, after the orlt Saturday;
1 cannot be politive what the Day was.

L.C. . Well, it was between the two Days?
Harris, Yes, 1t was,

L.C. ¥. How did you know of that Defign of

murdering the King?

Harris. | was intorm’d of it by Captain Rook-
wood the firlt Saturday, and 1 met Mr. Lowick
and had this Dicourfe about tit: and afterwards
they informed me that Mr. Dela Rue did not lie at
his Lodgings, and the Tbhing was difcovered, and
they believed chat Rwe had difcovered 1t: And |
defire vou'll call Mr. De /a Rue as to this Matter
for I believe he will own it.

Mr. Sol. Gen. How came you to cruft him wich
fuch a Difcourfe?

Harris. Becanie we met there at Counter’s Lodg -
ings, and we had feveral times Difcourfes of it
there was Major Bernard and Capt. Rookwsod be-
fides, and | always declared againft it as a bar-
barous and inhuman Thing, not to be anfwer'd
before God or Man, and that we fhould be odious
to all the World if the Thing were effefted, as I
believ’d it would not be. I wou’d never fhew my
Head after fuch a Thing,

M. Sol. Gen. Do youremember who began the
Difcourfe of this Matter ?

Farris. 1 cannot tell that.
every Particular,

Sir B. Shower. You faid jult now, you appre-
hended Mr. Lowick to be a Man of Confcience
and Honour; Pray what were his Sentiments a-
bout it ?

Harris, His Sentiment was, That he would
obey Sir George Barclay’s Orders; and he was
fure Sir George Barclay would not do it without

Orders.
Sir B. Shewer. Did not he declare it to be a

barbarous Defign?

Harris. 1 can’c remember every particular Thing
that he faid; for I am not a Spy upon any Man’s
Actions.

Lowick. When you were talking of that Defign
that you fpeak of, pray did I confent to any
fuch Thing?

Harris. 1 tell you how far you confented ; you
faid you wou’d obey Sir Geerge Barclay's Orders,
and you was fure he would not do it without Or-
ders.

Mr. Mompeffon. Did you fee any of Sir George
Barclay’s Orders ?

Harris. No, I did not, [ was to follow his Or-
ders; but what Orders he had 1 canaor tell,

Mr. Sol. Gen. What did Sir George Barclay tell

you you were to do?
Hariis, Sir George Barelay declared, on the firft

Saturday, that we weie his Janizaries, and talk’d
of attacking and bringing away the Garter: [ can-
not fay this Gentleman was by wen; and after-
wards Sir George Barcday went out asd returned,
anJ came i again into the Roomn, and declared
ti.ic we were -ien of Honour, and that we were
to attack tae Prince of Orange.
Vou. 1V.
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Mr, Mompeflon. Did Sir George Barclay give the
Prifoner at the Bar any Orders?

Harris. | don’t tell you he did.

Mr. Mompelfon, You fay you met Sir Georpe
Barclay and Major Helmes upon the Road going
to Iflington: How do you know the Prifoner was
there?

Harris. Why, was pot I with him? T am very
forry to come upon this Account; but you know
it 1s Truth all that i fay; and ) am fure you are
fenfible 1 do you no Wrong: He met Sir Georye
Barclay and viajor Holmes, and he weat down and
faid {fomething to Sir George Barelay in the High-
way 3 what 1t was 1 don’t know ; but I ftood, und
Captain Rookwood and Mr. Bernard faid fomething
to him, which you very well know,

Mr, Ait. Gen, What was ic?

Harris. 1 can't tell, Sir.

Mr. Ait. Gen. We do not defire you to tell what
you can’t tell: Is this all you know?

Harris, It 1s all at prefent that 1 recollect.

Mer. Sol. Gen. Then pray fwear Mr. Bertram,

| Which wa, done.)

Mr, Conyers. Pray will you give an Account to
my Lord and the Jury what you know of this in-
tended Affaflination, aud how far the Prifoner
was concerned 1n I,

Bertram. My lL.ord, about the Beginning of
February lalt, Mujor Lowick came to me, and ask’d
me 1f I would cfpoufe a Thing wit him that
might be for my Advantage; I told him that I
thought I might efpoufe any Thing that he thought
fit to engage in.

Mr. Momgeffon. Whom did you tell fo?

Bertram. Major Lowick: And he told me it
was well, and defired me to ask no more Quefti-
ons: I did not; buc it went on to the 14th of
February, when he defired me to be ag his Lodg-
ings at twelve o’ clock. Iwas fo abour that Time,
but he was not within, and I ftay’d till he came
in, and he took me up into his Chamber, and
told me he believed they fhould ride out in {fome
litele Time 5 and he told me he believed the King
was to be {eiz’d in his Coach, and he gave me 2
Guinea to buy me Neceflaries,

L. C. ¥. What Neceffaries?

Bertram, 1 can’t fay he nam’d any,

My, Ast. Gen. But for what Purpole were thofe
Nece(faries ¢

Bertram. 1 don’t know that he nam’d any
Thing, indeed.

Mr. Aut. Gen, Well; did he tell you when you
were to be ready ¢

Bertram. If you pleafe to give me leave, I’ll tell
you: He delired me not to be out of the Way;
and the next Morning I was to meet him at the
Purl-Houfe in Hart-fireet. I did not meet him
and the next Time I faw him, [ am not pofitive
whether it was the next Day after the Fifteenth
when I was to meet him at Hart-fireet, bur did
not {o; but the next Time | faw him, he ask’d
me why 1 did not meet him according ro his Ap-
pointment? I told him, | had fome Reafon for
it; and he anfwer’d me again, That he helieved,
if the King had been in the Field, 1 would have
done the fame; but 1 have not feen him fince,
till [ faw him at che Bar.

Mr, Ant.Gen. Had you no Difcourfe of Horfes
that you were to provide

Bertram. I do not remember any particular
Thing more than 1 have told you.
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Mr. At Gea. Did he not tell you what the De-
fign was you were to go about ?

Bertram. He did not tell me of any other De-
fign than as I tell you, for he believed I knew of
it; | thought fo at leaft: The firft time I knew
of it was from Mr. Charnock.

L.C. ¥. What did he tell you was the Defign
that you fhould engage in for your Advantage up-
on Friday the 14th, when he gave you the

Guinea? ‘
Bertram. He told me, he believed they fhould

ride out very fuddenly, and that the King was to

be feized 1n his Coach.
L.C. . Did he tell you when the King was to

be feized ?

Bertram, No, he did not tell me when, but
this was the 14th, the next Morning I was to
meet him at Hari-fireet, but did not.

Mr. Sol, Gen. Who did te tell you the King
was to be feiz’d by ?

Bertram, He did not nominate any one elfe,
for he obliged me not to ask him Queftions, nor
1 did not.

Alr. Sol.Gen. Did he name himfelt to be con-

cerned ?
Bertram. He named himfelf {o far, as that he

believed he thould ride out very {uddenly.

My, Sol. Gen. Was it the next Morning, or the
next Day?

Bertram, 1 cannot fay that he named any par-

ticular Time,
My A Gen, Will they ask him any Queftions?

Sir B. Shower. No, I think we fhall not.

Mr. Mountagye. Pray, Mr. Beitram, will you
anfwer me one Queftion, What did he fay to you
when he check’d you for not coming according

to his Appointment?
Bertram. 1 took it as a Kind of a Check : He

told me, that if the King had been 1n the Field,
he believed I would have done the fame.

Sir B. Shower, There 1s one Thing we muft a
little examine this Gen:':man to: Were not you
under a Neceflity before that Time that he gave
you the Guinea? Pray what Condition were you
in?

Bertram, Under Neceflity, Sir! T was never

very plentiful of Money of late,
Sir B. Shower, Did he never give you a Guinea

or two before in Charity, and out of Compaffion
to your Neceflities ?

Bertram. He has given me Money feveral Times
before; and I believe if I would have ask’d him
for any Money, he would have given it me.

My, dtt. Gen. Was this Money given you for
Charity, or for any other, and what Purpofe?

Bertram. 1did not ask him for any thing, but
he gave it me, and faid, There’s a Guinea to buy
you Neceffaries,

My, Ati, Gen. What was the Difcourfe before

that?
Bertram, 1 told you, he faid, he believed they

were to ride out very fuddenly, and he believed
the King was to be feized in his Coach, and he
defired me not to be out of the Way,

Mr. Cowper. And when he gave you the Guinea
to buy you Neceflaries, was it immediately after
this Difcourfe?

Bertram, Sir, it was at the fame Time.

Lowick. Did not I give your Wife 2 Guinea

two Months before this?
Bertram. Yes, Sir; I acknowledge 1 was in-

formed you did, 1 was not in Town then.
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Lowick. Pray let the Court know that.

L. C. 7. Did he tell you the King was to be
feized in his Coach, before he told you they were
to ride out very fuddenly ?

Bertram, No, afterwards; and then he eave
me the Guinea. T

Sir B. Shower. His Words are not coupled to-
gether, they have no Relation to one another.

L.C.7. No; but he told him they were to
ride out very fuddenly, and the King was to be
feized in his Coach, and gave him a Guinea to
buy him Neceffaries at the fame Time.

L. C. . Tieby. There’s no doubt he was enga-
ged In the Defign with thofe other Perfons.

Mr. Conyers. And afterwards be rebuked him
becaufe he had not met him; and he faid, it
would have been the fame Thing if the Kipg had
been 1n the Field,

Mr. Montague. What Day in the Week was i
that you failed him?

Bertram. It was on a Saturday.

Juryman, Pray, my Lord, we defire to know,
who he did underftand by the King that was to
be feized.

L. C. 7. What did he call the King ?

Bertram. He faid nothing but the King,

L. C. ¥. Who did you underftand by that?

Beyptram, 1 leave it to the Court, I am not to
interpret Things.

L.C. ¥, Treby. Did he name the Prince of
Orange, or King Fames? Did you think Kine
Fames was to be {eized ? 2

Bertram. My Lord, Itell you what he faid, I
am not to interpret his Words.

Mr. 4it. Gen, Do you believe he meant Kipo
Fames, or this King, that was to be feized?

Bertram. 1 believed 1t might be the King here,

L. C. 7. Take the Words asthey are; heask’d
him before, W hether he would engage in a De-
fign that might be for his Advantage? On Fridsy
the 14th of February he meets him at his Lodging,
and tells him, he was to ride out fuddenly, and
that the King was to be feized in his Coach, and
appointed him to meet him the next Morning, and
gave him a Guinea to buy him Neceffaries,

Mr. Mompeffon. Pray, has not Mr, Lewick gi-
ven you Clothes, Linen and other Things at any
other Time?

Bertram. Sir, you have been always ready to
ferve me, Imuftacknowledge, and you have been
very kind to me,

Lowick, It you pleafe to give an Account of
my Character, whether ever I was guilty of any
bloody Thing.

Bertram. No, Sir,

Sir B. Shower. How long have you known
Mr, Lowick ?

Bertram, Ibelieve I have known him this 20
Years,

Sir B. Shower. What Behaviour has he been of ?

~Bertram. He has always had very good Beha-
viour, and the teft; he has had the beft Charater
of all Mankind,

Sir B. Shewer. Did youever know him inclin’d
to do a ralh Altion?

Bertram. Never in my Life.

Sir B. Shower. Did you ever know him do 2
malicious Aétion?

Bertram. No, buthe had always the Charaéter
of a good Man, and was always ready to ferve
any Man 1n his Necefficies, and to do Good ; he

has that general Charadter abread.
L.C. 7.
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L. C. °f. Where does he live?
Birtram. He lived lalt at Browilpzo-fireet, but he

has no Wife nor Family, and fo hasno fix’d Being,

L. G. . What was his Way of Living?

Bertram, He was bred a Soldier, and has been
abroad.

L. C. ¥. Where,

Bevtram. In [eland,

L. C. 7. In whole Service?

Bertram. In the Service of King Fames.

Lowick. He knows parucularly, that once [ was
upon a Party and faved five Officers from being
killed 1n cold Blood.

L. C. 7. What Countryman Is he?

Bersram. Torkfbirve.

Mr. Mompeffon. Was ne accounted of a cruel
or a bloody Nurure ¢

Bertram. No, of a quite contrary.,

Furyman. My Lord, I defire to know for what
Caufe he gave him or his Wife a Guinea.

Bertram. 1 know not what that Guinea was for
that he gave me the fourteenth of February, any
otherwife than as 1 have told you.

Mr. Mompeffon. What was the Guinea given
to your Wife for?

Beitram. Vor that Guinea given to my Wife,
it was oyt of his own Kindnels gnd Goodnefs to
my Family and me,

Mr. At. Gen. ' What was the other Guinea for?
You are ypon your Quth.

Bertram. Indeed, Sir, I cannot tell; he gave
it me to buy me Neceffaries.

Mr. A4t Gen, Was there nothing elfe mention-
ed what Neceffaries thofe were to be?

Bertram. No, Siry upon my Qath there was
not any particular mentioned.

Mr. At Gen. What made him fo kind to you,
pray

Bertram, We were both born ina Town, and
I believe we are near related.

Sir B. Shower. You fay you are Towns-People,
and have been long acquainted, and you knew
him in Ireland, pray did you ever know that he
faved any People’s Lives?

Bertram, 1 was not in that Aétion my felf, but
all that were in it gave that Relation, that he
was very favourable, and did fave Peoples Liives,
particularly one Captain HgiJow, and brought
him and other Prifoners, and i remember the
Thing ; it was about a Fortnight before the Bu-
finefs of the Boyire, upon a Sunday Morning, that
they took thofe Prifoners, and he did perfuade fe-
veral Parties that he commanded, to decline kil-
ling, as much as they could: | was not in this
Aétion, but this I heard of all that were in i,
and from the Prifoner.

Mr, 8ol. Gen. When he gave you that Guinea,
did not he {peak any Tning of a Hurle that was to
be provided for you?

Bertram. Not a Word: I never did fee a Horfe
upon that Account, nor was § Malter of a Horfe,

nor was [ told I thould have a Horle in any refpect

whatfoever.
Furyman. FHow could you ride out, as you fay

they were to do, without a Horle, or without
knowing any Thingof a Horfe to be provided
for you?

Beitram. 1 did not know of a Horfe,

L C.7. Buthe faid you were toride out {peedily.,

Bertram, No: he faid in geaeral, we fhould
ride ou: {1 iderly,

Mr. 4. Gen. Who was there befides your felf?

for High-Trealon.
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Bertram, No Body.
Mr. Ar. Gen. Then that we myft mean you and
him. And how were you to ride out without 2
Horfe? Pray mind what you {wear?

Bertram. 1was to meet him the next Morning,
but did not.

Mr., A4t Gen, Pray what con’d you underftand
by that, that you were to ride out fuddenly, and
had no Horfe?-

Bertram. That was underfood, that if I did
ride out, I muft have a Horfe, '

Mr. At Gen. Who fhould you haye it from?
had you a Horfe of yeur own?

Bertram. No, T had not.

Mr, At. Gen. Did you intend tohire 2 Horfe?

Bertram. No, I did not.

Mr. A4t Gen, Did not you ask where you were
to have a Horfe?

Bertram No, 1 did not ask nor inquire, nor
was 1t promis’d me I fhould have a Horfe.

Mr. 4t Gen. Did he tell you where you were
to ride ?

. Bertram. The next Morning 1 was to meet
im.
Mr. At. Gen. For what? to ride out wasit?

Bertram. 1 can’t reaily tell whether it was upon
that Account or not.

Mr. A!. Gen. Whether did he tell you where he
was to ride?

Bertram, Indeed he did not.

Juryman. It is very ftrange that you did not
ask him where he was to go, nor ask him for a

Horle,

Bertram, T was {o fenfelefs, that T neither did
ask him about a Horfe, nor everknew of any that
was to be provided for me,

Furyman. Did you underftand what was meant
by the Riding out fuddenly?

Bertram, 1 did take it to be about the Bufinefs,
the feizing of the King,

Furyman. Did he compare it to attacking him.
in the Field ¢

Bertram, No, he did not; but he faid he be-
lieved the King would be feized in his Coach
he made no Comparifons. -

Mr. Mountagne. Pray Mr. Bertram, why did
you not meet him? What Reafons had you for
not doing it?

Bertram. 1 thought 1t not requifite to meet
him.

Mr. Montague. What, had you no Mind to
the Thing?

Bertram, No, Ihad not; becaufe 1 thought the
Thing very unlawful, |

Mr., At. Gen. Pray what was that Thing you
fpeak of, that you thought was unlawful?

Bertram. | thought it was about feizing and
killing the King,

L.C. 7. Pray mind; there is no Body defires
you fhould {peak more than the Truth; but on
the other fide, being upon your Qath, you are to
{peak the whole Truth 3 for if you conceal any
Part of the Truth, though you have a Kindnefs
for your Countryman Mr. Lowsck, who has been
kind to you, you will forfwear your fclf, for you
make a different Reprefentation of the Matter,
and make 1t appear quite otherwife than it is;
pray do not ftrain one Tittle, but let us have all
the Truth,

Bertram, 1 don’t believe I {train ore Bit.

Mr. Mintague. Then tell my Lord why you
did not meet him,

Bertram.
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Beriram. I did believe it was about feizing and

killing the King, and I did think it to be ille-

al.

gh Mr. Montague, Why did you think it wasabout
that?

Bertram. Becaufe Mr. Charnock had told me of
it before;

Mr. 4t Gen, How did you know that was
what Lswick fpoke to you about ¢

Bertram. 1 did fuppofe it to be the fame, be-
caufe he defired me ac firft to ask no Quettions,
no more did I; but 1 took it always tobe the

fame Thing.

Mr. 4t. Gen. What did he fay to you?

Bertram. He told me he had a Bofinels to pro-
pofe to me, if I would engage in, that would be
for my Advantage, but 1 muft ask no Quettions s
talk'd of Riding out fuddenly, and that the King
was to be feized in his Coach, and having heard
of it from Charnock, I thought it was the fame
Bulinefs,

Mr. At Gen. Then, my Lord, we have one
Witnefs more, call Captain Fifker. {He did not ap-
pear.] If he does not appear, we fhall let them go
on, and when he comes in, we can examine him

afterwards. o
L. C.#. Is he a material Witnefs?

Mr. 8o/ Gen. We do apprehend he 1s a very
material Witnefs,

L. C. % 1If you think him a material Witnefs,
it will not be proper for them to enter upon their
Defence, till they have heard the whole Accufa-

100,

The Court ftaid for My, Fither's coming for near an

Hour, and at laft ke came i and was fworn.

L. C. 7. Who is this?

Mr. At. Gen. This is one Captain Fifber.

Mr, Sol. Gen. Pray Captain Fifber, do you
know Mr. Lowick, the Prifoner at the Bar?

Capt. Fifber. 1 have r - talked with Mr. Lowtck
fince the 8th of Febrnary, and then he talked that
he would be ready to ferve his Mafter to the ut-

termoft of his Power.,
Mr. dt. Genr. What Mafter?

Capt. Fifber. King Fames.

Mr. At. Gen. W hat particular Service?

Capt. Fifber. He named no particular Service,
but only that he would be ready to {erve his Mafter
to the uttermoft of his Power.

Mr. 4. Gen. W here was this?

Capt. Fifber. Atthe Cock in Bow-fiieet.

Mr, At Gen. Who was in Company ¢

Capt. Fifber, There was Mr. Harrifon.

Mr. A Gen. Pray give an Account of what
you know of this barbarous bloody Defign.

Capt. Fifber. 1 believe there was a Defign tc
fcize the Prince of Orange.

Mr. At. Gen. What do you know of 1t? you
fay you believe i,

Capt, Fifber. 1 believe it by my Knowledge,
becaule I was concerned 1n it.

Mr. At Gen. By whom was that Delign car-

ried on ?

Capt. Fifber. By Sir George Barclay and Mr.,
Harrifon,

L.C. 7. What was the Defign?

Capt. Fifber. We were to fall upon the Prince
of Orange,

L.C. #. You called him fo, the Prince of

Orange ¢
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Capt, Fifber. Yes, my Lord,

Mr, At. Gen. Well, tell us what happened.

Capt, Fifber. It was to have been done the
15th of February, and we met accordingly the
14th, but the King not going Abroad, it was put
off.

L.C. 7. Who met on the 14th?

Capt. Fifber. 1 met only Mr. Harrifon and Sic
George Barclay, then it was put off il the 22d;
upon the 2 1{t, we met at the Three-Tuns in FHol-
born, and from thence we came to the Sun-Ta-
vern in the Strand, and there was no Body but
Mr. Harrifon and I together, and Sir George Bar-
clay came to us; I believe there were about 14
or 16 1 the Floufe; there Sir George Barclay
told me, Mr. Lowick was to meet me and two
more at an Inn by St. Giles’s Pound, and that we
were to go together to feize the Prince of Orange
the 224,

L.C. ¥ Did you meet him?

Capt Fifber. 1did not meet him, it being put
off by the King’s not going abroad.

”L. C. f. This does not afteCt Mr. Lowick at
all,

Mr. A¢ Gen. It does not, we acknowledge;
but at that time which you fpeak of, the 8th of
February, had you any Knowledge of the Affaffi-
nation !

Capt., Fifber., There was no Aflaflination at
that Time, at leaft it was not then declared.

Mr. 4t. Gen. What was your Difcourfe about
then ?

Capt. Fifber. There was Notice of the King’s
preparing to come lor Lngland,

Mr. At Gen, You fay Mr, Harrifon was there,

Capt. Fifber. Yes, and talked very little about
the Matter, but only that there were Preparations
for the King’s coming.

Mr. At Gen. What did Loewick fay to you?

Capt. Fifber. ] have told you all that Mr, Lo~
wick faid to me.

Mr. 4. Gen. Repeat it again,

Capt. Fifber. He faid he would be ready to
ferve his Mafter, to the uttermoft of his Pow-

er.
Mr. Cowper. Had you no Difcourfe about an

A& of Parliament?

Capt. Fifber. Mr. Lowick faid 1t was not con-
venient to talk with more than one at any Time,
for there was an A& of Parliament on Foot, that
under two Witnefles nothing fhould affelt a
Man’s Life 1n Treafon.

Mr. At Gen. The At of Parliament was then
a making,

L. C. 7. When Mr. Lewick {aid he would ferve
his Mafter, what Difcourfe had you about ir?

Capt. Fifber. Mir. Lowick faid not a Word with-
10, bur at the Door he faid he would ferve his
Matfter to his Power.

Mr. At Gen. W hat was that, that they would
not talk with above one ata time?

Capt. Fifber. Nothing that was thought trea-
fonable Praétices fhould be difcourfed of before
above one at a time, {o [ underftood 1t.

Mr. Sol. Gen. Then, my Lord, we have done.

Sir B, Shower. May n pleafe your Lordfhip,
and you Gentlemen of the Jury ; 1 am of Coun-
fel in this Cafe for the Prifoner at the Bar, and
we do hope here is not Evidence {ufficient to con-
vict him of High-Treafon, the Queftion is not
whether there was a Plot or a Confpiracy to Af-
faffinate the King, or to prepare for an Invafion,

but
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but all that you are to conlider, Gentlemen, is,
vrinether the Evidence agamn(t Mr., Lowick, be
fufficient to convince you, that he did defign to
seize and Affaffinate the King; there are three
Witnefles produced, but we think this Jalt Wit-
nefs, Fiyner, his Teftimony coes not hurt him in
the leaft.  We know your Lordfnip will declare
ondd dire€t the Jury, that the Evidence in a Cafe
of Treafon ought to be plain, not only with re-
fpedt 1o the Fact, that it was done; but alfo of
tuch I'adls as are the Evidences of a Man’s Inten-
rions, and thofe are not to be conltrued by Strains
and Intendments, or Implications 3 unlefs they
he fuch as Evidently, Natorally, and to €ommeon
Underflanding exprefs the Intention, it cannot
he good Evidence in Treafon: Now we fay that
Captain Fiffer has faid nothing at all that will
atte@ the Prifoner, for ull that he fays 1s, that
the Bighth of february he faid he was ready to
ferve his Mafter to the urmoft of his Power, and
any Words as weil as thele may be conftrued to
make a Man guilty of Treafonable Intentions ;
for it might be 2 Recollection of Favours Re-
ceived, or it might be a grateful Intent to ferve
him upon particular Occafions, but that Is no
Evidence upon this Indiétment, Suppofe it was
to ferve hitm upon the fuppofed intendea Inva-
fion, yet with Submiffion, that is not Hwvidence
of the Overt-Aét laid here ; here 1s no Overt-
Aét mentioned of prevaring Arms, or Encourag-
ing Men, or Seducing the King’s Subjells, in
order to the better reftoring of the late King
Fames, or the expetted Landing of the Freich,
or the like. All that is laid wo the Prifoncr’s
Chargg, is the Compafling the King’s Death, and
a Defign to Affaffinate him in his Coach,
and in order to the Afiaffination, he was to buy
Arms and Horfes ; now all that ke fays 1s guite
of another Nature, of 2 quite different Sirain, and
has no Tendency to this Matter, and nothing he
fays that Lowick {hould fay, but 15 applicable the
other Way, and tends more naturally to the In-
vaficn, than to the Affaffination. Your Lordfhip
obivrves there was fome notice taken of what Mr,
Lazwick faould fay, concerning the A& of Par-
Jiament, that he would not talk with above one
at a tumes how far when Life is concerned
fuch loofe Difcourfe ought to be inforced before
a Jury 1 muft leave to your Lordihip; though
a Man may be innocent, yet he may be cautious,
and the more Innoceit, perhaps the more cau-
tious; but that is applicable to the Invafion too,
and has no Relation to the Treafon in this In-
di¢tmen: more than any other. It fhews he was
more wary than others were, but it Is not ap-
plicable to the Faét that he now ftands charged
with. Then the whole of the Evidence depends
upon the Teltimony of Mr. Harris and Mr, Ber-
tram, and we think chey are not two Witnelles
to one Thing, and what they jay muit be {train.
¢d, and intended, and prefumed, to make Evi-
dence of Treafon ; for what Mr, Herris fays a-
bout the Difccurfes between him and the late
King Fames, about receiving Orders from Sir
Gesrpe Barclay, and his Paflage over from Fraice,
and the feveral Stages he and Mr. Hare travelld,
and the Difcourfes between Sir George Barclay
and him; Your Lordfhip will acquaint the Jury
that is no Evidence to affelt Mr. Lowick, nor
what Berkenbead and Hase agreed upon does any
way affect Mr. Lowick, for thole Things may be
all true, and yet My, Lowick innocent of swhat he

Jor High~Treafon.
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flands charged with in this Indi®ment 3 he fays,
That upon the hirft Sarurday he faw Mr. Lowick
at the Confetionei’s, but he canrot fay he ftaid
there at all, there was not a Werd fpoken by
Mr, Lowick that he remembers then, bur what he
fays that feems to touch, and the only Thing
that touches Mr. Lowick, in all this Evidence s,
that upon Monday, Tuefday, M ednelaay or Thurf-
day, it is a preity large Time, between the Fif-
teenth and the Twenty-fecond, he was talking
with Mr. Lowice about the Barbarity of this Bu~
finels, and that Lewick after all, f1id he would
obey Orders ; now with Submiffion, my Lord,
to make that to have Relation to the Aflaffina-
tion muft be by a forc’d ftiain’d Intendment, he
does not declare what the Orders were, nay, he
does not affirm there were any Orders for the
Affaflination, but only that he would obey Ou.
ders; here’s no Order by Writing, no Order by
Parole that Mr. Lscvick declared he would obey; -
as to what Loewick declared about his Intention
of Riding out and Seizing the King in his
Coach ; that cannct be intended the Order that
he was to obey to Aflaflinate the King, that
Order does not appear, there are no Footfteps
of it in all the Evidence, fo that there is no-
thing in that Teltimony that will hurt Mr. L¢-
wick : Then upon the Two and Twenticth when
they dined together, Mr. Earris {ays, that there
was a Difcourfe of two Men, bur it does nor
appear, nor does the Witnefs give any Account
what thofe two Men were to be for; ’tis true
two Men he was to get difcharged, but that is
not Evidence that thefe Men were to make a
Part of thofe Forty, .neither the Words before
nor the Words after can have that Conftruction ;
nay, 1t does not appear it was for any Purpole.at
all, now in the Cafe of Life, where a Man ftands
at the Bar, we hope fuch an Evidence fhall not
be Conftrued to meke a Froof of a Treafon-
able Intention, that thefe were to Affaflinate the
King, or to make Part of the Forty that were
to do It, when it does not appear they were there,
nor who they were, nor any fort of Notice taken
or given upon what Account they were pro-
vided. And then as to Mr., Bertram’s Evidence,
it is palpable that his Evidence and whatfoever
he fays cannot amount to make one Witnefs to
prove an Overt-Act within this Statute, and that
there muft be two Witnefles the Law requires;
what does Mr. Bertram f{ay to prove any Man
guilty of Treafon, but only by Intendment,
Thought or Sufpicion? It is true, Mr. Bestram’s
Evidence would be good enough to commit a
Man upon Sufpicion of Treafon, bur to Convict
him It cannot be; he fays that i the Beginning
of Febrnary he fpoke to him, and rold him he
would employ him in a Bufinefs that would be
for his Advantage, but he muft ask no Queftions;
this 1s very dark, for the Meaning of it does not
appear what was Intended by it; it might ba
one Thing as well as another, it might be to em-
ploy him in his Family, or it might be to fend
him of a Journey, or it might be the taking of
a Farm, but to apply that as an Evidence of a
Charge of High-Treafon, that we think is very
hard, and we hope your Lordfhip will think fo
too; but then he comes and telis you further of
a Difcourfe upon the Fourteenth, of his riding
out {fuddenly, and that the King was to befeized
in his Coach, but he does not fay that he was
to feize him, nor that he would be concerned in
I,
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it, nor that he knew of it, nor did declare at
what time it was to be done, nor any thing
certain whether it was a Prophecy, or a Dream,
or a Story that he related again, or what Jt was;
there i5s no Connection between the Riding out
{fuddenly, and the other Words of feizing the
King in his Coach ; then he fays he gave him a
Guincea to buy him Neceflaries, the Man acknow-
ledges Mr. Lowick feveral times had given him
in Charity-Money, Clothes and other Things,
and gave his Wife a Guinea as you obferve, in
Charity, but he gave him this Guinea on pur-
pofe to buy him Neceffaries, and it is hard that
2 Man’s Charity to a Countryman, to a Townf-
man, to an antient Acquaintance of Twenty
Years fanding, to a Ferfon that he had been fa-
miliar with formerly, and known to have lived
well, fhould be mifinterpreted and flrain’d, to
make it a giving him Money as Subfiftence, and
.a Reward for the doing fuch a Mifchievous
Bloody Aft; We fay his Charity to this Man
formerly is inconfiftent with the Suppofition that
he could be privy to fuch a barbarous Defign
now, and we hope the Jury will conlider the Cha-
raCter that thar very Man has given to my Ch-
ent, for the fame Witnels gives you an Account
of his Behaviour all along, that he was not glven
to Rafh and Barbarous Actions, nor guilty of any
malicious Thing, nay, that he prevented Mif-
chief, and the killing of People in cold Blood,
We muft leave 1t 1o the Jury’s Confideration, and
your Lordfhip's Direction. All thefe things that
they fay may be true, and Lowick be not guilty,
and the acquitting of Mr. Lewick will be no Re-
fletion upon the Witnefies, nor any Difcredit to
the Teftimony that has been given of this Con-
fpiracy 5 but we hope ’tis doing Juftice to this
Man, the Witnefles not coming up to the Proof
of what is laid in the IndiCtment.  We muft beg
your Lordfhip’s Patience a little longer, and cail
fome Witnefles to give youan Account how long
they have known Nir. Lowick, and what his real
Character is; they will tell you he is a peaceable
good Man, and {hew you that his Temper and
Inclination was rather 1o a fober quiet Life than
to lead him to fuch Action, and that they cannot
think him likely to be tempted to be concerned
in fuch a Defign; and then we mult leave it to
the Jury. Call Mrs. Yorke.

Lowick, 1 believe there is no body here that
knows me but will give me that Charaéter.

Mers. Yorke came in, and was fwern.

Sir B. Shower. Pray Mrs. Yorke, how long
have you known My, Lewick ?

Yorke. About a Dozen or Fourteen Years,

fS;";ar- B. Shower. What {ort of Difpofition 1s he
of !

Yorke. He is a Civil Honeft Man as ever I faw
in my Life, or ever knew of ; and 1 never heard
otherwife from any one that knew him.

Sir B, Shower. What was he in his Aétions,
was he Malicious, or Good-natur’d ?

Jorke., As good a natured Man as ever [
faw.

Mr. Mompeffon. Has he the Reputation of a
Cruel Bloody-minded Man?

Forke, Quite the contrary., He lodged in my
Houfe hali a Year, it is not quite & Year ago
fince he fay at my Houfe. He was the moft
obliging Man that ever lay in my Houfe. He
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was fo civil to all the Lodgers, that they admired
him for his Goodnefs, and made them in love
with him,

L.C. ¥
Houfe ?

2orke, He came from his other Landlady, they
could not agree, his other Landlady was a for:
of a Shrew, and therefore he did not care for
ftaying toere; and [ defired his Company, be-
caufe [ knew him to be fo obliging and civil 2
Man.

L.C.F. Where is your FHoufe?

Yorke. [n Blsamsbury.

L. C. 7. Whatis his Way of Living? Is he
a Man of an Eftate?

Torke. 1 cannot tell, I dul not enquire into
that.

L. C. ¥ Had he no Employment to get his
Living by?

Yorke. I do not know any thing of that, I ne-
ver enquired into it; he paid me very honeftly
for my Lodging, and he Is a very good Nan,
for any thing 1 know.

Sir B. Shuwer, Then call Mrs, Mofely,

How came he to lodge at your

She came iny and was fvorn,

L. C. F. Well, what do you ask this Gentle-
woman ?

Sir B. Shower, Pray, Mrs. Mofely, will you
tell my Lord and the Jury: Do you know Mir.
Lowick ?

Mofely. Yes, Sir, 1 do.

Sir B. §bower. How long have you known
him ?

Mpofely, Near twenty Years,

Sir B. Svewer, Pray give an Account upon
your Knowledge what Difpofition and Temper
he 15 of, whether he 1s Rafh, Malicious, Bloody,
and 1l-patur'd.

Mofely, He is a peaceable, virtuous, honeft
Man, and a Man that I never heard or faw that
Creature that could fpeak any ill Thing of him
in my Life; nor I never heard him {peak any
Thing malicioufly of any Creature 1n my Life to
do them a Prejudice : So far from that, that
he 15 a Man has a Character, perhaps, above
any Man that I cculd fpeak or hear of in my
Life, Ifpeak it even above my own Relations,
they may have fome Paffions; but [ never fee
that Gentleman in a Paffion in my Life, He
has lain In my Houfe feveral times, and he has
had Company come to him, but never any that
was Scandalous one Way or other. I never faw
him fuddled ; nor ever heard him Swear, nor any
one accufe him of any of thofe Things.

Mr, Mompeffon, Call Dr. William Mess, Iz
did ot appear,

§ir B, Sbower. The Prifoner has fomething to
fay for himfelf, my Lord, but we moft fubmir
to your Lordthip’s Confideration, and the Jury’s,
whether there be any Evidence but whar is dark
and favours of Sufpicion only ; fufpicious it is,
but whether there be any Evidence tha is plain
and dire¢t as the Law requires in Cales of High-
Treafon, we muft leave it to your Confideration,
for we apprehend there is none.

Lowick, My Lord, as to this Bufinefs, theThing
that I ftand accufed of, cthe Affaflination, I know

nothing in the World of it, nor never did, di-
reCtly or indireCtly s and if I am convicted, and
could, to fave my Life, be the Death of the poor
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eft Child in the World, I would not fave my
Life to do it |

L.C.¥. Look you, I would put you to make’

Anfwer to fome Things; you were at Sir George
Barclay’s, at the Confetioner’s in Holbourir; and
it is fworn he came over upon fuch a Defign.
Then you were with Mr, Harris at Red-Lion-
Fields, and there he was Ipeaking to you of the
Horridnefs of the Defign that was to be executed
upon the King’s Perfon the Saturday before,
and he told you he did miflike ity and there-
upont you anfwered that you would obey Orders,
and that Sir George Barclay had Orders for it
otherwife he would not do it.

Lowick. Sir George Barclay never Ipoke one

Word of it to me. -
L.C. ¥. Every Body knows now upon what

Defign he came over from France, and when Mr.
Harris thewed Diffatisfaltion with the Thing,
yon made that Anfwer to his Difcourfe.

Lowick, He never faid one Syllable to me of it.
I truft to your Lordfhip’s Judgment, and the Ju-
ry’s Mercy.

L. C.¥. And then I would have you anfwer
to another Thing, when you dined together on
the Saturday the two and twentieth, what were
thofe two Men that could not be difcharged with-
out you ¢ _

Lowick. My Lord, 1 know nothing mn the
World of two Men,

L. C. }. You went to difcharge them, for the
King did not go abroad that Day.

Lowick. 1 know nothing of it.

L. C. #. He twears this, and that’s as to him
but then as to Bertram, what Defign was that,
that you were to engage Bertram in for his Advan-
tage, and he was 10 ask no Queftions?

Lowict, My Lord, he isa poor Man, and my
Countryman, and I have at all Times, from time
to time, for this feven Years, helped to fubfift
him and his Family, that he will not deny, and I
have feveral Times given him both Clothes and
Money.

L. C. ¥ Then I would ask you again, When
he came to your Lodging on Friday the 14th
of February, and you told him the King was to
be feized in his Coach, and fuid that we were to
ride out very fuddenly, and you appointed him
to meet the next Morning ; and becaufe he did
not meet you blamed him, and fad, It would
have been the fame Thing, if the King had been
in the Field. Look you, I would have you give
Anfwer to this if you can.

Lowick. I remember nothing in the World of
it, not 2 Word I affure you, and to the belt of
my Remembrance, I did not fee him in two Days
after.

M. Att. Gen, My Lotd, I muft beg leave to
anfwer to the Objeétion that the Couniel for the
Prifoner have made, that there are not two Wit-
nefles to prove the Overt-A¢t laid in the Indict-
ment, and fo the Law is not fatisfied. In An-
fwer to that, I defire your Lordfhip’s Favour to
obferve how the Evidence is, and then we fhall
{ee whether there are not plainly two polfitive
Witnefles of the Overt-Aét, by agrecing to
affaffinate the King. The firlt Witnefs 1s Mr. Has-
ris, your Lordfhip obferves that Mr. Harris gives
an Account that Mr. Lewick was at Sir Gesrge
Barclay’s Lodgings the firft Day that it was to
have been executed ; and that afterwards be-
. tween the fifteenth and the two and twentieth,
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thofe being the firlt and fecond Days that this
was to be done, when he and Rookwood, and thé
Prifoner Lowick, were walking together in Red-
Lion-Fields 3 and there had fome Difcourfe about
the intended Affaflination, and the Barbarity and
Bloodinefs of it, and Mr, Harris and Mr. Raok-
wood Were averfe to it, Mr. Lowick faid he would
obey Orders, and he was furé Sir George Barclay
would not do it unlefs he hiad dire@ Orders for it:
that was twice repeated by him, as Harris fivears:
And afterwards Mr, Harristells you, that the two
and twenticth he dined with Mr. Lswick, and
Mr. Lowick obferved that Mr. Harris came in, ir
a great Sweat, and asked him how it happened ;
he faid he had been about to get ready Revkwood’s
Party that were to feize the King, for he was to
have one Party. Says Mr. Lowick to him, you
need not grudge to do it, you have fix Shillings a
Day, I have nothing; and yet I, at my own
Charge, am to provide two. This is as pofitive
Evidence as weil can be of his being privy
to the Defign i and his engaging People at his
own Charge, fhews a great deal of Forwardnels
and Zeal 1n the Prifoner to the Pufinefs. My Lord,
I think this is pofitive and phin Evidence, and
niot only made out by Inferences and Conftrutions,
as Sir B. Shower fays, but plain, politive Proof.
The firft Day he was with feveral of them, and
when they difcourfed of the Thing afterwards, he
declared he would obey Orders ; and what could
thofe Orders be but for what they were difcourfing’
of, and nothing was difcourfed of but this Defign
they were engaged in; and this was to juftify the
Thing, and take off the Apprehenfion of the Bar-
barity of it : This is Harris’s Teftimony. The
next Witnefs is Bertrain, and he tells you that the
fifth of February the Prifoner fent for him, and
when he came to him, he asked 1f he would engage
in a Bufinefs that might be for his Advantage, and
ask no Queftions ; fo at that Time he did not ac-
quaint him what the Thing was, but that fhews
it was a Thing that was to be kept fecret at that
Time, in regard he did not think fit to acquaint
him at the Hrft Inftance. But the fourteenth of
February, when he met him again, the Day before
the firft Time that it was to be put in Execation ;
Bertrass {wears he told him that they were to ride
out the next Morning, that muft be Loewi:t and
Bertram, for there was no Body clie there; and
that the Prince of Orange was to be feized in his
Coach., Was it poffible the Prifoner could be
ignorant of it? When he engaged him to go upon
a Defign without asking Quettions ; fent for him
the Day before, acquainted him they were to
ride out the next Morning, and that the King

" was to be feized in his Coach, and bid him be

ready againft next Morning, and gave him a
Guinea at that Time; the Witnefs fays it was
for Neceffarics, but he does not pretend that it
was for Charity, as formerly. And that mult be
for Neceflaries for that Purpofe that they were
then difcourfing of, when he defired him to be
ready the next Day, and gives him Money to buy
him Neceffaries : 'What can that be, but Necefla-
ries for what he was to be ready for? And then he
did not come the next Day, and he tells you why,
becaufe he thought it a very wicked and unlawful
Thing; and fo he difappointed him ;' and the nexe
Time Lowick chid him, and told him he would have
ferved him fo if che King had been in the Field.
This is plain, though 1 believe Bertram does fpeak
as tenderly as he can, being his Friend and old
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Acquaintance, and is willing fo fay as little as he
can of him? fo that I believe no Body thinks but
what Bertram fays againft the Prifoner is true, and
what he fwears is plin and pofitive. To fhew,
that Lowick did engage in the Defign, he'acquaint-
ed him with it the fourteenth, by telling him the
King was to be feized, and they were to ride out,
and he was to be ready the next Day.

L. C. ¥. He does notfay they were to ride out

the next Day.
Sir B. Shower. No, the Words were, We are

to ride out fuddenly.

Mr. A, Gen, 1 think he did fay they were to
ride out the next Morning,

L.C. ¥. No, Call him in agan.

M. Cowper. The Words were, We fhall ride out
foddenly, and bid him meet him next Morning ;
and afterwards chid him for not meeting accord-
ingly, and told him it had been the fame Thing
if the King had been 1n the Ficld,

L. C. 7. If you cannot agree upon the Evi-
dence, you muft call in the Witnels.

My, Mountgne. My Lord, we are agreed up-
on the Evidence, it was fuddenly.

L. C. ¥. Well then, thereis no Occalion, have

vou done on both Sides ?
Counfel. Yes, my Lord, we fubmit it to your

Lordfhip.

L. C.'¥. Gentlemen of the Jury, this Prifoner
at the Bar, Robert Lowick, 1s Indifted of High-
Treafon, for Compafling and Imagining the Death
and Deftruétion of the King by an Affaflination ;
you have heard what Evidence has been given up-
on this Indi¢tment. And in the firft Place, It is
proved to you that there was a Defign to affaffi-
nate the King 5 which was to be carried on under
the Condu& and Management of Sir Geerge Bar-
clay. 'The Queftion that you are now to conlider
of, is whether the Prifoner at the Bar was con-
cerned or engaged in the Profecution of that De-
fign. There have been two Witnefles produced,
who have given their Evidence, and have been
very ftrittly examined, and Obfervations have
been made upon the Teftimony they have given.

The frft Witnefs is Mr. Fairis, and he gives
you fome Account of the Original of this De-
ign. He tells you how he was at St. Germains,
and introduced to the late King Fames, who did
exprefs a great Kindnefs for him, and told him
that he had an Opportunity of doing fomething
for him that would be for his Advantage: And
that he and one Hare, who was prefent at that

Time, fhould go into England, (for it {eems they
were both together introduced by Colonel Par-

ker) and Thonld be fubfifted in England, and there-
upon Dire&ions were given them what Courle
they were to take; which was to go to Calais,
and to each of them ten Lewidores were given for
their Charaes, and they were acquainted that if 1t
happened that if they fhould lie there {o long for
Want of 2 Wind to bring them over hither that
their Money was {pent, Provifion fhould be made
for their Supply there. They had farther Di-
reétions, that when they came into Euglasid, they
fhould apply themfelves to Sir George Barclay,
and follow his Orders, with Inftruétions how to
find him ; being told that Sir Gesrge Barclay
would be walking in Covent-Garden every Mos-
day, and every Thurfday Night, about the Hours
of fix or feven o’Clock, and that they fhould
know him by a white Handkerchief that was to
hang out of his Pocket.

Mr. Harris further tells you, That they did-
come to Calais, in order to embark for Englond,
and there they happened to ftay a confliderable
Time, even fo long. that their Money would not
defray their Expences there, and they found it
true as it was promifed them ; for the Prefident
of Calais paid the Reckoning for them at the Place
where they lodged ;- and afterwards they came
into England, and landed in Kent, and came to-
Rochefter, and from thence to London. About the
latter End of Fanuary, Old Stile (for 1t fhould feem
it was the 14th New Stile, which is the 4th, O/d
Stile, they were at St. Germains) he tells you that
he did go the firlt Monday, after their Arrival,
into Covent-Garden, to look after Sir Gecige Bar-
clay, but then mift him. But afterwards his
Companion, Mr. Hare, met with one Berkenbead,
and complaining that they had not met with Sir
George Barclay according to the DireCtions they
had abroad : Whereupon, by the Means of Bers
Fenbead, they were brought to the Speech of Sir
George Berclay, who gave them Reception, and
owned that he had Authority to fubfift them ;
but faid he had not then Money, but fhorily
fhould, and when he had, they fhould be fure to
receive their Subfifience. He tells you, that af-
ter this, Sir George Barclay gave them Subfiftence
Money, Paying them at the Rate of five Shillings
a Day when they had no Horfes, and when they
had, fix Shillings a Day: So they put themfelves
altogether under his Command and Condu.
He has given you an Account what Difcourfe he
had with Mr. Reckweod, from whom he difcover’d
what the Defign was in which he was to be enga-
oed, And the Delign to aflaflinate the King was
hrlt intended to be put in Execution on Saurday
the 15th of February, at which Day Mr. Harris
and others, being at Sir Gesrge Barclay’s Lodg-
ings; Sir George faid they were his Fanifaries, and
afterwards careft them, and faid they were Men
of Honour, and told them that they were toattack
the Prince of Orange and his Guards ; but it feems
the King not going abroad that Duy, they loft
that Opportunity.

Truly, Then Mr. Harris began to be a little
troubled, and concerned, when he underftcod the
Meaning of his being under Sir George Barclay’s
Conduct. And he fays that after that firft Sasurday
the 15th, and before the next Saturday the 224, he
met with Lswick, Rookwood, and Beruarde, and he
was complaining of his being engaged in fuch a
Defign as this was, He called it then the Mur-
der of the Prince of Oraunge, and faid it was a
barbarous Thing, and he did not like ir, nor
Rockwood neithery but as for Lowick, whether
he difliked 1t, or no, I know not, but he made
Anfwer to him, I will obey Orders: Says lie, Sir
George Barclay has Orders for it, or otherwifc he
would not do It.

Then you are told further, that after this, on
Saturday the 22d, Mr. Harrisdined with Lowick ac
a Cook’sat the End of Red-Lioi-Street, and being
there together, Harris being In a Sweat, and was
asked the Reafon by Lowick, he faid he had been
giving of Orders for the getting fome Men toge-
ther that were to go under Rookwood, and Lssoick
told him he might very well do 1t, for he had
Pay 6 5. a Day; but fays he, Iam to fubfift two
Men, and have nothing at all. Mr. Hasris wifhed
him to go to Sir Gesrge Barclay and complain
of it to him, but-he faird he would not; Lot it
feems, 1t being then underftood by them that the
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King did not go abroad that Day, Lowick faid he
mult goand difcharge the two Men, und went
-Sour 1t This is the Sum and Subftance of Mr.
T Lirris’s Evidence againft Mr. Lowick.

The next Witnels is Bertrame, and he tells you
har fometime before the fifteenth of Fedruary,
\which was, as I told you, the very firft Day that
they did defign to affaflinate the King; Mr. Lowick
ient for him, and rold him, that he would put
him upon a Bufinefs that fhould be for his Advan-

agz, 1f he would undertake it without asking
auy Queltions 5 this was fometime before, but the
certain Day Bertram does not remember s but he
tells you farther, that on Friday the fourteenth of
February, he was with Lowick at his Lodgings,
andl he faid unto him, that the King, he did be-
lieve, was to be feized in his Coach, and we are
to ride out fuddenly; and then he gave hima
Guinca to buy him Neceflarics, and withal bid
Lim meet him at the Purle-bonfe in Hart-fireet
next Morning ; and Bertram tells you, he had un-
derltood what this Defign was, for he had 1t be-
tore from Charnock, and did forbear to go the
next Morning, becaufe he did difiike 1. After
this Mr. Lotick met him and chid him for difap-
pointing of him, 1 not meeting him as he di-
rected, for fays he, it would have been the fame
thing if the King had been in the Field. This
i the Sum and Subftance of the Evidence that
Bertram has given againft mm.

Now Bertyam being crofs-examined on the be-
half of the Prifoner, fays he hath known him a
great while, and that he 1s 2 Man of a peaceable
and fair Difpofition, very charitable, and that he
has given him Money before, and particularly a
Guinea to his Wife in his Abfence.

Indeed 1 might have mentioned the Evidence of
Fifber to you, but that is but circumftantial, and

does not come home to the Cafe, but being
given it may be mention’d, and that 1s, about the

Eiohth of February, Fifber had fome Difcourfe
with Lewick, and 1t feems there was Notice taken
of the intended Invafion, and Lswick faid he
would ferve his Mafter faithfully; and that the
Witnels thought was meant of the late King;
and he f:id at another Time, that he would not
difcourte with above one at a Time, becaufe of
the laze A& of Parfiament that was then a paf-
fing, rclating to High-Treafon, that required
two Witnefles. Now, 1 fay, this 1s not any Proof
again{t the Prifoner, but it is a Circumftance that
may fhew his Inclination to the late King.

The Counfel for the Prifoner have infifted upon
the Infufficiency of the Evidence that has been
eiven on behall of the King, and have faid, that
the late A&t of Parliament requires two Witnefles,
which is true, but not two Witnefies to any onc
Qvert-Aét ; butif there be two Witnefles, one to
one and another to another Overt-Aé, that is ful-
ficient; but they fay that it 1s not {o1n this Cale,

In the firt Place, they object againtt the Evi-
dence thatis given by Harris, they fay it is fhort,
that muflt be left to your Confideration; whether
the Evidence that is given by Herris concerning
M. Lowick, does prove to your Satisfaction, that
he confented and agreed to the Affaffination of
the King, you are to weigh the Eyvidence, when
ie 1s fworn that when Haivis, Rookwood, and the
Prifoner were walking in Red-Lion-Fields, and
talking of this horrid Delign, and Harris com-
plained dhat it was a barbarous Thing to mur-
der the Prince of Orange, as they call’d him, you
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muft confider what Anfwer Lswick did make
about obeying of Orders; then his fubfifting of
Men at his own Charge withour Pay, and com-
plaining of his having no Pay, and his difcharging
them the laft Day that the Affaflination was_ in-
tended, that I muft leave to you, whether or no
this is not an Evidence, if you believe the Wit-
nefs to fatisfy you that he was engaged in this
Defign. 7

Then, Gentlemen, he has alfo been defired to
give an Anfwer to this Queftion, and to tell up-
on what Defign he was to employ Bertram that
{hould be for his Advantage ; but he was to ask
no Queltions, and afterwards whether he did tell
him the King was to be feized in his Coach, and
they were to ride out fuddenly and bid him meet
hgm the next Morning, and when he did not meet
hlll’}, }]c faid, It would have been the fame
Thing if the King had been in the Field, If this
be an Evidence of Mr. Lowick’s engaging in arid
agreeing and confenting to the Defign, then here
will be another Witnefs againft the Prifoner befides
Harris, -

Gentlemen, you are to judge of this Matter
and pf the Evidence. It is true, we are not to
put 1n the Cafe of a Man’s Lite, any forced and
violent Conftruétions upon any Words or Iif-
courfes; but if the Evidence be plain and clear,
tho® he did not fay in exprefs Words, that he did
defign to affaffinate or kill the King ; yet, 1f upon
the whole Difcourfe that paft between them it ap-
pears plainly, clearly, and hatstactorily to you
that he did confent and agree to this Defign, or
was engaged in it, here’s another Witnefs, I fay,
to prove him guilty, befides Harris; you are to
confider the whole Evidence, the fubject matter
of Difcourfe, and if you are fausfied, I fay, that
he was engaged in fuch a Defign by the Proof of
Bertram, as well as of Harris, then there are two
Witnefles, which is as much as the Law requires.

But, indeed, the Counfel have called feveral
Witnefles to prove that the Prifoner has lived ve-
ry peaceably and quietly 5 one Woman fays, She
has known him twelve ¥ears, and that he lodged
at her Foufe, and that he was a Man of great
Temper and Candour, and not diforderly, but had
a general good Efteem and Character : And then
there is another, Mrs. Aofeley, that proves the hike,
and fays, She has known him thefe twenty Years,
and fhe fays no Man has a better Character: And
Mr. Bertrain hath faid, that he was not of a rath
or bloody Temper.

Now, Gentlemen, I muft leave 1t to you, upon
the Evidence that you have heard, there are thele
Witnefles that have been produced, and there are
thefe Circumftances that appear in the Cafe; if
you are fatistied upon this Evidence that has been
given, that the Prifoner Mr. Lowick did confent
0 and engage himfelf in that Defign of Aflaflina-
ting the King, then you are to find him guilty;
if you are not fatisfied, you are fo find hun not
guilty ; you have heard your Evidence, and had
beft confider of it.

Then ain Officer was fwern 10 keep the fury,
who withdrew, and faid out abort balf an
Hour, and then returaed.

Cl. of Arr. Gentlemen of the Jury, anfier to

your Names, Geoige Ford,
M. Ford. Here. [ And fo of the reft.]

Cl. of Arr. Are you all agreed of your Verdift ?
54 2 JHy.
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Fury. Yes.

Cl. of Arr. Who fhall fay for you?

Jtry. Foreman,

. Cl. of Arr. Robert Lowick, hold up thy Hand,
(which be did) Look upon the Prifoner; how fay
you, Is he guilty of the High-Treafon whereof
he ftands indicted, or not guilty ¢

Foreman. Guilty, my Lord.

CL of Arr. What Goods or Chattels, Lands or
Tenements had he at the Time of the Treafon
committed, or at any Time fince?

Foremain, None to our Knowledge, we do not
find any.

Cl. of sir. Then hearken to your Verdidt, as
the Court hath recorded it.  You fay that Roeleit
Lowwickis guilty of the High-Treafon whercof he
ftands indifted, but that he had no Goods, Chat-
tels, Lands or Tenements, at the Time of the
High-Treafon committed, or at any Time [ince
td your Knowledge, and fo you fay all.

Tury. Yes,

L. C. . Difcharge the Jury.

Cl. of Arr. Gentlemen of the Jury, the Court
difcharges you, and thanks you for your Service,

L. C. . Mr. Attorney, Will you have the Pri-
foners fer to the Bar?

Afr. Ait. Gen. Yes, if your Lord(hip pleate.

Then the Keeperr of Newgate bronght Rook-
wood and Cranburne, aind all three were
Jet to the Bar.

M. At Gen, It your Lordfhip pleafe to give
Judgment againft the Prifoners that are convict-
ed.

L. C. 7. Ask them what they have to fay for
themfelves in Arrelt of Judgnent,

Cl. of drr. Rebeit Lowick, hold up thy Hand;
you ftand conviéted of High-Treafon, in Confpi-
ring the Death of the King by Afflaflination, what
can you fay for yourfelf why the Court fhould
not give Judgment againft you, to die according

toLaws
[ Then the Keeper bid bim kucel,]

L.C.}. No, no, he nced not kneel; if you
have any thing to fay, Mr. Lewick, we will hear
you.

Lowick. I throw myfelf upon the King’s Mer-

cy.

Cl. of Arr. dinbisfe Reckwood, hold up thy
Hand, (wkhich be did) you fland convicted of the
fame High-Treafon, for Conipiring the Death of
the King by Aflufination, what can you fay for
yourfeli why the Court fhould not give you Judg-
ment to die according to Law,

Roskiwood. All that can be faid has been faid
already, and {o I fhull fay no more.

C!. of drr. Charles Craibuise, hold up thy Hand,
thou ftandeft convicted of Hish-Treafon, in Con-
fpiring the Death of the King by Afflaffination,
what canft thou fay for thyfelf, why the Court
fhould not give the Judgment to die according to
Law?

- Cranburne. 1 have nothing to fay but what [
have faid already,

Cl. of Arr. Then Crier make Proclamation.

Crier, O yes, all Manner of Perfons are com-
manded to keep Silence while Judgment is in giv-
g upon Pain of Imprifonment.
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L. C. F# Yeu the Prifoners at the Bar, Rebers
Lowick, Amirofe Rookwood, and Charles Crap.
burne, you have been indicted, and upon full and
clear Evidence have been convifed of IHigh-
Treafon; a Treafon that was advanced to the
higheft Degree both of Malice and Milchief -
oainft the King and Kingdom ; you defign’d 1o
affaffinate the King with an Intent to fubvert the
State, and by the introducing of 2 foreign Powey
to deftroy the ancient Liberty and Conftitution
of England.

Our French and Pepith Enemies, by whom you
were employ’d in this bloody Enterprife, did very
well know, that the Wildom and Courage of his
prefent Majelty has refcued this  Kingdom
from that Shvery and Oppreffion which they
often threatned to bring upon us; they knew
that under his Government we have been pro-
tected in the Enjoyment of our Religion, Laws
and Liberty for feveral Years, and that his Ma-
jefty 1s the Head of the Proteftant Intereft, and
the Proteltor and Preferver of the Liberty of
FEurope, and thar upon the Prelervation of his
Life, and the Safety of his Perfon, the Good and
Happinefs of Mulutudes of People do depend,
which the French King’s Pride and Ambicion hag
been ready to take hold of any Opportunity to
enflave and opprefs.

Your baing engaged in fuch a horrid Defign
againft fo precious a Life, and to be the bloody
Inftruments to give that diimal Stroke, which
would have brought Mifery and Defolation upon
fo many Men, renders you worthy to undergo a
greater and more levere Punithment than by the
Law ot Fuglond can be nflicted 5 but thar there
i5 no greater provided for fuch Criminals, is to be
imputed to the ancient Honelty and Integrity of
Euglify Men, who, when they fram’d this Con-
ftitution of Government, never imagined Euplaid
thould produce fuch degenerate Wretches, as
would endeavour by Plots and Contrivances to be-
tray their Country to a foreign Yoke, and fubject
themfclves and their Fellow-Subjedts to the flavifh
Dominion of Sirangers, |

| Your Crlme_btmg fo great, 1t is now high
time for you lenioufly to refleét upon ity and
tho’ yon deferve to fufter the areatelt of Punifh-
ments, yet [ have that Compatlion for your Per-
fons, that I wifh heartily you would make ufe of
that Opportunity which 18 now put into your
Hands, to repeni. And lince you ars adjudz’d by
the Law unworthy to hive here, that you will
make Preparation to appear at another 1ribunal,
where you muft have another Trial, and, with-
out an hearty and {incere Repentance, receive a
more fevere Sentence. 1 hope this Calamity, ard
the Judgment that is to fall vpon you, will bean
Admonttion to you to take better Advice in the
laft partof your Time which is Icft you, than you
have done in the whole Courfe of your Lives, and
that you will be wifer than to follow the Dire@i-
on of thoie Guides whofe Principles and Doctrines
have fo far perverted and corrupted you, as to
engage you In fuch a bloody Defign, 1 fhall leave
you to make that Preparation for another World,
which is proper for Men in your Condition,
and pronounce the Judgment of the Court,
which the Law hath appointed and the Court
doss award 3

That

il d o
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That all of you be conveyed from heice to the Pri
[Jon from whence you came, and froim theice every
one of you is to be drawn apon a Hurdle to the
‘Place of Execution, where you aie to be pang'd
by your Necks, and to be cut down while you
are alive, your Privy-Members are to be cut
off, and your Bowels are to be cut out of your
Bodies, and burat in your View, your Heads are
10 be cut off, and your Bodies to be divided
into four Parts, and your Heads and Quarters
re 1o be difpofed cwhere bis Majelly foell ap-
point,  And I pray God to heve iicrey on all
yoiti Souls.

Crawduine, 1 humbly defire the Liberty of my
Wife and Relations to come to me, and hich Di-
vines as | fhall defire may have free Recourfe to me.

L. C. . You fhall have that Liberty that is al-
lowed to all Perfons m your Condition.

Roolewoud. T mult beg the fame Favour to have
forme few Friends and Relations come to {ee me
without a Keeper.

L.C. % You fhall have a Warrant for your
Friends to come to you.

Rookevocd, 1 beg your Lordfhip that you wonld
pleae to fpecify 1t in the Warrant, becaufe they
would not grant 1t hitherto without a Keeper be-
ing by.

L. C. % You mean, you would have your Bro-
ther permitited to come to you.

Ruskiwood, Yes, and fome few Relations,

L. C. 7. What is ufually done in fuch Cafes, let
it be done,

Lowick. My Lord, Tdefire the fame Thing, that
my Sifler may come tome, and that the httle tine
} have T may be in private wich my Friends,

Adi. At Geas. 1i your Lordfhip pleate, they may
oive the Names of thefe they would have admit-
tcd o them, and then the Keeper will attend your
Lordihip for your Direction.

L.C. 7. That the Keeper muit take care of,
felt they allow fuch a Liberty as may endanger
an Eicape ; for their being alone may prove a dan-
gerous thing.,

M. At Gen, It is reafonaole they {hould tell
who they are, before they be admiteed.

L.C. 7. Youallow them, I fuppofe, to have pri-
vate Dilcourfe n the fame Roem, 1f a Keeper be by.

Cranbarie. INo, my Lord, we never had.

M, Ait, Genn. Such as your Lordfhip thinks pro-
per to be admitted to them may have Difcourfe
with them in private, if the Keeper be in the
Roomn, but no others but fuch as your Lordfhip
thali allow; for we know what has been the
Effe€t of a Liberty of Accefs to fome DPrifoners.

L. C. ¥ Let us have a Note of thofe Names
that you would have come to you, and we wiil
aive Direflions that fhall be proper in it

Cl. of dri. Sheriff of Middlefex, you muil tale
them into your Cultody till Execution is done,

Then the Kecper took away the Prifoncrs.

On Weducfaay, Apiil 29. Adwbrofe Rookweod,
Robert Lowick, and Charles Cranbuiie, were
drawn to Tyéurn, where the two tormer deliver’d
the {ollowing Papers to the Sheriffs,

Majer Liow 1 cr’s Paper.

N the Name of the Hely Trinityy Father, Son, and
Holy Gholt, Amcae 1In the firft Place, I die in the
Relioion I was bapiiz’d, wiz, Reman Catholick, and
humbly ber the Prayers of all good People for a happy

- for High-Treafon.
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Refurrection, and of all Catholicks for the Good of my
Soul,

As for bemng engag’d in this for which I die, it was
never {o pofitive that [ had a Horle from the Beginning
to the very Laft, nor never fee any allow’d me,uur the
two Men I was to provide, as was fworn againft me at
my Tral; nor had I any on that Account; nor was [
at any of their Meetings when they fettled any fuch
thing.  And as for any Order or Commiffion fiom
King fames, I never fee any fince I came laft into E:g-
fand, which is now about five Years ; and I am confident
none that knows King Fames will believe he would give
any {uch Order. |

Indeed, I muft confefs, I believe King Fames was a
coming to affert hisown Richt; and | fhould, if on Shore,
have done any thing in my Power to have aflifted him;
and, in order to that, I fhould have been very glad to
have had a Horle, but never had any.

And as for being concern’d in any bloody Affair, I
never was in my Life, but have done my Endeavour to
prevent, as much as I could, on all Occafions; and if
the killing the moft miferable Creature in the World, or
ereatelt Enemy, would now {ave my Life, reftore the
King, and make me oncef the arcateflt Men in Er:gfm:n’,
I futt would choofe to die, becaufe azainft the Law of
Gol,

If any who are now Sufierers on this Account, think I
have been too forward, and a Promoter to this Deiion,
[ do now declare it was never my Inclinution to do
any raih thing. However, I beg their Pmdons, and of
all the World T have offended, either in Thought,
Word, or any Adion whatfoever, and do frecly fur-
give my Lnemies, and hope, thro’ the Mescy of iny
Saviour Jefus Chrift; to have Remiffion of all my Sine.
Good God preferve the King, Queen, Prince, and

rincefls, and all that royal Blood of Stwarts; and may
Lugland never want one of that direét Line to govern
them, and make them once more bappy. I have had
the Honour to ferve my royal Mafler in feveral Com-
miffions, and the laft as Major, and ftrove ever to fune
him to the beft of my Power, and ever to be juft to
thofe whom 1 had the Honour to command. Lord Jefus,
into thy Hands I recommend my Spirit! O Jefus, re-
ceive my Soul!
Ropert LowicK,

Biioadier Roo xkwoob's Paper.
S

AVING committed the Juftice of my Caufe,

A and recemmended my Soul to God, on whofe
Mercies, thro’ the Merits of Jelus Chrift, T wholly catt
myfelt, I had cnce refolv'd to die in Silence; but fe-
cond Thoughts of my Duty to others, chiclly to my
true and licoe Sovereign King Fames, moved me to leave
this belind me.

[ do therefore, with all Truth and Sincerity, acclare
and avow, that I never knew, faw, or heard of any
Order or Commiffion from King Fames for the affaffina-
ting the Prince of Orange, and attacking his Guards;
but I am certainly inform’d that he, the beft of Kings,
had often rejeCted Propofals of that Nature, when tmade

unto him.
Nor do I think ke knew the leaft of the particular

Defign of the attacking the Guards at his Landing, fo
much talk’d of, in which [ was engaged as a Soldier,
by my immediate Commander, much againft my Judg-
ment ; but his Soldier I was, and as fuch I was to obey
and a& according to Command.

Thefe twelve Years 1 have ferved my true King and
Mafter, King Fames, and freely now lay down my Life
in his Caufe. I ever abhorr’d Treachery, even to an
Enemy ; if it be a Guilt to have complv’d with what I
thought, and {hill think, to have been my Duty, 1 am
ouilty. Noother Guilt do [ own.

As I beg all to forgive me, fo I forgive all from my
Heart, even the Prince of Orange, who, as a Soldier,
ought to have confider’d my Cale before he fign’d the
Warrant for my Death. | pray God mav open his
Eyes, and render hin: fenfible of the much Blood, from
all Parts, crying out againft him, fo to prevent an
heavier Exccution hanging over his Head) tnan what

he inflicts on me.
AMBROSE ReoxwooDn.

After which they were executed as Traitors, accord-

ing to their Sentence,
CLVL The
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159. The Trial of Peter Cook, 8 WilL.IIL
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CLIX. The Trial of PETER COOK, at the Old-Bai-
ly, for High-Treafon, May 9, 1696. 8 Will IIIL.

Scturday May 9, 16906.

ararren 1S Day being appointed for the
LT’ b= o' 5 . .
prdm=ag Trial of Mr, Peseir Cook, upon an In-

",r.}.'f-'! Tf%_;—; di¢tment of High-Treafon found a-
’Jﬁ_;:ﬁf oainft I}un by the Grand Jury ﬁ:.}* the
RoiehErd City of Leudoir, upen the Commuffion
of Goal-Delivery of Newgete, holden for the faid
City, upon which Indi¢tment he had been ar-
raiened, and upon pleading not guilty, Iffue had

een joined, and the Court having been adjourned
unto this Day for the Trial by publick Proclama-
tion 1n ufual manner, the Court was refumed, and
the Names of the Men returned to ferve on the
Jury, having been called over accoramng to the
Pannel, and the Defaulters recorded ; the Court
proceeded as follows.

CL of Arr, Set Peter Cosk the Prifoner to the
Bir. [FPbich was dewe.] You Prifoner at the Bar,
thofe Men that you fhall hear called, and perlo-
nally appear, are to pals between our Sovereign
Lord the King and You, upon Trial of your Life
and Death 5 1t therefore you will Challenge them,
or any of them, vour Time 1s to {peak to them
as they come to the Book to be fworn, and before
they be fworn,

Cook. Sir, 1defive you would not name them
too faft, for my Eyes are very bad.

Cl. of Arr, 7ekin Euer.

Cook. Who muft Lapoly myfelf to, Sir ? [ defire
to know whether he is a Frecholder in Loudsu ¢

Cl. of Atr. I know nothing to the contrary,
Sir, he 1s returned as fuch by the Sheriff; you had
beft ask him himfelf, he can beft tell.

Cook. Are you a I'recholder in London, Siv ?

M. Ewer. Yes, St. I ama Freeholder.

Ceok. Sir, T challenge you.

CLof Arr. Henry Sheibiook.

Cook. Sir, are you a Freeholder in Lsidos ?

A Sherbigok. Yes, Sir, T am.

Coot. I challenge you. No, Sir, Ibegyour
Pardon, I do not challenge you.

Cl. of Arr. Then hold Mr. Sherbrockthe Book :
[IVhich was done.] Look upon the Prifoner: You
ihall well and truly try and true Deliverance make
between our Sovereign Lord the King, and the Pri-
foner at the Bar, whom you fhall have in Charge,
according to your Evidence. So help yon God.

Cl. of Arr. Fofeph Biltes.

Cook. Are you a Frecholder, Sir, in London ?

Ay, Billers. Yes, I am. [Challengd.]

Cl. of Arr., Fobu Biand.

Cook. Pray, Sir, don’t go too faft; Areyoua
Freeholder in Leudes, Sir?

My, Brand, T am no Freecholder in Londca,
L.C.}. 9redy. Whattay you, Mr, Attorney 2
*Sir T omas Trewor- * Nr o Ait.Gei, i\*’])" Lord, I would
not have any Body that 15 not a Frecholder ferve ;

fo he was fer by.

Cl. of Arr. Willian Hedl,

Mr. Hill, My Lord, I am no Freeholder in
London.

L.C. 7. Trebv. Why, what Ettate have you?

M, Hell \What T havey 1s 1 Leales,

L.C. 7. Treby. What, Leales tor Years, or Leafes
for Lives ?
A il Leales for Years, Sir.

L. C. 7. Then he cannot ferve upon the

Jury.
Cl. of Arr. Edward Leeds.

Cock. Hold, Sir, let me fee; are you a Free-
holder in Loudon, Sir?

My, Leeds. Yes, Sir.

CL of Arr. Thomas Clark.

Cook. Hold, Sir, I pray let me look upon my
Paper. I challenge him.

A Stanger-by. He does not appear.,

Cl. of Arr. Nathan Green.

Cook. Where 1she, Sir? Are you a Freeholder?

My, Greeny, Yes, Tam, Sir, [Challeng’d. ]

ClL. of Arr. Thomas Emes.

Cosk, Are you a Frecholder, Sir?

My, Ewmes. Yes, | am.,
Cook. Were youonc of Sir Fobn Friead’s Jury ?
Mr. Emes. Yes T was.
Cook, Then I challenge you for Caufe, and I
glve you my Reafon.
M. Serj. Darnall. 1 pray, let us hear your Rea-
fon ; give your Realon for your Challenge.
Cook. 1t is for being of Sir Yobn Friend’s Jury.
- My, serj. Dayiall. Then you challenge him for
aule.
] Cosk. Yes, that he was of Sir Fobn Friend’s
ury.
L. C. }. Trebv. Well, Brother Daruall, how is
that a Caufe of Challenge? You are the Prifoner’s
Counfel, let us hear what you fay to it.

My, Seiy. Darwall, My Lord, what we have to
fay to 1t, is this; Here are fome Perfons returned
upon this Pannel, that were formerly Jurors in a
Caule that was try’d for the fame Species of Trea-
fon that this Gentleman, the Prifoner, is charged
with 1n this Indi¢tment ; and I think the Witneffes
at that "Trial did mention in their Evidence my
Client, as being prefent at thofe very Confults,
about which they gave their Evidence ; thefe Gen-
tlemen gave Credit to thofe Witnefes, and found
the Verdict againft the Perfon then accufed, We
humbly fubmit it to your Lordthip and the Court,
whether we may not for this Caufe challenge this
Perlon as not indifferent, it being for the fame
Caufe and Confult that the other was try’d for.

M. i, Gen. Sure Mr. Serjeant is not in earneft
in this Objection,

AMr. Sery. Dariell. My Client thinks it a very
good Opjection, that he is not indifferent, and T
defire he thould be fatisfied in it

My, At Gen, If he thinks {o, he may except
agamnft him, but if he infift upon itas a Cafe of
Challenge, we defire you would put the Cafe, and
my Lords the Judges determine i,

My, Sery. Dernall. 1 have told you what the
Cafe 1s,

L. C. ¥ Treby. But you hear the King’s Coun-
fel infift upon it, to have you make it our in
Point of Law.

M. Serf. Darnall. My Lord, I have ftated the
Cafeas my Client defired, and we fubmit it to you.

L. C. 7. Treby. Well, there is nothing in it.

Mr. Sery. Dariafl. Then my Client, if he will

[Challeng’d ]

not have lum ferve, muft chailenge him peremp-
torily ; which he did.

Cl.of Arr. Fraucis Byer.
Cook,
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Cook, Sir, are you a Freeholder ?

Mr, Byer. Yes, I am,

Cl. of Arr. Fames Denew,

Mr. Dengw. 1 am no Frecholder.

Cl. of Arr. Henry Hunter.

Cook. Hold, hold, my Lord, I challenge him
as being one of Sir 7obn Friend’s Jury.

My, Baker. Nay, that was not allow’d in M,
Ees’s Cafe ; but you challenged him perempto-

" [Challeng’d.)

. Mo
Ly -
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My. Hooper. Yes, Sir,
Cook. T challenge you, S
M. Hooper. 1 thank you, Sir.
CL of Arr. Nathaniel Long.”
Cook. Are you a Freeholder, Sir?
Mr Loyg. Yes, Sir. .
Coox, I challenge him, as being one of Sir Yub#

Friend’s Jury, '
Cl. of Arr. The Court has adjudged that no

rily, and fo you muft now, if you have a Mind Caufe of Challenge, therefore 1 take no notice of

o IL.
Cook. 1 challenge him.

Cl. of Arr, Febu Hall,

Cook. Are you a Freeholder in London, Sir ?

Ay, Hall, Yes, I am, Sir, [Challeny’d. ]

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Cullum.

Cook. Sir, are you a Frecholder in London ¢

Mr. Cullum, Yes, Sir. [Challeng®d.]

Cl. of Arr. Jobn Cox.

Mz, Cox, My Lord, I am no Freeholder in
London. .

Cl. of Arr. Fobi Hedges.

Cook. Hold, I pray, Sir, let me look upon my
Paper 3 Str, are you a Freeholder in London 2

M. Hedges. Yes, Sir, I am. [Challeng’d. )

Cl. of Arr. Thomas Faiies.

M. Fames. My Lord, my Name is not Thosmas.

My, Sher. Buckinghain He 1s returned, 1t feems,
by a wrong Name; we did not know it.

My, Szr7. Darnal, Then you cannot fivear him.

Cl. of Arr. Thomas Poole.

Cook. Are you a Freeholder in London, Sir ?

Mir. Poole. Yes, Sir,

Cosk, 1 challenge him, as being of Sir Fobx
Fiiend’s Jury.

Mr. Att, Gen, ‘That has been over-ruled al-
ready.

Cook, T challenge him,

Cl. of Arr. Peter Parker.

Cook, Areyou a Freeholder in London ?

M. Parker, Yes, Sir, I am,

Cook. 1 challenge you, Sir, as being one of Sir
Fobir Eriend’s Jury.

My, Baker. Nay, you can’t offer it again.

Cook. 1 challenge him.

Cl. of Arr. George Grove:

Cook. Where is he? Are you a Freeholder in
London, Sir 2

M, Grove. Yes, Sir. [Challeng’d. )

Cl. of Arr. Nathaniel Wyer(dell.

Cock, Are youa Frecholder in Londou 2

M. Hyerfdell. Yes, Sir, Lam,  [Challeng'd. ]

Cl. of Arr. Sammnel Blewit,

Cook. Hold, pray, are you a Frecholder, Sir?

Mr. Blewit. Yes, I am. [ Challeng>d. ]

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Wolfe. [Challeng’d.]

Cl. of Arr. Yofeph Wolfe. He did not appear,
and was {zid to be no Freeholder.

" Cl. of Arr. [7illiam Smith.

Cook, Arve you a Freeholder, Sir ?
M. Swmith., Yes, I am.
Cl. of Arr. Edward Fenwick.

" Cook. Areyoua Frecholder, Sir?
M, Fenwick. Yes, Siry I am.
Cook. 1 do not challenge him.
Cl. of Arr. Then {wear Mr, Fenwick.

cvas done. )

Cl. of Arr. Beujamin Hooper.

Cook. Stay, Sir, pray flay a little, where is
he? '

Cl. of Arr. There he1s, Sir.

Cook. Which is the Gentleman ?

Frecholder in London, Sir?

[Challeng’d.]

[ hich

Are you a

It, but as to a peremptory Challenge.

CL of Arr. Rickard Chifiwell |

Cook. Are you a Freeholder in London, Sir? -

My, Chifwell, Yes, Sir. [Challenyd )

Cl. of Arr, Fobn Child.

‘Cook. Hold, pray, a Moment ; T have not croft
thefe laft in my Paper, but I challenge this Ma,
being of Sir Jobn Friend’s Jury.

M. Baker. You have had that anfivered over
and over again, as no Objetion; it is hothing
but 2 peremptory Challenge, '

CL of Arr. William Walker.

. Mr. Walker. 1 was one of Sir Fubn Friend’s
ury.

Cook. T challenge him for the fame Reafon.

M. Art. Gen. But that is no Reafon at all.

Cook. Then 1 challenge himn,

Cl.of Arr. Fobn Wells.

Cssk, Sir, are you a Frecholder >

Mr. Wells. Yes, Sir, I am.

CL ot Arr. Fobn Hibbert.

Cook. Which is he, Sir ?

CL of Arr. He ftands upon your Left-hand;
the Man in the black Peruke.

Cook. Are you a Frecholder, Sir §

Mr. Hibbert. Yes, I am, Sir.

Cl. of Arr. Dauiel Wray.

Cook. Stay, Sir, are you Mr. Wray?

Mr. Wray. Yes, Sir, my Name is Zray.

Cook. Are you a Freeholder in London, Sir #

M. Wray, Yes, Sir.

Cook. 1 challenge you,

Mr. ¥ray. 1 thank you, Sir,

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Petit.

Cook. Which 1s he ?

My, Petit. 1 am the Man, Sir,

Cook. Are you a Freeholder in Londsi, Sir ?

Mr. Petit. Yes, Sir, [Challens’d.]

Cl. of Arr. Fobu Sherbrook.

Cook. 1 challenge himy as being one of Sir Fobu
Friend’s Jury.

[Challens’d.]

[Challeng’d.

- Mr. Baker. But you have heard that denied to

be an Exception over and over.
Cook, 1 challenge him,
Cl. of Arr. Stephen Blackwell,
Cook. Are you a Frecholder, Sir ?
My, Blackwell. Yes, Iam.
CL of Arr. Williams Hatch.
Cook, Pray give me timeto mark them ; pray,
who is this Man you now call ? |
Cl. of Arr. William Hatch.
Cook. Sir, are you a Freeholder ?
Mr; Hatch, Yes, Iam.
CL of Arr, Heary Beadle,
Cook. Are youa Freeholder, Sir ?
Mr. Beadle. Yes, ] am,
Cook. 1 do not except againft him, [Was fuworn.
Cl. of Arr, Fobn Stredwick.
- Mr, Stredwick: My Lord, as I apprehend, ¥ am
no Freeholder, ;
L.C.%. Treby. Why do you apprehend fo 2
Mr, Stredwick. Tt 15 my Wite’s Eltate, fiot

mine, |
Cl. of Arr,

[Challeng*d.}

[Challen*d.}
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CL of Arr. Then your Wife has a Freehold,

1t feems.

Mr. Stredwick., Yes, fhe has,

L.C. ¥. Treby. That is Frechold enough ;. for
you have an Eftate for your Wife’s Life.

M. Baker. And-after that too, for 1t is not
aiven over to any Body elfe, and fhe won’t give it
from him.

Cook, Sir, are you a Frecholder in LZaondon or
70 ?

" Mr. Stredwick. 1apprehend, Sir, I am not.

Mg, Baker. He fays he has an Eftate for his
Wife’s Life.

Cl. of Arr. Then he is a Freeholder, what do
you fay to him ?

Cook. Are you pofitive you are a Freeholder 1n
Londan upon your Word ?

My, Stredwick. 1 think not.

Mer. Baker. Why your Wife's Eftate 1s yours
for your Life.

Cook. My Lord Chief Juftice, if your Lord(hip
pleafes, here isa Man that {ays pofitively he thinks
he is no Frecholder, I deflire your Lordfhip’s

Judgment, whether he be a Frecholder or not?

159. The Triakof Peter Cook,

8 Will. I

Cl. of Arr. Fofeph Brookbank.

Cook, | have nothing to fay to him.  [He was
fworn.] |

Cl. of Arr. .Adam Bellamy.

Mer. Bellamy. My Lord, Iam no Freeholder.

L. C. }. Treby. Why, what Eftate have you ?

My, Baker. He has Eftate enough, I know, for
Value.

Mpr. Bellamy. 1 have only a Leafe,

L.C. 7. Treby. A Leale for Years?

Myr. Bellamsy. Yes, my Lord.

Cl. of Arr. David Grill,

M. Grill. 1am no Freeholder, my Lord.

Cl of Arr. William Rawlins,

Cook. 1 accept of him. [He was fivarn.]

ClL of Arr, Samuel Royeroft,

Cook. Are youa Frecholder, Sir?

Mr. Rayeroft. Yes, Sir.

Cl of Arr. Thomas Parker.
i Coot. How many have I to challenge, do you
ay ?

Cl. of Arr. But ohe, Sir; what fay you to Mr.
Parker ?

[Challenp’d |

L.C. ¥ Tiely. Why let him put his Cafe, 1if foorn. |

he make a Doubt of 1t.

My, Stredwick. 1 am not poflelt of an Eftate
my felf.

L. C. 7. Trcby, But 1s not your Wife an Inhe-
FItrix

My, Stredwick. Yes, my Lord, fhe is.

L.C.F. Treby. Then you are feiz’d of a Free-
hold in her Right ; and, Mr. Cook, your own
Counfel will tell you and fatisfy you, that that is a
Freehold fufficient for this Service.

Mr. Baker. His Wife’s Father fettled it upon
her and her Heirs. |

L.C. 7. Treby. No queftion, it1s a {ufficient
Freehold if the Wife be living.

M. Baker, Yes, the s,

Cook. I challenge him.

CL. of Arr. William Prince.

Cook. 1 challenge him, asbeing one of Sir o
Friend’s Jury.

My, Prince. 1 thank you, Sir.

Cl. of Arr. Fobn Sinmons.

Mr. Ait, Gen. We challenge him for the King,

Cl.of Arr. Robert White.

Cook. Are you a Frecholder, Sir?

My WWhite. Yes, 1 think fo.

Cook. Pray tell me whether you are, or not.

M. White, Indeed 1 think fo, Sir. [Challeng’d.]

Cl. of Arr. Edward Brewfler.

Cook, Where is Mr. Brewfler 2 Are you a Free-
holder, Sir, 1n London 2

Mr. Brewfter. Yes, Srr,

" Cook. -1 challenge him. Pray, Sir, I defire to
know how many 1 have challenged.

My. Baker. You have challenged Thirty Three.

Cook. How many befides thofe that are of Siy
Jobu Friend’s Jury ? -

Mr. Baker, You have but two more to chal-
lenge, Sir,

My, Serf: Darnal. ] thought you had heard the
Opinion of the Court, Mr. Cook, that it will not
hold as a Caufe of Challenge that he was of Sir
Fobu Friend’s Jury 5 therefore thofe are all reckon-
ed among the peremptory Challenges, and you
can challenge but two rhore in all.

L.C. 7. Treby. Not without Caufe, but as many
more as you can have good Caufe againtt.

CL of Arr. Fobn Reynolds.

Cook. I except not againft him,  [Wus favorin.)

Cook. 1 do not except againft him.  [He cuqs

Cl of Arr. Fames Robinfn.

Cook. I have nothing to fay to him, [He <was
fworn.]

Cl of Arr. Fofeph Morewood.  [Challeng’d)

M. Baker. You have challeng’d all your Num-
ber now.

Cl.of Arr. My Lord, we have gone through
the Pannel, we muft now call the Defaulters again.
Thomas Clark.

Myr. Clark, Here.

Sir B. Shower. Was he here when he was call’d
over

Mr. Ait, Gen. 'That’s nothing, he is here now,

Sir B. Shower. But 1f there be a Defaule of the
Jury, and the King’s Counfel have challenged
any one, they ought to fhew their Caufe ; there-
fore we defire that they may fhew their Caufe
why they challeng’d Me, Simmons, -

L. C. #. Treby. The King has Power to chal-
lenge without fhewing Caufe till the Pannel b>
gone through; butif there be a Default of Ju-
rors when the King challenges, the King’s Coun-
fel muft fhew Caule,

Sir B. Shower. Here 1sa Default of Jurors, my
Lord.

L. C. 7. Treby. No body is recorded abfolutely
a Defaulter, if he comes in time enough to be
{worn.

Cl.of Arr. Swear Mr. Claik
doise. |

L. C.5. Treby. When there is an apparent De-
fanlt of Jurors, then they muft thew their Caufe:
but here his Appearance, 1t feems, was recorded,
and fo he was no Defaulter s and you might have
challenged him for Caufe ftill.

Cl. of Ar. Fames Dry.

Myr. Dry. My Name 1s not Fames.

Serf. Darnal. Then you cannot fivear him :
Here are Three miftaken in their Names,

L.C. §. Treby, That is in the Copy in your
Brief, Brother, it may be.

Sery: Darnal, No, my Lord, the Officers admit ir.

Mr. A, Gen. My Lord, we defire thofe Gen-
tlemen, that fay they are no Freeholders, may be
fworn to that Mawer, [Which was accordmply
done.] And feveral of them that had ftaid, did
deny the having of any Freehold upon Qath, and
fome were gone away.

[Which was
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L. C. . Treby. Pray take care to eftreat the
Ifiues, and return greater Iffues the next time.

My, F. Rokeby. Truly, the Court muft put fome
great Penalty upon them for trifling with the Court

i refpet of their Duty that they owe to the King

and Country, in regard of their Eftates,
Cl. of Arr. Pray, let the Officers be called who

fummoned this Jury, Mr. Sheriff.
[Which was done.] And they examined con-

cerning their fummoning thofe who made Default,
and the Iflues of thofe who were recorded as De-
faulters were ordered to be eftreated.

Then the Court not being able to proceed for
want of a Jury, they ordered another Pannel to

be ready againlt /7ednefday next, to which time,
at Seven 1n the Morning, the Court was by Pro-
clamation adjourncd.

Die Mercurii Decimo Tertio Iiais,
Anno Dom. 1696.

The Court being met according to the Adjonrn-

menty the Pannel was caled over, and the

Defaulters Recorded, and feveral excufed for

Abfence uponSicknefs, and being out of Town
before the Summons.  Then Mr, Serjeant

Darnall defired before the Fury was called,
fo move fomething againft the Pannel :

And made bis Motion thus,

Mpr. Serf. Darnall. EF your Lordfhip pleafes, I

have fomewhat to offer to
you before you go upon this new Pannel, and I
confefs, 1 think it is my Duaty to the Court, as
well as to the Prifoner, to ftate the Cafe as it is,
and fubmit it vpon the Reafon of Law, and the
Authorities that [ fhal]l offer, whether the Pro-
ceedings upon. this new Pannel will not be erro-
neous? My Lord, the Queftion is, whether as
this Cafe is, the Prifoner has had a Copy of the
Pannel of his Jury by which he 1s to be tried,
according as the late Law requires? he had a Copy
of the former Pannel, and upon that Pannel Nine
were {worn, and their Names all entered upon Re-
cord, and made Parcel of the Record. Therefore
now the Queftion is, whether he can be tried up-
on anew rannel? Weare ina Cafe that rarely
happens ; and 1n a Cafe of Life and Death, I know
your Lordthip will be careful not to vary from the
ancient PraCtice or to make a new Precedent,
becaufe of the Confequences. It muft be agreed
in this Cafe, that the old Pannel upon which the
Prifoner took his Challenges, and of which Nine
were fworn, 1s Parcel of the Record.  Now, my
Lord, to add a new Pannel, upon which Twelve
more fhall be fworn, and all this appear upon
Record, and the Prifoner tried upon the laft
Pannel, will not this be Error? 1 offer this be-
fore the Jury be called and fworn, becaufe we
aofire to be fairly tried ; and we defign to reft
upon the Falt in this Cafe. IF it fhould appear,
That he 1s trted upon a Pannel that is unduly
made and returned, that will be of Ewvil Con-
fequence one way or other.  And can this be duly
made, if another appear upon Record before
it? And can any Body fay it is quafh’d or aba-
ted? Or canitbefo? My Lord, in Stamford’s
Pleas of the Crown, p. 155. it is faid, If any of
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the Pannel die afler the Return, and before theiy
Appearance, [o that there are not enough left o
make the Fury, ye the Pannel fhall not be quafb'd,
nor 15 it abated, but it is Caufe to grant a Tales.
And certainly, -my Lord, it is a ftronger Cafe,
when by reafon of Challenges, which the Law
gives the Prifoner Liberty to make, there are not
enough left, that there fhall not be a new Pan-
nel, but that a Zales fhall be granted; for if 4
new Pannel might be made, it cannot appear
who were challenged, or who were admitted.
And 1f your Lordlhip pleafes to confider the In-.
tention of the Law in giving the Prifoner Power
to challenge, is, that he may have an indifferent
Jury; but that would be prevented by fuch a
Practice as this; for when it has been difcovered
upon the old Pannel whom the Prifoner chofe,
and whom he challenged upon the new Pannel,
the Perfons challenged may be fet firft, and thofe,
that were chofen may be omitted, or fo, poltpon-
ed, that none of them whom he thought equal
to try him, can ferve upon the Jury. And truly,
my Lord, if | am rightly informed, that is the
Cafe upon this new Pannel, {ome of thofe that
were admitted and fiworn are left out, and moft
of them, I think, arc put laft in the Pannel
whom he thought equal Men to twy him, and
all thofe whom he challenged peremptorily, are
the firft Men in the Pannel, This, my Lord, is
the Cafe before you, and if this be admitted, the
Ule and End of Challenges, which are in benefic
and favour of Life would be defeated. And for
Authorities in this Cafe, befides the Reafon and
Ground of the Law,” many cannot be expetted,
ecaufe it 1s a Fact that rarely happens. I find
none of the ancient Practifers ever knew it, but
I find that a Tales ought to be granted, fo it is
faid in feveral Books, as in Stamford, 155, 156.
when ever upon the Principal Pannel, all the

Jury does not appear, or fo many of them do
not, that there are not enough left to make a

Jury, which 1s our very Cafe; then in fuch Cafe
the Pannel fhall not be quafh’d orabated; buta

Tales granted, fo 1s 14 H.7. 7. there the Que-
ftion was, whether there fhould be a greater

Number returned upon the Tales than were 1n
the Principal Pannel, and there the Difference
was 1nfifted upon, and agreed, That where it is
between Party and Party, where Life is not con-
cerned, it fhall not, but where Life is concern-
ed, and the Prifoner has Power to challenge 35
peremptorily, there the Judge may award as
many upon the Zaks as he pleafes, that there
may be enough to remain after the Challenges;
fo that if this old Pannel be not abated, and
could not be quafb’d, and a Tales might be grant-
ed to confift of any Number, I conceive the
Prifoner cannot be tried upon this new Pannel,
but it will be Erroneous: and I humbly fubmit
to your Lord(hip’s whether you will proceed up-
on it.

Sir B, Shower. If your Lordfhip pleafes ta
{fpare me 2 Word of the fame Side, with Submif~
fion, We think their ought to have been an Ha-
beas Corpora, with a Tales, fuch as had been be-
fore Sworn, being to be part of the Jury now,
and that 1s the proper Way to bring the Prifoner
to his Trial 1n this Cafe ; the King’s Counfel can-
not expect we fhonld produce many Precedents,

for I believe this is the Second of the Kind that
5 B ever
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ever happened, at leaft, within Memory, That
a'Trial in' Treafon was put off pro defeitn jfura-

torum, though I have a Precedent that I thinlc

s exprefs in the Cafe; but we infift in the firft
Place, That a Tales does lie at Common-Law,

in the Cafe of Life: and fo the Book that Mr.

Serjeant cited in Stamford, is exprefs; and then
we fiy, that the Anfwer which we expect, that
we are now before Juftices of Goal-Delivery, is
not fufficient, becaufe the Juftices of Goal-Deli-

very, though they do not ufually award Procels

By way of Writ, but before their coming, they
command the Sheriff to have his County ready
there, and fo in Fact, 1t is a Parol Precept; yet
when it is returned, then it is entered upon Re-
cord, either Preceptum eff Vice Comiti quod ve-
dire faceréty or, Ideo vemiat Jurata; and the
Jury are entered upon Record: So that take it to
be before Juftites of Goal-Delivery, yet the She-
riff having returned a2 Pannel, and that being up-
on the File, as appears before your Eyes, 1n Obe-
dience to your Command, and that Copy of the
Pannel being delivered to us two Days betore
Saturday laft, we humbly fubmit it to your Lord-
fhip, whether by Force of the Common-Law,
and of the late A& of Parliament, we ought not
to be tried by that Pannel, we mnfit upon 1,
that the A¢t intends, and exprefsly defigned, that
not only the Prifoner fhould have a Copy of the
Pannel that the Sheriff returned at any time after,
but that he fhould be tried bv the Pannel that we
had a Copy of at firft; for it is not faid a Copy,
doties quoties the Court fhall think fit to award a
Precept for a new Pannel, but the Words of thé
Actare a Copy of the Jury duly returned by the
Sherif; now this we had, and your Lordfhip
knows it is nota returned Pannel till it be in
Court, and then 1t becomes part of the Record:
My Lord, I do agree, the Juftices in fome Cafes
have quafh’d and fet afide Pannels and Juries, and
ordered new ones, and I confels there was an ex-
traordinary Cafe in the Time of King Charles the
Second, which was upon the Indittment againtt
Whitebread, where after the Jury Charged, and
Evidence given, the Jury was dilcharged, and a
new Pannel made the next Seflions, upon which
Mr. 2Whitebread was Tried and Conviéted ;3 how
juft or regular that was, I will not infift upon
now, but Iam fure there were great Complaints
of that Pradtice, and few Precedents can be
fhewn of the hke : But befides, the Parties them-
felves waved 1t there, no Objettion being taken
againft it ; but we infift upon it in this Cafe, that
this being upsn Record, is part of the Record,
and fo appears to the Court: If the Record in-
deed were to be made up upon a Writ of Error,
perhaps it would be no Error, becaufe it may be
they would leave itout; but here it appears there
was 3 Pannel of Record before you, and this muft
either be quafh’d, or altered, or continued on by
Procefs; you have Power to quath ir, if it be
unduly returned by the Sheriff. If there be any
evil Practices for procuring the Panne), either by
the Profecutor or the Prifoners if there be no
Freeholders return’d, or the fame happen in any
other refpet not to be legally done according to
the Command. or Precept of the Court; but be-
caufe there is a Default of Appearance of Jurors,
no Pannel was ever quath’d upon that Account.
Then fay we, if ic be not quafb’d, this Pannel
muft continue; for, What fhall become of it?

159. The Trial of Peter Cook,

S Will. IIL.
Why thould it riot continue ? It is riot within the
Act of Parliament that gives the Juftices Power
to malée 2 new Pannel, as in the Cafe of a Grand
Jury when they are Guilty of Concealments, or
refufe to find Bills upon great Evidence, but we
have no fuch Cafe before you, nor do I know
any fuch Rule as can reach this; fo that we take
it, there is no Difference between this Cafe, as
before Juftices of Goal-Delivery, and other Juf-
tices; that Procefs does lie againtt the Jury that
does not appear even in Trealon and Fclony,
there i1s no Difpute, and 1t is very properly o,
if 1t be before Commiffioners of Oyer and Ter-
minery firlt a Pewire facias, and then upon De-
fault, a Habeas Corpora, thatis the proper Way ;
then take it before Juftices of Goal-Delivery,
there 1t 1s entered upon Record, Preceptum eff
Vice Comiiti, &c and here 1s a Pannel returned by
virive of this Precept, and fome of the Jury do
not appear, and fo there are not enough to Try
the Prifoner after a great many Sworn and Chal-
lenged, and this entered upon Record, What
fhall become of that Pannel, it cannot be quath’d
nor abated? My Lord, there isa Cafe that does
warrant that Opinion of a 7afes in a Cafe of Fe-
lony; and if there may be a Tales, then there
may be a Habeas Corpora, and there are Direlti-
ons how the Jurors fhall be Sworn again, upon
their appearance on the Habeas Corpora, and that
s W barton’s Cafe in Yelverton 23,

My. ¥, Pewell, jun. Do not difpute that, it
15 plain, that a Zales does lie in Felony, upon
a Commiflion of Oyer and Terminer 3 but can

you thew me, Sir Bartholomew, any where, that
upon a Commiflion of Goal-Delivery a Zafes does

lie?

Sir B Shower. Sir, I can only fhew the Reafon
of the Law, and I cannot find that does contra-
dict what we now contend for,

Mr. F. Powell, 1 tell you, Sir Bartholomew,
there is no Tales but with a Habeas Corpora to
bring the in firft Jurors, and that cannot be vpon
i parol Precept on a Commillion of Oyer-and Ter-
mer, there goes a Venire facias, which is a
Writ upon which the Habeas Corpora may be

grounded, but thereis no Vewire facias upon a Com-
miflion of Goal-Delivery.

Sir B. Shower. Why fhould there not be a Pre-
cept 1n nature of an Habeas Corpora for a Jury re-
turn’d, upon a Precept as well as ona Writ ?

My, F. Powell. No, it never was done; the
Commuffion of Goal-Delivery 1s a general Com-
miffion that does Authorize the Sheriff to impan-
nel, and have a Jury ready at the Day appointed,
for the Delivery of the Goul, to Try the Prifo-
ners; it doth import in it felf a general Precept
for that Purpofe, before Iflue joined, which the
Sheniff cannot do in the Cafe of a Commuffion of
Oyer and Terminer, but muft have 2 Writ of 7e-
wire facias, afver Iflue joined.

[ 5ir Fobn Hawlesr,] My, Sol, Gen, In all Cafes that
they cite, there is a Writ of Peuire facias, upon
which the After-procefs, by Writ, may be ground-
ed ; but here is no Foundation for any future
Procels by Writ, becaufe it 1s only by Parol-
Precept.

Mr, 4ti. Gen. Sure thele Gentlemen don’t think
what they fay ; the Pannel 1s not Part of the Re-
cord, and there is no Record of it; nothing but
the Clerk’s Entry in- a Pagper, or Notg, for his

own Mff;*amﬂdrfm.
Mr. 7,
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M. F. Rockeby. Brother Darial, have you any
Book that fays, Juftices of Goal-Delivery muft
award a Tales upon Default of the Jurors.

M. Serj. Darnal. No, my Lord, I cannot fay

fo.
i L. C. F. Treby. Suppofe all the Jury had been

challeng’d, or dy’d. _
M. F. Powel. There could be no quathing of
it, but it would fall of it felf, for want of a
ry.
: j{i}'. 7. Rokely. 1f, according to your Doc-
trine, we muft keep to the firlt Pannel, the
Confequence wou’d be, there would be no Tral

at all. |
Sir B. Shower. Stamford makes no Difference

that I can {ee.

My, Att. Gen. But thefe Gentlemen have been
told the Difference upon which this Mateer 15
grounded . a Tales cannot be without a Hrz_luirzs Cor-
sora, and a Habeas Corpora cannot be witnout 2
Venire facias 3 but a Commifiion of Goal-Delivery
cannot award a Veuire facias, becaufe that 1s not to
be awarded till Iffue joined.

Mr. B. Powis. The Return of this Pannel be-
fore Juttices of Goal-Delivery, is an Aét of the
Sheriff, by virtue of _thc Commuffion, and nothing
appears of Record till the Jury are Sworn.

Mr. . Rokeby. They obje(t that 1t is upon Re-
cord. -

L. C. ¥. Treby. By the Record, they mean the
Clerk?s Note. :

AMr. A, Gen, If you pleafe to look upon the
Indi@ment, there is no Entry at all, and that is
all the Record before you.

Myr. #. Powel. Doces 1t appear upon Record, that
Nine were Sworn ¢ _

Nir. Baker. No, there is nothing upon the Re-
cord.

Cl. of Arr. It does not appear till the Record
is made up, and nothing is entered ull “I'welve
are Sworn,

Al Serj. Darnal, There will be a great Incon-
venience, if a Pannel may be changed at any
Time.

M. 7} Powel. Thisis a Cafe that never hap-
pened before, and may be never may again.

Sir B. Showwer. The Law will hold the fame,
cafe it does appear upon Record, as well as where
i+ does not: But we fay, a Pannel return’d in
Court is a Record. |

M. F. Powel. No, it will not; becaufe, when
2 Jury does appear, and the Twelve are Sworn,
‘hen it becomes Parcel of the Record 5 and there-
fore W hitebread’s Cafe ® was quite another Cule,
snd was indeed held to be an extraordinary Cafe,
but that comes not up to us, for therea full Jury
vas Sworn, and Evidence given. |

M. Serj. Darnal. It may be the fame Jury will
not be returned.

Mr. . Powell. But if you have a Copy of the
Jury, youare at no Mifchicf, |

M. Scrj. Darnal. Some that were 1n the former
" Pannel are quite left out.

M. Sher. Buck, There are none left out, but
what were not Freeholders, that I know of.

Mr. B. Powis. He fays the Fact 1s not true, as
you have alledged 1t. -

My Sher. Buck. And Mr. Serjeant Darnal has
been pleafed to refle@t upon us, as if we had
pack’d this Jury, by altering the Places of the
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Names, which, my Lord, we do utterly deny,

and we only left out thofe that were not Frue-
holders,

Mr. B, Powis. The Sheriff fays, he has not poft-

poned any of them, and only left out thofe that
were not Freeholders.

M. Serj. Darnal. If the Law were as plain with
us as the Fact in that Cafe, we fhould have a very
good Cafe of 1t.

Mi. Sher. Buckingham. Mr. Serjeant, 1 have
both the Pannels here; they may be compared.

Myr. Seiy. Darnal. 1 faid no harm, Mr. Shernit,
nor meant any Reflection upon you,

My, Sher,  Buckingbars,  Mr. Serjeant was
plealed to fay, the excepted Men were put mn
th{fE Front, and thofe that were Sworn were "put
Jaft.

L. C. F. Treby. There is nothing at all in the
Objection,

Mr. . Powell, Really, becaufe it was openad
as a Reflection, it will be proper lor the Shenift
to clear it,

Mr. Sher. Buckingham. My Lord, the Anfwer
I give to1t, 15, That-particularly one that was
Sworn Jaft Time, is now at the very Beginning of
the Pannel; and in general, they are mix’d pro-
mifcuoully, without any Defign or Study in the
Jealt. Hoe fays we have left out thofe that ferved
before: I folemnly proteft, I know not one Man
returned uPﬂm&Te laft Pannel that is left out, un-
lefs it appeared that he is no Freeholder ; and we
had no Reafon to put in them, that we knew could
not ferve.

M. Serj. Darnal, That can’t appear to us, that
they are not Freeholders.

M. . Rokeby. Bat it appears to him, and there-
fore he did well to leave thenf out. ’

M. Sher. Buckingham. What 1 fay, Tam reddy
to give upon my Qath,

Mr. Serf. Darnal, I fay there is one Heiiy Bea-
dle left out, and he was one that was Sworn.

My, Sher, Buckingham. T will not fay for a par-
ticular Many I proteft that I did not know fic
was left out; if it be fo, it was by Miftake;
for I know Mr. Beadle very well, and I take him
to be an honeft Man, and very well affefted to
the Government as any Man.

Mr. Serj. Darnal, We defired to be tried by
Men that are honeft and well-affetted to the Go-
vernment. - "

M. Shei'. Buckingham. There you have of them,
Sir. .

M. Serj. Darnal. Thofe that were Sworn are
put laft of all, and there is not above one of them
that is within poffibility of coming on again.

Mz, Sher. Buckingbam. It will appear by Mu.
Cosk’s Challenges, and the other Pannel, that
they ftood late before; and Thomas Clarz, who
was Sworn the laft Time, {iands tenth Man upon
the Pannel.

Mr. Serj. Darnal. He was Sworn after we had
gone through the Pannel, and took all our Chal-
lenges, not appearing at firft.

M. Sher. Buckingbam. 1 tell you you they {tand
for the moft part as they did, for ought I know.

M. Serj. Darnal. There is but one 1n Three-
feore and Ten, that can be Sworn now, of them
that were Sworn before ; and there were Nine of
them then Sworn.

58 2 M,



744

Mr. Ait. Gen. That is a Miftake. Indeed there
are 2 great many added to the Panncl, becaufe
there was a Defe@t the laft Time, and therefore
now they may perhaps ftand later.

Mr. Seri Darnal. 1 do not fpeak to reflect
upon the Sheriffs : I go according to my Inftruc-
tions.

M. . Powell. 1f it had been fo, it had been
well enough, for you muit be contented, the Court

muft tike 1t as the Sheriff returns it, and you have
a Copy of it.

M. Ait. Gen. Here are four of them that were
Sworn before, that {tood above f{ixty off in the
old Pannel.

M. Sher. Buckingbam. The firfl Man that was
Sworn, Mr. Skerbrook, {tands within the firlt Twelve
now, as well as before.

My. F. Powell. It they had been all new, there
had been nothing in that.

Mr. 5. Rokeby. Truly, T can’t fee but that the
Sheriff hath done like an equal, juft, fawr, and
honeft Officer.

My e, Gen. They may chalienge as they will.

L.C.F. Treby. You are to confider, that this
happens becaufe you run out as far as your utmoft
Number, that Time you challenged Thirty-five
percmptorily, and divers others for Caufe, fo as
not to leave enough for a Jury; and from that
alone arofe a Necefiity of increafing the Number
of the Pannel.

Ay, Serj. Daraal. It was our Chient that chal-
lenged them, we do not advile him whom to
challenge,

M. J. Rokby, But you muft take the Confe-
quence of 1, which cauies this Addition to the
Fannel

L.C. 7. Trey. What do you complain of ¢ they
that are returned, are put 1 the fame Order as
they were belore; they that were Sworn, were
tfor the moft part) late 1n the Fannel then, and fo
they are now. I do not find any Thing done to
the Prejudice of the Prifoner.

Mr. Seij. Dariral. i the Chrifttan Names had
not been miftaken, there had been perhaps enough

to have been Sworn.
L. C. 7. Treby. That's a good Argument for a

new Pannel, becaufe the Chitthian Names were
miftaken before,

M. . Powcdl, Tt was by Defelt of Jurors,
and therefore there was 2n ablolute neceflity of a
new Pannel.

L.C. F Trebv. Tam of the fame Opimnion.

Poartsr?’s Cate 15 well known: It was much
cited as to another Point i Bafbel’s Cafe, It was
a Trial at the King’s-Bench Bar at Fefiminfier by
a Jury of Kews, upon an IndiCtment of a Mur-
der,

And | think you fay the Cafe of 71, 7. was be-
tween Party and Party in Appeal.  And [ believe
S:ainford®s Difcourfe, m the Place cited, relates
chiefly to Appeals.

I thall not deny that a Tefes my poflibly be up-
on an Indictment before Juftices of Oyer and Ter-
sisiner; though “uis not ulual, nor do you fhew, or
our experienced Clerks know any fuch Precedent.
I agree, that in the mentioned Cales a Zales was
proper; for in both Cales (wz. ot Adppeal and
Indeiient vemaved dmto  the King’s-Bench) the
Proces for the Jury was as it ought to be, by
Writs of Veiire focias, &c. upon which a full
Jury not appearing, there multben Za/s,  Bat in
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proceeding to Trial before Juftices of Oyeir and
Terminer on fuch Inditment as is here, though [
will not fay but they may proceed by Wric of
Vewire facias, yet I do fay, that the more known
Courle 1s by Precept, in nature of a Venire fazi-
as: And the Ufage 1s, that after (and never be-
fore) the Prifoner hath pleaded not Guilty, there
coes a Precept to the Sheriff, under the Seals of
the fud Jullices of Oyer and Terminer, returna-
ble at fuch Day as they fhall adjourn to, for re-
turning a Jury to Try it, (as was done lately,
upon Advice, in the Cafe of Reokwood, &c.)
and upon the Return of that, if, after Challen-
ges, there are not enough left to make a Jury,
whether thofe Juftices fhall iffue a Precept in na-
turc of a Habeas Corpora, or Dsfiringa; with a
Tales, or another Precept in the fame Form as
before, and withour taking notice of the former,
is 2 Quettion ot in Judgment before us.  For,
we are about proceeding to a Trial on an Indi&t-
ment 1n this Court of Goal-Delivery, (which is
the Court wherein generally all capital Crimes are
tried, as well at this Place as atr the Aflizes) and,
I chink, here cannot be & Talks 3 I am fure it Is
not neceflary.  For, [, Here 1s never any
Writ of Vewire facias, &c.  Secondly, Nor ever
a Precept for returning a Jury to Try a particu-
far .flue: But this Court takes the Pannels of Ju-
ries returned by the Saerill; without any partt-
cular Precept to him.

The Courfe of proceeding by virtue of a Com-
miffion of Goal-Delivery, which is the Law in
this Cafe, 15 this, There 1s antecedent to
the Coming of the Jultices, a general Command-
ment or Precept made, in Wriring, to the Sheriff
by the faid Juftices, to return Juries agamft their
Coming, for the Trying of all and fingular Pri-
foners m their Goal, whether they have pleaded
before, or fhall after,  And for that Purpole it re-
quires the Sheriff to fummon, out of all Parts of
his Country whence the Prifoners come, 2 great
Number of Freeholders not a-kin to the Prifo-
ners, to beat the Time and Place appornted for
holding tie Court. The Sheriffy by virtue of
this general previous Precept, fummoneth many
for Jurors, and prepares diverle feveral Panncls
of their Names, either atfirit, or afterwards, as
appears neceffary, and returneth and delivereth
in one or more of thefe Pannels, from Time to
Time, as the Court does need, and call for any :
This, we know, in Fact, Is frequently done where
the Seflions of Goal-Delivery lafts {feveral Days,
and there Is occafion. Though, inSuppofition of
Law, all chefe Pannels are returned, and the Tri-
als thereupon had the firft Day of the Sefitons ;
and, in Law, it is intended to be but that one
Day only. The Return of this Precept 1t thus,
viz, Executio iftius Precepti palet in quibuficw
Panellis bute pracepto amnexis, and the Pannels
are annexed, and there are often filed here divers
Pannels upon the fame general Precept, though
fometimes but One. Thefe Pannels are thus de-
livered into Court, and a Jury taken out of them
as there is occalion, only upon a Parel Award,
that is, barely the Court’s calling for the fame,
without Wri or Precept m Writing, or giving
any Day for'the Doing it. For this Proceeding
is fmmediate, for the fpeedy Delivery of Prifo-
ners; and the Entry, after fetting forth that the
Prifoner being arraigned pleads not Guilty, Is,
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Yurata: And this Court’s being inftituted for the
fpeedy Delivery of Prifoncrs, and Warnings being
given long before, of their Coming; are the Caufes
why it has been always held without doubt, that
Juftices of Goal-Delivery might inquire and try
the fame Day.

If it fall out, that by reafon of Defaults, Deaths,
or Challenges, there cannot be a full Jury had out
of a Pannel, (as here there wanted three) which 1s
an Accident that the Court cannot know, till they
have gone through the Pannel; I think m this
Cafe, that Pannel goes for nothing, 1s utterly loft
and void, and to be caft away or cancelled: For
it does not anfwer the Award of the Court, which
was to have a Jury to Try the Prifoner prefent-
ly. Itis meant an effectual Panncl that fhould
afford a full Jury of 'T'welve unexceptionable
Men; and every Pannel that comes fhort in this,
s to be laid afide as a void Thing; and then
the Court takes and makes ufe of another 1m-
mediately, which may not be deficient, whereby
the Award is obferved, and the prefent Service dii-
patched.

Objection. 1t is objected, That the old Pannel
is Parcel of the Record in Court, and, upon that,
Nine were Sworn, and therr Names are all en-
ter’d upon Record ; and now to add a new Panncl,
upon which Twelve fhall be Sworn and Try the
Prifoner; afl this appearing upon Record, it will
be Lirror.

- Anfiser. This Objection ftands upon two Mif-
rakes, both arifing from not obferving the Dilter-
ence between Precepts and Pannels, 1 a Court of
Goal-Delivery and Feaire facias, or Precepts and
Pannels in other Courts.

r. It fuppoles that here will be two Panncls,
which will appear to relate to the Trial of this
Prifoner, Mr., Cosk.

2. Tt fuppoles that both thefe will become Re-
cords, or Parcel of the Record in Court.

If eicher of thefe Suppofitions prove to be a
Miftake, it will deftroy the Obje¢tion. 1 think
both are Miftakes.

. Here is not, nor will be, nay, there ought
not to be any Pannel purporting to be retrned
for the Trying of Mr. Crok, or any particular Pri-
joner or Prifoners.  For the Precept in this Cale
i5 (not like o Penire facias, which always relpedts
a particular Iffue between Partics therein named,
but) general, requiring the Sheriff to return Ju-
rors enough to Try all the Prifoners, not naming
anv.  And the Return, which is the Anfwer to it
by'n Pannel or Pannels, is as General; the Title
of every Pannel being Nomina ftratoi® ad Tri-
airdiins pro Damino Rege, and no mores or No-
sina Furatorsin ad Trianatm 131er Doii.  Regem
¢ Piifonar. ed Barran, without naming any of
‘e Prifoners, and it were abturd if it thould be
otherwife: For the Precept goes to the Sheriff’ be-
fore the Seffions, and his Return is [uppoled to be
made at the Beginning of the Seffions, when 1t is
ot known who of the Prifoners will be indicted ;
or, if indicted, who will plead not Guilty, or
Guilty, ora Pardon, or other Plea,

When, for the Trial of a particular Prifoner
(or divers Prifoners that are thought ﬁ_r. to be put
upon Trial by the fame Jury) a Jury 1s about to
he taken out of any Pannel;, ‘the Clerk, as he
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goes along, may take a Note in Paper of the
Name of every one that is fworn; or he may.
(and ufually doth) write Fur. on the faid Pan-
nel, againit the Name of every one Sworn: Buc
this Note or Mark is no Part of the Record; it
is not ex Inflstutione Legis, it 15 but a voluntary
Memarandum, for the Help of his Memory. If he
could fafely truft to the Strength of his Memory,
he need not write at all on this Occafion; I
mean, not till a full Jury is Sworn, who try the
Prifoner. But then, indeed, the Clerk muft
(from his Notes or Memory) write the Name of
all the Twelve, entering them on the Record of
the Inditment, in this manner, @iz, juft after
the Jdeo immedinté ventat inde Furale coram pre-
fatis Fuftic. &c, adding, & Furatores Furate il-
lins, &c. Scil, A, B. &c. Dicunt, &c. And it 1s
by this only, that the Names of thofe that are
Sworn, come to be of Kecord; and it is this
Entry upon the Body of the Indictment alone,
that 1s the Record, that fhews who were Jurors
Sworn, to Try this, or that, or other Prifoner, or
Prifoners.

So that if the old Pannel were filed, and were
a Record, as the Prifoner’s Counfel would fuppote,
yet it would not thereby be made appear, that the
{aid Pannel was returned, or ufed for, or in order
to the Trial of this Prifoner,

2, The old Pannel is not filed among the Re-
cords of the Court, nor ought to be. When fuch
a Pannel does not produce a Jury, the Clerks may
and ufe to throw 1t by, asa ufelels Thing, But,
however they ufe it, we cannot allow it to ke a
Record. It was received de bene ¢ffz 5 it is abor-
tive and comes to nothing. And 1t Is not every
Thing that paffeth in Court in order to a Record,
that comes to be fo. A frivolous Plea that is re-
jected, is not recorded, A Prefentment or Bill
of Indiétment, before 1t 1s found, 1s nor a Re-
cord: And if an fgnoramus be returned upon a
Bill of IndiGment, 1t never can be a Record,
and thereupon, the Clerks do fometimes throw
it away, though fometimes they keep itand put
it on the File, only taking care to crofs it;
but if they do forget to crofs it, yet itis nota
Record.

By all this it is apparent how great the Diffe-
rence is between a Precept and Panneis in this
Court, and a Venire facios and a Pannel returned
thereupon, which is ever iffued after Ifiue joined,
and doth always mention the particular Parties and
Matter it relates to, and 1sa Record, and a Ground
for an Habeas Corpora with a Tales, to be returna-
ble at a certain future Day.

But, in this Cafe, in this Court, it 1s quite other-
wile.

Sir B. Shower. Then, my Lord, fince there is
a new Pannel, we hope we {tand In the fame Con-
dition upon the Act of Parliament, to toike Ex-
ceptions to the Indi¢tment before this Jury Sworn,
as we did before the other Jury Sworn, fince all
that is quite {et alide.

L.C. ¥. Treby. Yes truly, I think that may be.

Mr. Aut. Gen. But thefe Gentlemen would have
done well to have given notice of their Excep-
tions. :

Sir B. Shower. My Lord, T fhall not ftand upc
an Exception which I think I might take to the
Word Turmas in the Indiétment, which whether
it be Troops of Men, or Horfes, or what it is
does not appear; but, I think, we have an Ex-
ception



746
ception to the chief Overt-Aé laid in the Indi@t-
ment, and that we prefume, if my Brief be right,
will be fufficient to fet afide this Indictment:
That Mr. Cook did agree with other Trartors to
fend Mr. Charnock into France to the faid late
King Fames, and King Fazes 1s never mention-
ed before 1n all the Indiétment, that 1s one Ex-
ception that we have, that there 1s no Jate King
Fames mentioned in the Indi¢tment before this,
if my Copy be right, if 1t be otherwife, 1 fup-
pole they will find it: It is laid, Thar Mr. Cook
did agree to fend Charuock as a Meflenger into
France, eidewn amper Regi Facobo, and no Rex
Facobus is mentioned before.  Then there is ano-
ther Exception, and that’s this: They come and
fay, That whereas there was a War with France,
which is only 1n the Indictment by way of Re-
cial or Rehearfal of an Hiftory, Quod cum per
magniar Tewmpus fuit & modo fit, &c, Mr, Cook
the Premiffes knowing, did compafs and imagine
the King’s Death, and did adhere to the faid
King’s Enemies fuch a Day.  Now, my Lord, I
do think that this can never be maintin’d, for
that Cum quoddam Belluin, &c. being an hiftori-
cal Narrative, is not politive enough ¢ For adhe-
ring to the King’s Enemies, being one of the
Treafons laid 1n the Charge, there ought to be a
War at the Time of the Adhefion, and of Ne-
ceflity then that ought to be prefented by the
Jury; for though yvour Lordfhips can judicially
take notice-of War or Peace, yet you cannot
take notice of 1t at fuch a partcular Time, and
the Reafon is from the Notion that is in my Lord
Ceke in his third Zyfiiutes, cap. Treafon, That
Adhefions to Rebels 1s not Adhefion to the King?s
Enemies, for 2 Rebel 1s not faid to be an Enemy;
but 1t muft be adhering to fuch an Enemy, as be-
tween whom and the King there was War at that
Time, and confequently i1t ought to be more pofi-
tively averred in the IndiCinent, than it here is;
but as to the Overt- A& of Mr. Cosl’s confulting
and agreeing to fend Chrrnock over to the faid late
King Faimes, o givehin: notice of what was agreed
upon between them, when King Fames is not
named before, that can never be got over, with
Submiffion,

Ay, Baker. Itis 2 Miflake of your Copy, Sir
Baitholsincie Shower,

Mr, Att. Gen. 1 have looked into the Record,
and 1t 1s Facoco Scevndo wuper Reel, not Diffo.

Sir B. Shawer. Then, with Submiflion, my Lord,
they cannot try us now, for we oughr to have a
true Copy of the Indictment.

Mr. Baker. Upon demand. But you never de-
manded it

St B. Shewer, Yes, it was demanded,

My, Baker, Who demanded it ?

Sir B. Shower. Our Sollicitor Buyleigh.

AMr. Baker. No, he did nor; I gave it him offi-
ctoufly.

My, A, Gen, With Submiffion, my Lord, itis
no QObjection at all, that their Copy Is wrong,
That fhould have been before the Prifoner had
pleaded; for the Words of the A& are, That he
fhall have 1t fo many Days before, to enable him
to plead, and he cannot be put to plead unlefs he
have a Copy of the IndiCtment fo long before :
And at Roekweod’s Trial it was faid by the Court
it could nor be alledged after Plea pleaded.

Mr. Burleigh. The Copy was given to me pub-
lickly in Court.
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M. Sol. Gen. Why did not your Sollicitor com-
pare it with the Indiétment ?

M. At Gen. They might have compared it by
the Clerk’s reading 1t to them; but they will not
admit the Prifoner’s Sollictror to {ce the Original,

becaufe the Act exprefly fays they fhall not have
a Copy of the Witneffes Names,

Sir B, Shower. The Officer 15 to deliver a true
Copy of the Inditment.

Mi. Att. Gen. Nos the Party 1s to demand 1t
by himfelf or his Agent, and then he is to have
it and if he be dented, he ought to apply him-
felf to the Court, who will order the Delivery of
it; but we ftand upon 1t that they cannot take
this Exception now after they have pleaded,
for the Intent of the Copy is 1o enable him to
plead.

L.C.}. Treby. The Copy, by the A& of
Parllament, is to be delivered to the Prifoner,
his Attorney, Agent, or Sollicitor, if they re-
quire the fame, and here 1t feems there was no
requiring of 1, but it was voluntarily oiven ;
and now you have lapfed your Time of making
the Exception of wanting a Copy, by haviny
pleaded to the Indi¢tment, whereby you have in
etfet admitted and declared, either that you had
a true Copy of 1t, or that you did not think fir
to require one; for the Ufe of the Copy is to
better enable the Prifoner to plead. But when
you did plead, you took upon yourfelf to be well
able to plead without the Help of & Copy, which
you might liave had upon the asking for.,

Sir B, Shewer. Then, my Lord, there is ano-
ther Thing in the Indi¢tment, That in this Overt-
Act there 1s a new Time, and a new Place, and
a new Verb, and a new Fact alledged, and no
nominative Cafe: It 1s alledged, That Peter Coah,
at firft, with others, did fo and fo: and then the
firft of Fuly to bring the Treafons aforefaid to
cffet, there & alibi, €9c. (which is very loofe,
for I know not whence the Feime muit come)
did eraeroully with Charnock, Friend, &c. con-
jult to procure Diverfas Turinas & Legiones, &c.
to join with them in England, and then it comes
& ulterius fuch a Day, Year, and Place, did
traiteroufly agree fo and fo, and not iy who:
Now this 1s reither by exprefs Words, nor Rule
of Grammar to be referred to the Prifoner at the
Bar, it does not fiy 7pfe idein Petrus Cosk; now,
my Lord, that the King’s Counfe! thought it ne-
ceflary 1n every Overt-Act is plain, becaufe thoft
Words are put in every other Claufe of the In-
di¢tment, in thofe Claufes that go before, and
thofe Claufes that come after; then if they will
tike it, that this Claufe muft refer to the nexr An-
tecedent, that will not do, for the next precedent
nominative Cafe 1s exther Friend or Charnsck : So
that this 1s without a nominative Cafe, and the
Precedents in my Lord Coke’s Enfries 361, and all
the other Books have the nominative Cafe repeat.
ed, where there isa new Time, and a new Place,
and a new Fact alledged : Now it might be true,
that the Prifoner at the Bar might be prefent, and
this fame Treafon might be difcourfed of and agi-
tated, and there might be a Coniult about this Bu-
finefs, and yer it is not neceffarily implied that he
muft confent and agree to fend Charnock into Franee,
upon which the great Screfs of the IndiCtment lies :
Therefore we fay, thefe Words having no nomina-

tive Cale, the Indictment cannot hold.
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Mr. Ait. Gen. My Lord, as to this Objection it
will receive a very plain Anfwer. Qur Indi@ment
hegins and fets forth, that Peser Cook, the Prifoner
at the Bar, did imagine and compafs the King’s
Death, and did adhere to the King’s Enemies, and
thefe are the Trealons: And then it fets forth the
Overt-A@, that 1n Execution of the traiterous
Compaffings, Imaginations, aud Adhefions afore-
faid, Ipfe idem Petrus Cook, together with Sir J7il-
liam Pevkins, Mr, Charnack, Sir Fobn Friend and
others, did propofe and confult to procure from
the French King, Forces to invade this Land; {3
ultcrins, he and they did agree to fend Chariock to
the L.tz King Fames.

My, F. Rokeby, There's the firft naming of Fames
the Second, late King of England, and there 1s no
eidem Facobo 1 promile you, .

L.C. ¥. Trety. Well, that Miftake is over. Pray.
go on, Mr. Attorney General,

Myr. Att. Gen. My Lord, as to this Objeftion
of Sir Bartholomew Shower, he would have ipfe
idem Petrus repeated over again; and he fays
that we lay a diltinét Overt-Act with a different
Time and Place: Now that 1s a Miftake too; i1t
is not a different Time and Place, but the fame
Time and Place : And it mentions that czin R.
Charnock, F. Friend, &c, €5 cum aliis Proditoribus
conveniebat, confultabat, &c. which he fays may re-
fer to Sir Fobn Friend or Chariock: But if you
look into the Frame of the Sentence, that can ne-
ver be. _

M. F. Rokeby. Petrus Cook is the nominative

Cafe that governs all the Verbs.

M. Att. Gen. And there 1s no other nominative
Cafe in ali the Indi¢tment, but Pesrus Cook, except
it be in 2 Parenthefis, and that faves the Rule of
Grammar, if there were any Thing in it, that it
muft refer to the laft Antecedent.

Sir B. Shower. When it comes to the Claufe that
he did procure Horfe and Arms, there the nomi-
native Cafe is repeated.

L. C. F. Treby. It would not have made it worfe,
3f they had made it fo here; but the Quettion is,
Whether it be neceffary ¢

Sir B. Shower. Indictments ought to be preeife-
ly certain; but this we fay 1s not fo.

M. Att. Gen. But here is as much Certainty as
to the Perfon, as can be, that he did confult with

fuch and iuch about fuch Things; and further, the
fame Day did agree with the fame Traitors to do
{o and fo.

Mr. F. Powell. Inditments, it is true, ought to
be plain and clear; but I do not fee but here is
as much Certainry as can be, that he did fuch a
Day confult, and further the fame Day did agree
with the fame Perfons.

Sir B. Shower. Who did agree, my Lord ¢

Mr. *f. Powel, He that did confult with them
before, and that is Peter Cook. *

My, Att. Gen. You’d have had us to have put it
to every Verb, Ibelieve.

Sir B. Shower. In Indi&tments no Prefumption
ought to be ufed, but the Facts ought to be direlt-
Iy and pofirively alledged.

M. ¥, Powell. 10’ true, there fhould be no Pre-
fumption, and there is none here, for certainly this

is a plain Affertion of Fact.
L.C. ¥. Treby. Here are two Things that are

fet forth: Fiff, That Peter Cook did meet with
Sir fobn Friend, Sir William Perkins, and others,
and then and there did confult with them, and
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confent to pracure. an Invafion, and join an Infur-
retion thereto. And, Secondly, Eurther with the
faid Traitors did agree to fend Charmck into
France, Now, what 1s the nominative Cafe to

this Agreement ?  Is it Sir Fobn Friend, and Sir
William Perkins? ‘That’s impoffible: For they

could not be faid properly to meet and confult
with themfelves, every one of them with his own

felt and the reft. And then the Number, if it
had referr’d to them, fhould have been plural;
but here 1t is fingular, [agrequit] and the Senfe
15 no more than this; That then and there
Mr. Cook did meet with fuch Perfons, and did
confult with them about fuch and fuch Mat-
tlelrs, and further, did agree with them to do
thus.

Sir B. Shower, The Meaning is not to be forced
and ftrained by Inference or Prefumption, but it
ought to be exprefs and plain. .

L.C. #. Treby. Nay, you cannot exprefs it
bg;}ter; you may make a Tautology of it if you
will.

Sir B. §hower. The Paragraph is long, my Lord,
and therefore requires the more Care to have thofe
Repetitions that are neceffary.

L.C. 7. Treby. Your Objetion to this Para-
graph is, that 1t 15 too long; but repeating the
fame nominative Cale to every Verb, would make
1t much longer.,

Sir B, Shower. It cannot be underltood to mean
Peter Coox without Prelumption, which ought not
to be 1n an Inditment.

Mr. Att. Gen. And as to Sir Bartholsmew Show-
er’s firft Objeétion, his Copy is right too, and he
miftook the Place, |

Sir B. Shower. You fhow’d have given me that
for an Anfwer. ) '

My, Ast, Gen. Nay, you fhould have tiken more
Care, and not have made the Objeftion.

L. C. . Treby. Truly, I think it is hardly pof-
fible to have made this better if it had been othet-
wife than 1t 1s.

My. Scrj. Darnel, My Lord, we think we have
a good Fact of 1t, which werely upon, and there-
fore do not fo much infift upon thefe Exceptions,
tho’, 1n Duty to our Client, we mention that

which we think s neceffiry, and we fubmit to
your Lordfhip.

Cl. of Arr. Set Peter Cook to the Bar.  [Which
was done.] You, the Prifoner at the Bar, thefe
good Men which you fhall hear called, and perfo-
nally appear, are to pafs berween our Sovereign
Lord the King and you, upon Trial of your Life
and Death; if therefore you would challenge
them, orany of them, your Time is to fpeak un-
to them as they come to the Book to be fworn,
and before they be fworn.

Crier. Call Sir fobn Sweetapple,

Sit Fobn Sweetapple. Here.

Cook. My Lord Chief Juftice, if your Lordfhip
pleafe, I am advifed ——

L. C. f. Treby. Pray, Sir, {peak out, that we
may hear what you fay: And let the Crier make
Proclamation for Silence, [#hich was done. ]

Cock. My Lord, before the Jury is called, I am
advifed, that 1f any of the Jury have faid already
that I am guilty, or they will find me guilty, or
I fhall fuffer, or be hanged, or the like, they arg
not fit or proper Men to be of the Jury.

L. C. J. Treby. You fay right, Sir, it 1s a good

Canfe of Challenge,

[Mr.



